
PORTER TOWNSHIP
SCHOOL CORPORATION
T H U R S D A Y ,  N O V E M B E R  1 4 ,  2 0 2 4

B O A R D  O F  S C H O O L  T R U S T E E S
M E E T I N G
5 : 3 0  P M  C S T

NATALIE WARGO, PRESIDENT
ERIC MCGINTY, VICE-PRESIDENT
MARY HARLOW, SECRETARY
LILANN SGOUROS, MEMBER
JEANNETTE SKIBBIE, MEMBER



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

++ 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2024 
5:30 pm 

 
 
 

This meeting is a meeting of the School Board for the purpose of conducting the School Corporation's business and is not to be considered a public 
community meeting.  There will be a time for public participation, as indicated by the agenda.   The meeting site is fully accessible.  Any person requiring 
further accommodation should contact the Superintendent. 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Dr. Natalie Wargo 

 A. Pledge of Allegiance 

 B. Welcome Visitors 

2. AGENDA ADJUSTMENTS – Dr. Stacey Schmidt 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

4. PLE PROJECT – Hearing on 2nd Amendment to Lease and Additional Appropriation – Dr. Schmidt 

 A. Welcome 

 B. Statement of Purpose on Second Amendment to Lease 

 C. Statement of Purpose of Hearing on Additional Appropriation of Bond Proceeds 

 D. Open Public Hearing 

 E. Adopt Resolution 1124-309 – Authorizing the Execution of the Lease 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 F. Adopt Resolution 1124-310 – Additional Appropriation 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 G. Adopt Resolution 1124-311 – Assigning Construction Bids to the Building Corporation 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 H. Adopt Resolution 1124-312 – Approving the Third Supplement to Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 I. Close Public Hearing 

5. CONSENT AGENDA – Dr. Schmidt 

 A.  Personnel Report 

 B. Board Minutes, 10.10.24 Regular Board Meeting 

 C. Payroll and Claim Dockets   

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

6. FINANCIAL REPORT – Mrs. Kathleen Smith 

 A.  Financial Report 

 B.  Fund Report 

 C. Monthly Fund Transfer Reports 

 

 

STACEY M. SCHMIDT, Ph.D. 

Superintendent 

BEN PARRISH 

Assistant Superintendent 

KATHLEEN SMITH 

CFO/Treasurer 

Porter Township School Corporation 
248 South 500 West 

Valparaiso, IN 46385 
219-477-4933 ext. 1000 



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

7. BUSINESS 

 A. Approve Collective Bargaining Agreement – Dr. Schmidt 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 B. Approve Fundraisers – Dr. Schmidt 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 C. Contract Considerations – Dr. Schmidt 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 D. Approve the 1st Reading of the Following Board Policy Revisions – Mr. Parrish 

  1. Revised Policy 1130 – Conflict of Interest 

  2. Revised Policy 1220 – Employment of the Superintendent 

  3. Revised Policy 1230 – Responsibilities of the Superintendent 

  4. Revised Policy 1617 – Weapons 

  5. Rescinded Policy 2312 – Class Size 

  6. Revised Policy 2623 – Student Assessment 

  7. Revised Policy 3113 – Conflict of Interest 

  8. Revised Policy 3217 – Weapons 

  9. Revised Policy 4113 – Conflict of Interest 

  10. Revised Policy 4217 – Weapons 

  11. Revised Policy 5410 – Promotion, Placement, and Retention 

  12. Revised Policy 5772 – Weapons 

  13. Revised Policy 6110 – Grant Funds 

  14. Revised Policy 6111 – Internal Control Standards & Procedures 

  15. Revised Policy 6112 – Cash Management of Grants 

  16. Revised Policy 6114 – Cost Principles – Spending Federal Funds 

  17. Revised Policy 6325 – Procurement – Federal Grants/Funds 

  18. Revised Policy 6550 – Travel Payment and Reimbursement/Relocation Costs 

  19. Revised Policy 7217 – Possession of Firearms and Weapons by Visitors 

  20. Revised Policy 7310 – Disposition of Surplus Property 

  21. Revised Policy 7450 – Property Inventory 

  22. Revised Policy 7540.03 – Student Technology Acceptable Use and Safety 

  23. Revised Policy 8400 – School Safety Information 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

8.  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – Mr. Parrish 

9. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – Dr. Schmidt 

 A. 2025 Lease Bonds – Discuss Potential Project, Financial Information, and Authorize Publication of Notice of 

Hearings 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 Motion______________________________Second_____________________________ 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

 

RESOLUTION #1124-309 “A” 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE 

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2024, this Board of School Trustees (the "Board") examined and approved a 
form of Second Amendment to Lease (the "Amendment") between the Porter Township High School Building 
Corporation (the "Building Corporation") and Porter Township School Corporation (the "School Corporation"); 
and 

WHEREAS, notice of a hearing on the proposed Amendment was given by publication in the Northwest 
Indiana Times and in the Post-Tribune on October 11, 2024, and said hearing has been held in accordance with 
the notice; and 

WHEREAS, by statute the Building Corporation is required to own the real estate to be leased to the 
School Corporation, and the School Corporation is required to have the value of the real estate determined by 
court-appointed appraisers; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the School Corporation, that the preliminary plans and estimates 
provide the necessary facilities for the pupils of this School Corporation and the same now are hereby 
approved, and any members of the Board be, and they are hereby authorized and directed to endorse their 
approval upon such plans and estimates. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proposed Amendment provides for a fair and reasonable rental, 
and further that the execution of the Amendment is necessary and wise. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Board is authorized and 
directed to initial and date a copy of the proposed Amendment and to place the same in the minute book 
immediately following the minutes of this meeting, and said Amendment is made a part of this resolution as 
fully as if the same were set forth herein. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any officers of the Board be, and they are hereby authorized and 
directed to execute the Amendment on behalf of the School Corporation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board ratifies and approves the filing of a petition with the Circuit 
Court of Porter County (the "Court") requesting the appointment of appraisers to determine the fair market 
value of the real estate subject to the Amendment (the "Real Estate"). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, any officers of the Board are authorized to execute a deed and sell the Real 
Estate at a price not less than that fixed by the Court. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of the Board have full authority to execute any and all 
documents necessary to execute the Amendment and Deed, if applicable, or for the issuance of the bonds 
secured by such Amendment and that the use of electronic signatures by officers of the Board or 
representatives of the School Corporation are hereby authorized and affirmed with full valid legal effect and 
are enforceable.  

Passed and adopted this 14th day of November, 2024. 

 

 _______________________ 
President, Board of School Trustees 

 
 

 _______________________ 
Secretary, Board of School Trustees 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

RESOLUTION #1124-310 “B” 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Porter Township School Corporation (the "School Corporation") is a school corporation 
organized and existing under the provisions of Indiana Code § 20-23; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of School Trustees (the "Board") of the School Corporation finds that the present 
facilities of the School Corporation are not adequate to provide for the proper educational environment of the 
pupils now attending or who will attend its schools; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to sell certain real estate to the Porter Township High School 
Building Corporation (the "Building Corporation") for a purchase price not to exceed $18,340,000 and to use 
such proceeds for the renovation of and improvements to school facilities, including construction of additional 
classrooms and cafeteria space at Porter Lakes Elementary School and site and facility improvements 
throughout the school corporation and the purchase of equipment and technology (the "Projects"); and 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost of the Projects at the present time is in the approximate amount of 
$18,340,000, and the Board finds that no sufficient provision has been made on account thereof in the existing 
budget, and that a need exists for the making of an additional appropriation for such purpose; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the School Corporation that an appropriation of the proceeds of the 
sale of real estate to the Building Corporation in the maximum amount of $18,340,000 be and the same is 
hereby made to be applied on the costs of the Projects, said appropriation to include the incidental expenses 
necessary to be incurred in connection with the Projects; that said appropriation shall be in addition to all 
appropriations provided for in the existing budget, and shall continue in effect until the completion of the 
Projects. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the establishment of a construction fund in which 
will be deposited the real estate proceeds in the maximum amount of $18,340,000, and directs that all 
interest on such construction fund shall be retained in such construction fund. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorizes that any funds remaining in the construction fund 
after completion of the Projects shall be deposited into one or more of the other established funds of the 
School Corporation, as the Board directs. 

Passed and adopted this 14th day of November, 2024. 

 _________________________ 
President, Board of School Trustees 

 _______________________ 
Secretary, Board of School Trustees 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

RESOLUTION #1124-311 “C” 

RESOLUTION ASSIGNING CONSTRUCTION BIDS AND 
CONTRACTS, ONCE RECEIVED 

WHEREAS, the Porter Township School Corporation (the "School Corporation") has or will receive 

construction bids or enter into contracts for the renovation of and improvements to school facilities, including 

construction of additional classrooms and cafeteria space at Porter Lakes Elementary School and site and 

facility improvements throughout the school corporation and the purchase of equipment and technology (the 

"Projects"); and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation intends to sell certain real estate on which the Projects will be 

renovated (the "Real Estate") to the Porter Township High School Building Corporation (the "Building 

Corporation") which Building Corporation will complete the Projects; and 

WHEREAS, the School Corporation intends to establish a construction fund and appropriate the funds it 

receives from the Building Corporation for the sale of the Real Estate; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED, the construction bids and contracts relating to the Projects are hereby assigned to the 

Building Corporation, once received. 

Passed and adopted this 14th day of November, 2024. 

 
 _______________________ 
President, Board of School Trustees 

 
 ________________________ 
Secretary, Board of School Trustees 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

 

 

 
RESOLUTION #1124-312 “D” 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THIRD SUPPLEMENT TO MASTER CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
 

WHEREAS, a Third Supplement to Master Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "Undertaking") have 
been presented to the Board of School Trustees (the "Board") of Porter Township School Corporation (the 
"School Corporation") in connection with the issuance of the Porter Township High School Building 
Corporation Ad Valorem Property Tax First Mortgage Bonds, Series 2024 (the "Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, the Board must approve the form of Undertaking and the issuance of the Bonds; now, 
therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves the form of Undertaking and hereby authorizes any 
officers of the Board to execute such Undertaking. 

BE IT RESOLVED, that any officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to execute any and 
all documents and certificates required in order to issue and deliver the Bonds. 

Passed and adopted this 14th day of November, 2024. 

 

 _______________________ 
President, Board of School Trustees 

 
 

 _______________________ 
Secretary, Board of School Trustees 
 



Name Position Location Effective Date

Baacke, Greg MS Boys Basketball Assistant Volunteer BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Baird, Bridget MS XC Head Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Clinton, Don Assistant Bowling Coach, Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Clinton, Kelly Assistant Bowling Coach, Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Draves, Jennifer Academic Team Head Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Eleftheri, Linda Freshman Girls Basketball Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Falkowski, Greg 8th Grade Boys Basketball Head Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Garza, Sean
Varsity Boys Wrestling Assistant 

Volunteer
BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Hill, Bryan C-Team Boys Basketball Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Hill, Dean
Varsity Boys Basketball Head Coach, 

Varsity Boys Golf Head Coach
BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Knight, William Bowling Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Loving, Sheryl Art Club, Art Show, Art Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Minder, Robert Varsity Girls Wrestling Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Mendoza, Chris 6th Grade Boys Basketball Head Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Ooms, David Varsity Boys Basketball Asistant Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Paciga, Bonnie Bowling Assistant Coach, Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Peterson, Shana MS Cheerleading Head Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Richardson-Kobus, Jane Bowling Assistant Coach, Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Riley, Sean
MS Boys Baseball Head Coach, Varsity 

Baseball Head Coach

BGMS/BGH

S
2024-2025 School Year

Ryzewski, Hannah Varsity Girls Basketball Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Saco, Melissa JV Girls Basketball Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Schmidt, Laura Girls Swimming Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Schwartzkopf, Chris Varsity Wrestling Assistant Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Simatovich, Michael JV Boys Basketball Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Taborski, Michael Varsity Boys Wrestling Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Talbert, Jeremy
Varsity Boys Wrestling Assistant 

Volunteer
BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Trapana, Tom Varsity Boys Track Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Voudrie, Dan 7th Grade Boys Basketball Head Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Wargo, Jason Boys Swimming Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year

Wyrick, Samantha BGMS Cheerleading Assistant Volunteer BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Porter Township School Corporation

School Board Meeting

November 14, 2024

Personnel Report Page 1 of 2

Appointments

Extra-Curricular



Clemens, Jade Special Ed Teacher BGE

2/25/25 through end of 

school year

Hamill, Samantha 5th Grade Teacher BGE

2/11/25 through end of 

school year

Johnston, Jessica 1st Grade Teacher PLE

3/31/25 through end of 

school year

Ritchie, Jolie
Head Coach: MS Academic Team & Jr. 

Social Studies Academic Team
BGMS 2024-2025 School Year

Anderson, Blake Special Ed Teacher's Aide BGHS 10/6/2025

Rate Adjustment

Classified

Leaves

Certified

Extra-Curricular

Resignations

Porter Township School Corporation

School Board Meeting

November 14, 2024

Personnel Report Page 2 of 2



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

Minutes of the Regular School Board Meeting, Porter Township School Corporation Board of School Trustees 
October 10, 2024 | 5:30 pm CST 

 
*The following is a partial transcript of the meeting.  A recording of the actual meeting is available at Central Office and is kept on file for 

approximately 5 months after the date of the meeting.  Approval of this transcript as official minutes will be at the next regular meeting of 
the Board of School Trustees. 

 
Board Members Present: Dr. Natalie Wargo, Lilann Sgouros, and Jeannette Skibbie 
Board Members Absent: Eric McGinty and Mary Harlow 
Staff Members Present: Dr. Stacey Schmidt, Superintendent, Ben Parrish, Assistant Superintendent, Kathleen Smith, CFO, 
Laura Scott, Executive Assistant, and Jacquelyn Pillar, Corporation Attorney 
There were no community members in attendance. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Dr. Natalie Wargo, President, 5:30 pm 

 A. Pledge of Allegiance 

 B. Welcome Visitors 

2. AGENDA ADJUSTMENTS – Dr. Stacey Schmidt | None 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT | There were no public comments 

4. CONSENT AGENDA – Dr. Schmidt   

 A.  Personnel Report 

 B. Board Minutes 

  1. 9.12.24 Special Meeting, Public Hearing 

  2. 9.12.24 Regular Meeting 

 C. Payroll and Claim Dockets 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval of the Consent Agenda as presented in the board packet, consisting of board 

 meeting minutes, payroll and claim dockets, and the following items listed on the personnel report:  

      

Appointments Name Position Location Effective Date 

Certified Filbert, Abigail Applied Skills Teacher PLE 10/14/2024 

Classified Pelc, Jennifer Special Ed Aide PLE 9/17/2024 

  Rowland, Miranda Special Ed Aide PLE 10/7/2024 

  Windsor, Holly Special Ed Aide PLE 9/17/2024 

Extra-Curricular Allen, Carlie 7th Grade Girls Volleyball Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Belleville, Paul 
Games Club, Band Performance & 
Contests, Pep Band BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Chant, John 
Social Studies Academic Team, 
Social Studies Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Davis, Kelly 8th Grade Girls Volleyball Coach BGMS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Davis, Stacy Fall Drama, Spring Drama BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Eleftheri, Linda 
P.E. Department Chair, 6th Grade 
Girls Volleyball Head Coach BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Eleftheri, Loucas 
6th Grade Girls Volleyball Asst. 
Coach Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Fortenberry, Ember 9th Grade Class Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Gibbs, Jennifer Natural Helpers Co-Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

  Janesheski, Troy 

Science Fair Co-Sponsor, National 
Honor Society Co-Sponsor, Spell 
Bowl Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Krause, Karen Student Council Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Loving, Sheryl 10th Grade Class Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  McGinley, Justine 

STEM Club, Science Fair Co-Sponsor, 
11th Grade Class Co-Sponsor, 
Science Academic Team BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Mikulich, Ginger 
Science Fair Co-Sponsor, Science 
Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Moreno, Tamitha 12th Grade Class Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Saco, Melissa 11th Grade Class Co-Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Sarnowski, Katie 
Academic Team Head Coach, Math 
Academic Team BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Sherman, Kathy Media Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Swan-Caratini, Jori 
English Academic Team, English 
Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Tauber, Anthony Natural Helpers Co-Sponsor BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Taylor, Robert 
Varsity Cross Country Asst, 
Volunteer BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Thill, Rollie 
National Honor Society Co-Sponsor, 
Math Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  Trapana, Thomas 
Yearbook, Business Department 
Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

  

Welbourne-Swetalla, 
Athena 

Fine Arts Academic Chair, Choir 
Performance & Contests, Swing 
Choir, Music Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

Extra-Curricular Westerman, Ivette 
Spanish Club, Key Club, Foreign 
Language Department Chair BGHS 2024-2025 School Year 

Resignations         

Certified Watkin, Jayne Special Ed Teacher PLE 10/4/2024 

Classified Felde, Tonya Special Ed Teacher's Aide PLE 9/6/2024 

  Shepard, Samantha Special Ed Teacher's Aide PLE 9/27/2024 

 

  A motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There 

 was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

5. FINANCIAL REPORT – Mrs. Kathleen Smith 

 A.  Financial Report 

 B.  Fund Report 

 C. Monthly Fund Transfer Reports 

6. BUSINESS 

 A. Tentative Agreement – Teacher Collective Bargaining Agreement – Dr. Schmidt 

  Through bargaining, the following terms have been agreed to: 

   Starting base salary moves to $49,475.00 

   Qualifying teachers (evaluation rating and experience) will see a compensation increase of $780.00 

   Adding a Girls Varsity Wrestling coach to the list of available extra-curriculars 

 B. Approve Administrative Compensation Increases and Contract Extensions – Dr. Schmidt 



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended contract extensions and compensation increases for Administrators that align with 

 Collective Bargaining, as presented in the board packet.  A motion to approve these compensation increases and 

 contract extensions was made by Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was no discussion 

 and the motion carried 3-0. 

 C. Approve Classified Compensation Increases and Wage Schedule – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval of compensation increases for our classified staff, as presented in the board 

 packet.  A motion to approve these compensation increases and wage schedule was made by Lilann Sgouros, 

 seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 D. Contract Considerations – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval of one contract with our food service merchant system, EMS Linq, LLC.  A 

 motion to approve this contract was made by Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was no 

 discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 E. Approve Fundraisers – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval for an Angel Tree fundraiser at BGE.  A motion to approve this fundraiser 

 was made by Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-

 0. 

 F. Accept Donations – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval of generous donations from Indiana Farm Bureau, Arctic Engineering, 

 Porter-Starke Services, and Boone Grove Christian Church.  A motion to accept these donations was made by 

 Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 G. Approve Overnight Field Trips – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval of Natural Helpers’ upcoming overnight field trip.  A motion to approve this 

 field trip was made by Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was no discussion and the motion 

 carried 3-0. 

 H. Approve Transfer Students for the 2024-2025 School Year – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended approval of one 8th grade student who meets the qualifications for enrollment.  A 

 motion to approve this transfer student was made by Lilann Sgouros, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie.  There was 

 no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

I. Adopt Resolution #1024-300 – Determine Need for Projects – Dr. Schmidt 

 Adoption of this resolution is required by statute – the board must determine the need for the projects.  A 

 motion to adopt resolution 1024-300 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no 

 discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 J. Adopt Resolution #1024-301 – Approving Form of Second Amendment to Lease – Dr. Schmidt 

  When funding projects through lease financing, this resolution is required to amend the lease to increase the 

 lease rental due from the Corporation.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-301 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, 

 seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 K. Adopt Resolution #1024-302 – Reapproving Building Corporation – Dr. Schmidt 

  In order for the Building Corporation, which is a not-for-profit Indiana Corporation, to issue tax-exempt bonds, 

 they must be approved by the School Board in order to issue the tax-exempt bonds on behalf of the School 

 Corporation.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-302 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann 

 Sgouros.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 L. Adopt Resolution #1024-303 – Ordinance or Resolution for Appropriations & Tax Rates – Mrs. Smith 



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

  Mrs. Smith recommended adoption of this resolution for the tax rate for our 2025 budget.  A motion to adopt 

 resolution 1024-303 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no discussion and 

 the motion carried 3-0.  

 M. Adopt Resolution #1024-304 – Adjust or Reduce Budget 2025 – Mrs. Smith 

  Mrs. Smith recommended adoption of this resolution, which will allow her to adjust anything pertaining to our 

 1782 notice after our budget has been approved.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-304 was made by 

 Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 N. Adopt Resolution #1024-305 – 2025 Bus Replacement Plan – Mrs. Smith 

  Mrs. Smith recommended approval of this bus replacement plan resolution.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-

 305 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no discussion and the motion 

 carried 3-0. 

 O. Adopt Resolution #1024-306 – 2025 Capital Projects – Mrs. Smith 

  Mrs. Smith recommended approval of this resolution, which allows us to adopt our capital projects for the next 3 

 years.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-306 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  

 There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 P. Adopt Resolution #1024-307 – Transfer from Education Fund to Operations Fund – Mrs. Smith 

  Mrs. Smith recommended adoption of this resolution, which will allow us to transfer up to 15% from our 

 education fund to operations fund.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-307 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, 

 seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 Q. Adopt Resolution #1024-308 – Section 125 Flexible Benefit Plan – Mrs. Smith 

  Mrs. Smith recommended adoption of this resolution, which relates to our ability to do section 125 flexible 

 spending.  A motion to adopt resolution 1024-308 was made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  

 There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

 R. Accept Bid from Total Technology for PTSC Student iPads – Dr. Schmidt 

  Dr. Schmidt recommended acceptance of a bid from Total Technology to purchase our old student iPads for a flat 

 rate.  We will use the money towards the lease payments on our new iPads.  A motion to accept the bid was 

 made by Jeannette Skibbie, seconded by Lilann Sgouros.  There was no discussion and the motion carried 3-0. 

7.  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – Mr. Parrish 

  Mr. Parrish provided updates from each building: 

   BGHS – Mrs. Kennedy won September teacher of the month – congratulations!  Fall athletics are   

  wrapping up; girls soccer has their sectional game this week on the new field.      

  Volleyball sectionals will be next Tuesday at Andrean and football has a game on Friday versus Lake  

  Station.  Band and Choir concerts were wonderful – the new stage lighting looked great!  PSAT is going  

  on next week for grades 9-11. 

   BGMS – Expressed their gratitude for having Officer Chavez and Mrs. Kenning in their building – they  

  make such impactful relationships and it is very appreciated. 

   BGE – Congrats to the student-of-the-month recipients!  4th graders are currently on their trip to Camp  

  Tecumseh – big thanks to the 4th grade team for putting that trip together for our students! 

   PLE – Preparing for parent/teacher conferences next week and their annual trunk-or-treat on Oct. 18th. 

8. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT – Dr. Schmidt 

  Some celebrations: 

    Our Director of Food Services, Tonia Batesole, earned a grant to start a new Fresh Fruits & Veggies  

  program, which allows our kids to try various local fruits and vegetables they might not otherwise have  

  access to. 



 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

  Congratulations to Porter Lakes Elementary, which was recently named a National Blue-Ribbon School! 

  Regarding Indiana diploma changes, a new comment period has opened up. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

  A motion to adjourn was made by Lilann Sgouros at 5:45 pm, seconded by Jeannette Skibbie; the motion 

carried 3-0. 

 















































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 AGREEMENT 

 

 BETWEEN THE 

 

 

 

 BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES OF 

 

 PORTER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL CORPORATION 

 

 

 AND THE 

 

 

 ASSOCIATION OF PORTER TOWNSHIP EDUCATORS 

 

 

 

 

  

July 1, 2023 to and including June 30, 2025 

 



 

 

 

 

 

N E G O T I A T I N G    T E A M S 

 

FOR THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Stacey Schmidt, Ph.D. - Superintendent 

Ben Parrish, Assistant Superintendent 

Kathleen Smith, Business Manager 

Cheryl ZicJacquelyn Pillar, Legal Counsel 

 

FOR THE ASSOCIATION OF PORTER TOWNSHIP EDUCATORS 

 

Jori Swan Caratini – President 

Brittney Birky 

Kim Corman 

Wendi Heckler 

Katie Sarnowski 

Nicole Garcia 

Chris Psimos 
 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Natalie Wargo, D.D.S. - President 

 Eric McGinty Lilann Sgouros – Vice President  

Laura ChavezMary Harlow  – Secretary  

Mary Harlow  - Member 

Lilann Sgouros – Eric McGinty, Member 

Jeannette Skibbie – Member  

 

 

OFFICERS OF THE ASSOCIATION OF PORTER TOWNSHIP EDUCATORS 

 

 Jori Swan Caratini - President 

Chris Psimos - Vice President 

Kim Corman  - Secretary 

 Rollie Thill - Treasurer 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

   ARTICLE                                           TOPIC                                          PAGE 
 

   

 1 RECOGNITION          1 

 2 LEAVES OF ABSENCE         1 

 3 INSURANCE          6  

 4 RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE         7 

 5 SALARY, WAGES AND RELATED PROVISIONS    9 

 6 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE        12 

 7 EFFECT OF THE AGREEMENT        14 

 8 STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT/TERM       15 

9 ATTESTATION                                                    15 
 

APPENDIX A           ECA SCHEDULE 

  
         

   

    



 

1 

 

 ARTICLE 1:  RECOGNITION 

 

A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association of Porter Township Educators as the                         

exclusive representative of certificated employees in the following bargaining unit: 

 

All certificated personnel employed by the Porter Township School 

Corporation, except Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum 

Director, Principals, Assistant Principals, full time Athletic Director, Substitute 

Teachers, Central Office Administrative Assistant, Dean of Students, Home 

School Advisor and persons who teach less than three periods in a regular school 

day. 

 

B. Definitions: 

 

1. The term “Association” when used in this Agreement shall refer to the 

Association of Porter Township Educators and its authorized officers, agents 

and representatives. 

2. The term “Board” when used in this Agreement shall refer to the Board of 

School Trustees of Porter Township School Corporation and its authorized 

officers, agents and representatives. 

3. The term "day" when used in this Agreement shall be a weekday, except if it 

falls on a school holiday or during a school recess. 

4. The term “employee” or "teacher" when used in this Agreement shall refer to a 

member of the bargaining unit 

5. The term "school administrator(s)" or comparable language when used in this 

Agreement shall refer to a School Corporation employee who is certificated 

under the statutes relating to the licensing of teachers and administrators and 

who is assigned to an administrative   position within the definition set forth in 

I.C. 20-29-2-19 and as amended or modified from time to time by the Indiana 

General Assembly.   

6. The term "School Corporation" when used in the Agreement shall refer to the 

Porter Township School Corporation. 

 

 ARTICLE 2:  LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 

A. Sick Leave.  Each teacher shall be granted ten (10) days each year without loss of 

compensation for absence from work on account of: 1) personal illness (“Sick Leave”) 

and/or 2) emergency illness, surgery or accident involving a member of the teacher’s 

immediate family (spouse, child, or parent) or  member of the teacher’s family who 

resides with the teacher necessitating the attendance of the teacher (“Family Illness”).  

Sick Leave/Family Illness Days shall not be used for doctor or dentist appointments that 

could be scheduled outside the normal school day/calendar.  

   

• A teacher absent for three (3) or more consecutive days for personal illness shall be 

required to produce a physician statement (e.g., doctor note, after visit summary, etc.) 

of medical necessity of the teacher’s absence. 

 



 

2 

 

• A teacher absent for two (2) or more consecutive days for Family Illness shall, upon 

request of the school employer, provide a physician’s statement (e.g., doctor note, after 

visit summary, etc.) verifying the nature of such illness, surgery or accident. 

 

1. Accumulated Sick Leave Days.  Unused sick leave days shall accumulate from year 

to year to a maximum accumulation of two hundred (200) days (“Accumulated Sick 

Leave Days”) to be used for the teacher’s personal illness except where otherwise 

provided in Section H, Section I and/or Section J below.  Central Office shall 

maintain the official record of Accumulated Sick Leave Days. 

 

2. A teacher with over one hundred twenty (120) Accumulated Sick Leave Days may 

request to convert one (1) Accumulated Sick Leave Day to a Personal Business 

Leave day, three (3) times in their career, subject to a maximum of four (4) Personal 

Business Leave days in a year. 

 

3. Use during summer session assignment.  A teacher engaged to teach a course during 

the summer session will be allowed to use one (1) day of Accumulated Sick Leave 

during the summer session, subject to the same conditions as noted above.   
 

4. Concurrent use during leave under FMLA.  If the absence during which a teacher 

uses Sick Leave/Family Illness Day(s) is an FMLA leave qualifying event as 

provided in Board Policy 3430.01, the absence will count toward the teacher’s 

twelve (12) week maximum leave allowance.     

  

B. Leave due to Assault.  A teacher assaulted by a student or parent while on duty either in 

the classroom, or the playground, or serving in an official position at a school sponsored 

function, shall not have sick days deducted if the assault warrants medical attention or 

hospitalization.  The number of hours or days needed to recover must be authorized by 

a doctor licensed to practice medicine in Indiana.  The Board, at its own expense, may 

require another licensed physician’s examination and determination. 
 

C. Personal Business Leave.  Except as provided in Article 2(A)(2) above, each teacher 

shall be entitled to three (3) days for the transaction of personal business and/or the 

conduct of personal or civic affairs during each year of such employment.  Any unused 

Personal Business Leave days will be converted to Accumulated Sick Leave Days.  A 

written statement on forms provided by the Central Administrative Office shall be 

submitted to the Superintendent of Schools via the building principal, setting forth the 

reason and necessity which shall be the cause of such absence.  A sufficient reason is 

personal business and is left to the subjective determination of each individual teacher 

except as provided below.   
 

1. Use Surrounding School Break.  The Association and the Board strongly urge 

teachers not to request Personal Business Leave on the day before or the day 

after any break in the regular school schedule.  Personal Business Leave may 

not be taken on the day before or the day after any break in the regular school 

schedule without the prior approval of the Superintendent by a teacher who has 

been absent for an unsubstantiated Sick Leave/Family Illness Day or 



 

3 

 

unapproved Personal Business Leave day on the day before or the day after any 

break in the regular school schedule twice in three years.  A teacher requesting 

to use Personal Business Leave under such circumstances must submit a written 

request, including a description of the exceptional circumstances necessitating 

the request, to the Superintendent as far in advance as possible but in no event 

less than two (2) weeks prior to the requested day. 

 

2. Use on Professional Development Days.  Personal Business Leave days may not 

be taken on professional development days without the prior approval of the 

Superintendent.  A teacher requesting to use Personal Business Leave on a 

professional development day must submit a written request and include in the 

request a description of the exceptional circumstances necessitating the request, 

to the Superintendent at least two (2) weeks prior to the professional 

development day.  

 

D. Bereavement Leave.  Each teacher will be granted bereavement leave without loss of 

compensation as follows: 

 

1. In each case of death within the immediate family (spouse, children, parents, 

sibling, parent-in-law, child-in-law, grandchild (all including step) or any person 

who at the time of death had established the teacher’s home as his/her permanent 

residence) the teacher shall be granted a leave of five (5) school days  

2.   In the case of death of an extended family member (grandparent, aunt, uncle, 

niece, nephew, sibling-in-law), the teacher shall be granted a leave of three (3) 

school days  

3. In the case of death of the following (cousin, close friend), the teacher shall be 

granted a leave of one (1) school day 

4. The Superintendent, in his/her sole discretion, may grant additional bereavement 

leave with or without pay.  The Superintendent’s decision cannot be grieved. 
 

The leave shall begin on a date within a reasonable time from date of death. 
 

E.        Jury Leave. A teacher called for jury duty shall receive full compensation but shall return 

to the corporation any pay he/she receives for jury duty.  The teacher is allowed to keep 

any mileage money he may receive for serving on a jury. 

 

F. Professional Leave.  Professional leave may be granted during the contractual year upon 

request in writing to the Building Principal and the Superintendent, without loss of 

compensation for such absence.  The written request for the leave must be in the 

Principal’s Office ten (10) days before the Professional Day is contemplated to be taken.  

The Board agrees that professional leave days may be granted for visitations to other 

school corporations or educational institutions for the purpose of observing instructional   

techniques or other instructionally-oriented programs.  The Board further agrees that the 

professional leave day may be granted for seminars, conventions, or workshops in the 

teacher’s license subject area. 

 

 



 

4 

 

G. Association Leave.  The Association President or a designated Association official shall 

have an additional three (3) days of personal leave to be used strictly for Association 

business.  The cost of the substitute teacher shall be paid for in equal shares by the 

Association and the Board.  The President of the Association or a designee of the 

President shall be given five (5) days without loss of pay for the purpose of promoting 

mutual educational goals supported by teachers and Board during the time the 

Legislature is in session upon approval by the Superintendent.  It is also agreed that 

these goals would be known to all parties. 

 

H. Family and Medical Leave.  By reference, Board Policy 3430 (Leaves of Absence) and 

Board Policy 3430.01 (Family and Medical Leaves of Absence [29 USC 2601, et seq.]) 

are incorporated herein as supplemented hereafter for teachers: 

 

1. Paternity Leave Pay.  A teacher, whose spouse has given birth to a child, who is 

otherwise eligible for and has been granted leave under FMLA for reason A-1 

may request to use up to ten (10) consecutive Accumulated Sick Leave Days 

during the period of the FMLA leave.  The remainder of the leave will be without 

pay and subject to the normal conditions of leave under FMLA.   

 

2. Extended Pregnancy/Maternity Leave.  A teacher who is pregnant and/or has 

given birth to a child is eligible for an extended leave of absence as provided 

below.   

 

a. Period of Leave.  A teacher shall be granted a leave of absence any time 

between the commencement of her pregnancy and one (1) year following 

the birth of the child. 

b. Notice.  The teacher shall notify the Superintendent of  such leave at least 

sixty (60) days prior to such leave of the expected date of leave and the 

date of return from such leave.  The teacher shall keep the Superintendent 

informed of any change in condition affecting such leave.  She shall 

provide certification of the date of any extended leave due to physical 

disability: 1) prior to the date of birth; and 2) six (6) weeks subsequent 

to the date of birth, if applicable. 

c. Pay during Leave.  All or part of such Extended Pregnancy/Maternity 

Leave for which the teacher has provided a physician certification that 

she is not capable of performing duties due to physical disability may be 

charged to the teacher’s Accumulated Sick Leave Days at her discretion.   

The teacher may also request to use up to ten (10) Accumulated Sick 

Leave Days for the period of the leave commencing immediately 

following the later of the end of the sixth (6th) week after the date of birth 

or the date   the teacher’s physician certifies that the teacher is capable 

of physically performing/returning to her duties.  The remainder of the 

leave will be without pay, but the teacher will remain eligible to continue 

coverage under the group health insurance program provided she timely 

pays the full premium cost. 

 



 

5 

 

d. Extended Leave Concurrent with FMLA.  The period of the extended 

leave prior to the date of birth during which the teacher has provided 

certification of disability and the period of the extended leave after the 

date of birth shall be counted toward the teacher’s twelve (12) week 

annual FMLA leave allowance and shall run concurrently with leave 

under FMLA for which the teacher is eligible. 

 

3. Extended Adoptive Leave.  A teacher who has adopted a child is eligible for an 

extended leave of absence as provided below.  

 

a. Period of Leave.  A teacher shall be granted a leave of absence for a 

period of up to one (1) school year commencing with the date the child 

is physically placed with the teacher-parent. 

b. Notice.  The teacher shall notify the Superintendent of his/her intent 

upon initial application for the adoption.  The teacher shall notify the 

Superintendent of the expected date of leave and the date of return from 

such leave.  The teacher shall keep the Superintendent informed of any 

change in circumstance affecting such leave.   

c. Pay during Leave.  The teacher may request to use up to forty (40) 

consecutive Accumulated Sick Leave Days for the period of the leave.  

The remainder of the leave will be without pay, but the teacher will 

remain eligible to continue coverage under the group health insurance 

program provided he/she timely pays the full premium cost.  

d. Extended Leave Concurrent with FMLA.  The period of the extended 

leave shall be counted toward the teacher’s twelve (12) week annual 

FMLA leave allowance and shall run concurrently with leave under 

FMLA for which the teacher is eligible. 

 

I. The Superintendent, in his/her sole discretion, may grant a teacher’s request to use 

Accumulated Sick Leave Days for an illness/injury of a member of the teacher’s 

immediate family (spouse, child, parent) not otherwise addressed in Section H above.  

The Superintendent’s decision cannot be grieved. 

 

J. Sick Day Donation.  Teachers may donate up to two (2) Accumulated Sick Leave Days 

per occurrence to another teacher who, in the case of extended illness, has exhausted 

his/her current year Sick Leave Days and Personal Business Leave Days and his/her 

Accumulated Sick Leave Days.  If the teacher suffers another medical occurrence in a 

given school year, teachers may donate up to an additional two (2) Accumulated Sick 

Leave Days to that teacher.  The maximum number of Accumulated Sick Leave Days 

that may be donated to a given teacher in a given school year is sixty (60).  A request 

for such donations will be made through the President of the Association.  The 

requesting teacher will confirm the request through a physician’s certificate provided to 

the President of the Association and the Superintendent.  With the consent of the teacher 

making the request, the Association President will convey the request to teachers and 

will circulate an appropriate form among teachers.  Completed donation forms will be 

submitted to the Superintendent by the President of the Association. 



 

6 

 

 

K. A part-time teacher shall be allowed paid leave benefits on a pro-rata basis rounded to 

the nearest ½ day increment. 

 

L. The Superintendent, in his/her sole discretion, may grant a teacher’s request for an 

unpaid leave of absence.  A teacher granted an unpaid leave who participates in the 

School Corporation’s group health insurance plan at the time of request may continue 

on the plan provided he/she timely pays 1) his/her share of the premium in any month 

in which the teacher works at least one day and/or 2)  the entire premium in any month 

in which the teacher does not work.  The Superintendent’s decision cannot be grieved. 

It is a breach of contract for a contracted employee not to report for work when no leave 

is applicable or approved. 

 

 ARTICLE 3:  INSURANCE 

 

A. Life Insurance.  Each full time teaching employee will, upon payment of one (1) dollar, 

be given a term life insurance policy with double indemnity.  The amount of each 

teacher's policy shall be Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($75,000.00).  However, it is 

understood that the face amount may be reduced on account of any age limitation set 

forth in the Policy of Insurance. 

 

B. Health and Dental Insurance.  Each full time teaching employee participating for the 

full twelve months in Porter County School Employees’ Insurance Trust shall receive 

80% of the total cost of either a Single or a Family Type Membership for health 

coverage.  This agreement permits married teachers to take a single membership each 

but does not require the Board to make cash reimbursement to any employee who 

chooses not to enroll in this medical benefit.  Those teachers on Medicare shall have 

80% of their monthly premium paid by the Board but not to exceed 80% of the trust 

policy.  In addition, the Board agrees to pay 80% of the cost of a single or a family 

membership in the Porter County School Employees’ Insurance Trust for dental 

coverage including orthodontics.  Coverage for eligible teachers shall begin September 

1st and will continue through and including the following August 31st for returning 

teachers and teachers who resign or retire at the end of the teacher work year.  Coverage  

for a teacher who resigns or is terminated before the end of the teacher work year  will 

terminate effective as of the last day of the month of employment. 

 

C. Long Term Disability Insurance.  Each contract teacher shall be covered by a long term 

disability insurance program paid for by the Board that provides for a minimum benefit 

of two-thirds (2/3) salary to age sixty-five (65).  If current rates do not exceed $100.00 

per average teacher, the elimination period shall be 90 days.  If over $100.00, the 

elimination period shall be 120 days. 

 

D. Vision Care.  The Board shall provide, without cost to the teacher, full coverage for the 

teacher and dependents, in the Indiana Vision Service Plan, Plan C with a $10.00 

deductible. 

 



 

7 

 

E.   A full time employee is defined as one who works 30 hours or more per week, for 

regular wages or salary.  A full time employee after ratification of this contract is defined 

as one who works 30 hours or more per week, for regular wages or salary.  Effective 

August 1, 1999, "full time" shall be in accord with the definition of that term as decided 

by the Porter County Trust.  No person who was insured by the school corporation’s 

insurance plan prior to August 1999 shall be disqualified from eligibility for health and 

dental insurance because of a change in the definition of "full time." 

F.   The employer agrees to make available to the Association all demographic and claims 

data which is available to the insurance trust.  The employer further agrees that no 

changes in the insurance program will be made unless approved by the members of the 

bargaining unit.  

 

G. A teacher may participate in this school corporation’s flexible benefits plan.  The Board 

shall bear the costs and fees associated with the plan.  Such plan shall be solely 

determined and adopted by the Board under the provisions of Section 125 of the Internal 

Revenue Service Code.  The vendor shall be selected after proposals are solicited and 

received from at least three providers.  The Board shall select the best provider.  The 

plan will provide for the following benefits, through salary reduction agreements:  The 

employee share of group insurance premiums; medical care reimbursement accounts; 

dependent care assistance accounts; and other benefits provided through the plan. 

 

If allowed by the school corporation’s plan and approved by statute and the I.R.S., 

retirees shall be allowed to participate in the plan. 

 

ARTICLE 4:  RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE 

 

A. Teacher Retirement Fund.  All beginning teachers and teachers teaching for the first 

time in Indiana are required by law to become members of the Indiana State Teachers' 

Retirement Fund (TRF).  The teacher’s required 3% contribution to TRF through and 

including the October 20, 2023 payroll shall be paid by the teacher processed as a 

payroll deduction; thereafter, commencing with the November 5, 2023 payroll, the 

school corporation will pay the teacher’s required 3% contribution to TRF. 

 

B.  Regular Severance Pay.  

 

1. This Section applies only to teachers employed for the 2003/2004 school year. 

 

2. An eligible teacher who resigns or retires from the Porter Township Schools: 

 

a. In good standing and not as the result of pending disciplinary action; 

b. At age 55 or older; 

c. With ten or more years of service with this school corporation, and 

d. He/she resigns or retires from this school corporation  

 

shall receive $60 per day for one half of their accumulated sick leave days, but 

not to exceed $6,000.00. This amount shall be reduced by the value of the school 



 

8 

 

corporation contribution from February 1, 2005 through the conclusion of the 

2009-2010 school year to the tax sheltered annuity (one percent (1%) of the base 

salary including lanes and experience of each participating teacher to a 

Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association (VEBA) account). 

 

3. This amount shall be paid to a post-retirement 403(b) account by February 15 in 

the calendar year following retirement. 

 

C. Supplemental Retirement 

 

1. This Section applies only to teachers employed for the 2003/2004 school year.     

 

2. Any teacher retiring at or after age 55 with 10 years of service to Porter 

Township School and before becoming eligible for health benefits under Part A 

of the Medicare Act will receive, if request is made to the Superintendent at the 

time of retirement, an annual cash payment of $3,000 paid to the employee’s 

individual VEBA account until the retiree becomes eligible for health benefits 

under Part A of the Medicare Act.  The initial payment will be made in 

September of the following school year.  These amounts will be payable from a 

voluntary employee’s beneficiary association (“VEBA”).       

 

3. The allowance per retired teacher will be increased by 3% each year after the   

retired teacher’s initial year payment of $3,000. 

   

4. Any teacher wishing to access this program shall notify the Superintendent in 

writing of his or her intention to retire prior to February 1 of the                teacher’s 

final year of service.  The retiring teacher must be 55 before September 1 of the 

following school year to access retirement benefits under this provision.  For the 

year in which the teacher becomes eligible for Medicare, the amount paid to the 

teacher shall be the pro rata portion of the year from August 1 until the date of 

Medicare eligibility. 

 

5.    The teacher who retires under the supplement provided for in Article 4(C) will 

be allowed to remain in the Corporation’s group medical, vision and dental 

insurance until the retiree becomes eligible for health benefits under Part A of 

the Medicare Act provided the retiree pays the full cost of the insurance premium 

on a timely basis.  The retiree’s individual VEBA account (if any) may be used 

to pay the insurance premium. 

 

D.         Special Pay. 

 

1.       This Section applies only to teachers employed for the 2003/2004 school year. 

 

2. Any teacher who leaves the Porter Township Schools with thirteen (13) or more 

consecutive years of service to the Porter Township Schools shall receive, upon 

request, $10.00 per day for each day of accumulated sick leave.  It is agreed that 



 

9 

 

a teacher receiving regular severance may not receive pay pursuant to this 

special pay provision.  Contractual or other leaves approved by the Board shall 

not interrupt consecutive years of service. 
 

3. Any teacher who dies while in the service of this corporation shall have his/her 

beneficiary (beneficiaries), as listed on his/her Term Life Insurance Form, paid 

thirty-five dollars ($35.00) per day for unused sick days at the time of death. 

 

ARTICLE 5:  SALARY, WAGES AND RELATED PROVISIONS 
 

A.        New Teacher Starting Base Salary.  New teachers without any experience will be hired in 

at the district’s then current base salary.  The 20243-20254 base salary is $49,4758,750 

(full-time assignment).  The Superintendent may establish the salary of a new teacher with 

prior teaching experience (as described below) upon evaluation of training, degrees, and 

effectiveness at a rate within the salary range identified below.  No new hire will receive a 

rate of pay higher than any current teacher who has the same years of 

experience/certification, except: that the rate of a current teacher who did not receive a full 

base salary increase in any year(s) will not be considered as a comparative; and 2) that in 

the event the administration has exhausted options to engage a qualified candidate to meet 

the academic needs of students, after consultation with the Association President, the 

Superintendent may establish a new hire’s salary at a rate that is up to $2,500 higher than 

that of a current teacher with the same years of experience/certification, without 

consideration of a teacher described in subpart (1) above. 
   

For purposes of determining years of experience credit to establish a new teacher’s base 

salary: 

 

1. Years of experience credit shall be given for each year of military service up to a 

maximum of four (4) years.  One (1) full year of military service is necessary to 

qualify for a year of experience. 

 

2. Years of experience credit may be given for outside full-time teaching experience 

at the elementary, secondary, or post-secondary level in public schools that receive 

local tax dollars provided said school is certified by the appropriate state agency or 

department.   
 

B. Salary Range.  The school corporation’s salary range for the  2023-2024 school year 

will be $46,000 - $81,889 , exclusive of increases herein provided, and for the 2024-

2025 school year will be $48,750 – [TBD through 2024 negotiations]$82,889, exclusive 

of increases herein provided.   
 

C. Compensation Plan.  
 

1. Eligibility:  In order to be eligible to receive any increase in compensation in a 

school  year, a teacher must be employed with Porter Township School 

Corporation at the time the information necessary to calculate distribution is 

known and have: a) completed the immediately prior  school year at  Porter 

Township School Corporation; and b) returned to teach at the Porter Township 

School Corporation for the  then current school year.  Teachers who receive a 



 

10 

 

performance evaluation rating of “improvement necessary” or “ineffective” are 

ineligible for any increase in compensation. 
 

2. 2023-2024 Compensation Plan.  The compensation plan utilizes the following 

categories to determine salary increases for eligible teachers (prorata for less 

than full-time teachers).  Salary increases will be retroactively applied within 

four pay periods after ratification. 

 

a. Evaluation rating:  Each teacher who receives a performance evaluation 

rating from Porter Township School Corporation for the immediately 

preceding school year of highly effective or effective will receive a $700 

salary increase. 

 

b. Experience:  [The salary increase for experience is to reduce the gap.]  Each 

teacher paid for 120 or more days in a certificated position for the Porter 

Township School Corporation in the immediately prior school year will 

receive an increase in base salary of: 

 

i. teachers with 1 year of experience:   $2,200  

ii. teachers with 2-34 years of experience:   $1,150 

iii. teachers with 35 or more years of experience:  $   300 

 

Gap reduction: 

 

 Returning full-time 

teachers 

New with experience increase 

Salary range $46,000 - $81,889 $48,200 - $82,189 

Average 

Salary 

$63,944 $65,195 

Gap $17,944 $16,995 

  Gap reduced by $949 

Reference 

New range $48,200 to $82,189 ($46,000 + 2,200); ($81,889 + 300) 

New average  $65,195 ($48,200 + $82,189) / 2 

New gap $16,995 ($65,195 - $48,200) 

Gap reduced $     949 (17,944 - $16,995) 

 

c. Redistribution: Based on anticipated evaluation results, the parties believe 

that all funds will be distributed and that no redistribution will be necessary 

for salary increases and as there is a stated  stipend pot, no redistribution will 

be necessary. However, in the event that there are funds that were otherwise 

allocated for salary increase, those funds will be equally redistributed to all 

teachers rated effective or highly effective.  The redistribution will be paid 

as a stipend in the last payroll of the school year. 

 

3. 2024-2025 Compensation Plan.  The compensation plan utilizes the following 



 

11 

 

categories to determine salary increases for eligible teachers (prorata for less than full-

time teachers).  Salary increases will be retroactively applied within four pay periods 

after Board approval. 

 

a. Evaluation rating:  Each teacher who receives a performance evaluation 

rating from Porter Township School Corporation for the immediately 

preceding school year of highly effective or effective will receive a $680 

salary increase. 

 

b. Experience:  Each teacher paid for 120 or more days in a certificated position 

for the Porter Township School Corporation in the immediately prior school 

year will receive an increase in base salary of $100. 

 

c. Redistribution: Based on anticipated evaluation results, the parties believe 

that all funds will be distributed and that no redistribution will be necessary 

for salary increases and as there is a stated  stipend pot, no redistribution will 

be necessary. However, in the event that there are funds that were otherwise 

allocated for salary increase, those funds will be equally redistributed to all 

teachers rated effective or highly effective.  The redistribution will be paid 

as a stipend in the last payroll of the school year. 

 

  

 

3. 2024-2025 Compensation Plan.  The 2024-2025 compensation plan, starting 

base salary and funding will be negotiated during the 2024 negotiation season. 

 

D. Method of Salary Payment:  The parties agree that all teachers will be paid on the basis 

of 24 equal pays, subject to adjustments based on compensation increases under this 

Agreement.   

               

E.  Extended Contracts.   The rate of pay for extended contracts shall be the teacher’s daily 

rate times the number of days included in the extended contract.  The calculation shall 

be made in the following manner:  teacher salary/number of days in the regular contract 

year = teacher’s daily rate; this daily rate will be multiplied by the number of days the 

extended contract extends beyond the regular contract year.  

 

F. Supplemental Service Contract.  A teacher of summer school and adult education 

classes shall be engaged under a Supplemental Service Teachers' Contract and shall be 

paid at an hourly rate determined by the Superintendent. [information only] 

   

G.         Extra-Curricular and Ancillary Duty Wages: 
           
            1. Those teachers supervising educationally approved Field Trips, on a non-

instruction day, shall receive a stipend of fifty dollars ($50.00) per day.  

Overnight Field Trips are exempt from this provision. 
 

2. A teacher providing non-credit instructional service which is not supported by 



 

12 

 

state funding shall receive $16.88 per hour. 

 

3. A teacher who attends professional development workshops sponsored by the 

school corporation shall be paid an hourly stipend equal to the school 

corporation’s starting base salary multiplied by .00085. 

 

4. A teacher requested by his/her principal to provide instruction during a regularly 

assigned preparation period is considered an ancillary duty which will be 

compensated as a stipend at the teacher’s hourly rate per class period covered.  

The stipend will be paid at the end of the semester. 

 

            5. A teacher requested by his/her principal to teach an on-line course outside the 

regular school day is considered an ancillary duty which will be compensated at 

the rate of $25 per hour. 

 

6. A teacher assigned to the ancillary duty of preparing instruction and assessing 

student mastery for a period of at least four (4) consecutive weeks shall receive 

a stipend of between $10 and $20 per day or another amount per day as 

determined by the Superintendent after consultation with the Association 

President.  The stipend will be paid at the conclusion of the assignment.   

 

7. Wages for all other extra-curricular duties shall be paid in accordance with the 

negotiated index attached as Appendix A. 

 

H. Other Benefits. 

 

1. Teachers who are required as part of their teaching assignment to drive personal 

automobiles shall be reimbursed for such use at the maximum deductible rate 

allowed by the IRS.  After the claim, in proper form, is submitted by the teacher, 

it will be placed upon the next regular School Board meeting claim docket and, 

if approved, paid on the next regularly scheduled pay day. 

 

2. The Board will pay the cost of statutorily required periodic expanded criminal 

history checks of teachers. 

 

ARTICLE 6:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 

A. Definitions: 

 

1. A "grievance" is a claim by one or more teachers or the Association of a 

violation, a misapplication, or a misinterpretation of the terms of this contract. 

 

2. The term "teacher" includes any individual or group of individuals within the 

bargaining unit.            

 

3. The term "day" when used in this Article shall be a weekday, except if it falls on 



 

13 

 

a school holiday or during recess. 

 

B. Three Stage Grievance Procedure. 

 

Teachers will meet with Principals in an effort to resolve an issue before filing a formal 

grievance. 

  1. First Stage - Principal 

 

   a. The first stage grievance must be filed within ten (10) days of the specific 

act which is alleged to be a violation of the terms of the collective 

bargaining agreement.  The formal grievance shall set forth the date of 

occurrence, the nature of the grievance, contractual provision(s) 

allegedly violated and the relief sought.  Within five (5) days of receipt 

of the  grievance, the principal shall establish, at a mutually agreeable 

time, a meeting to discuss the grievance.  This meeting shall take place 

within ten (10) days of the date upon which it was established.  The 

 principal shall have five (5) days following the meeting to 

indicate, on the grievance form, his or her disposition of the grievance 

and to tender it to the teacher and the Association. 

 

b.        If the Association is not satisfied with the principal’s disposition, it must 

complete a School Corporation Grievance Form and submit it to the 

Superintendent within ten (10) days of the receipt of the disposition. 

 

 2. Second Stage - Superintendent 

 

The Superintendent shall hold a meeting to hear the grievance within ten (10) 

days of receipt of the grievance.  The Superintendent shall indicate the 

disposition of the grievance within seven (7) days of the meeting and tender it 

to the teacher and the Association. 

 

  3. Third Stage - Arbitration 

 

If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of a grievance, or if no 

disposition has been made within the period provided in Stage Two, the 

grievance shall, upon motion of the Association be submitted to binding 

arbitration before an impartial arbitrator.  The Association shall serve written 

notice to the Superintendent of its intent to arbitrate by submitting a copy of its 

Request for Arbitration Panel from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation 

Service (FMCS) within twenty (20) work days after receiving the Stage Two 

answer.  The Board recognizes the right of the Association to initiate a request 

for a panel submission and that FMCS is authorized to provide such panel upon 

such request. 

 

 Following submission of a panel of arbitrators to each party by the FMCS, a 

representative of each party shall within five (5) days of receipt of said panel 



 

14 

 

cross off the names of any arbitrators who are unacceptable and number the 

names of those remaining in order of preference, with one being the first choice, 

two being the second choice and so on down the line.  Within seven (7) days of 

receipt of the panel from FMCS the two representatives shall confer either in 

person or by phone for the purpose of selecting the arbitrator.  The arbitrator 

whose names have been crossed out by either party shall not be appointed.  The 

numerical ratings of the remaining arbitrators shall be added together with the 

arbitrator who will hear the case unless that arbitrator disqualifies 

himself/herself.  In the event an arbitrator disqualifies himself/herself, the 

arbitrator with the next lower numerical rating will be requested to hear the case.  

This procedure shall be followed until an arbitrator is selected. 

 

 The conduct of all proceedings hereunder shall be in accord with the Code of 

Professional Responsibility for Arbitrators of Labor Management Disputes as 

adopted by the National Academy of Arbitrators, The American Arbitration 

Association and the FMCS.  All costs of the aforementioned proceedings shall 

be defrayed as follows:  One-half (1/2) by the teacher and/or Association and 

one- half (1/2) by the Board. 

 

 The arbitrator shall not be bound by formal rules of evidence; however, normal 

cross-examination rights will be maintained. 

 

  a. The arbitrator may not add to, subtract from, or modify the express terms 

of the collective bargaining contract. 

 

  b. No consideration will be given to any evidence, allegation, or remedy 

that had not been disclosed to the other party at lease twenty-one (21) 

days prior to the hearing. 

 

  c. The time limits will be strictly observed but may be extended by mutual 

agreement of the parties. 

 

  d. All meetings held under the terms of the grievance procedure shall be 

held in private unless mutually agreed that it is to be a public meeting. 

 

e. No reprisal or punitive action of any kind shall be taken by either party 

against either party of interest or by a participant in the grievance 

procedure by reasons of such participation.  

 

f. The record of the grievance procedure will be kept separately from the                   

 personnel files of the teacher. 

 

ARTICLE 7:  EFFECT OF THE AGREEMENT 

 

A. The parties mutually agree that the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 

represent the full and complete understanding and commitment between the parties 



 

15 

 

hereto which may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through 

the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in an amendment hereto. 

 

B. Should an Article, Section or Subsection of this Agreement be declared illegal by a court 

of competent jurisdiction, the affected Article, Section or Subsection, as the case be, 

shall be automatically deleted from this Agreement to the extent that it violates the law, 

but the remaining Articles, Sections and Subsections shall remain in full force and effect 

for the duration of the Agreement, if not effected by the deleted Article, Section or 

Subsection. 

 

ARTICLE 8: STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT 

 

The term of this Agreement is from July 1, 2023 to and including June 30, 2025, subject to 

reopener during the 2024 negotiations period for starting base salary, compensation plan and 

funding of the compensation plan for the 2024-2025 school year. This Agreement is so attested 

to by the parties whose signatures appear below. 

 

 

ARTICLE 9:  ATTESTATION 

 

The undersigned attest to the following: 

 

A. A public hearing was held on September 4 August 24, 20234 in compliance with I.C. 

20-29-6-1(b), and electronic participation from the parties and/or public was not 

permitted; and 

 

B. A public meeting was held on October 12, 2024 September 29, 2023., in compliance 

with  I.C. 20-29-6-19 to discuss the tentative agreement and electronic participation 

from the governing body and/or the public was not permitted. 

 

 

 

ASSOCIATION OF PORTER TOWNSHIP EDUCATORS      

 

Ratified on September 19, 2023September 24 , 2024. 

 

      _____________________________   

 Jori Swan-Caratini, President    

 

      _______________________________________

        

 

 _______________________________________ 

              

 

 



 

16 

 

              

 

 

              

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

 

 

  



 

17 

 

 

 

 

 PORTER TOWNSHIP SCHOOL CORPORATION 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Board approved on November 14, 2024 October 12, 2023. 

 

 

       ___________________________    

 Natalie Wargo, DDS, President     

 

 

       ___________________________     

Secretary             

 

 

      ___________________________   

Stacey Schmidt, Ph.D., Superintendent  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

2023-2025 ECA 

 

Activity Rate  Activity Rate 

   Band  

Clubs   MS Performance/Contests  $750.00 

HS Spanish $550.00  HS Performance/Contests  $1,250.00 

BGE Art $550.00  HS Pep Band $1,100.00 

MS Art $550.00  Marching Band $100.00 

HS Art $550.00    

MS Art Show $175.00  Choir  

HS Art Show $175.00  Elementary Choir $550.00 

Best Buddies Club $500.00  MS Performance/Contests $1,100.00 

Games Club $500.00  HS Performance/Contests $1,450.00 

GSA Club $500.00  HS Swing $550.00 

Key Club $850.00    

STEM Club $500.00  Drama  

   Fall $850.00 

   Spring $850.00 

Science Fair     

HS $650.00  Natural Helpers $750.00 

MS $350.00    

   PLE Yearbook $350.00 

Bowls   BGE Yearbook $350.00 

BGE Math Bowl - 4th  $415.00  MS Yearbook $400.00 

BGE Math Bowl - 5th $415.00  HS Yearbook $600.00 

BGE Spell Bowl - 4th $415.00    

BGE Spell Bowl - 5th  $415.00  NHS  

BGE Science Bowl $415.00  MS $500.00 

Spell Bowl MS $415.00  HS $930.00 

Spell Bowl HS $415.00    

   Student Council  

Academic Teams   BGE $575.00 

MS Head Coach $250.00  MS $675.00 

MS English $550.00  HS $800.00 

MS Math $550.00    

MS Science $550.00  Class Sponsor  

MS Social Studies $550.00  9th   $625.00 

HS Head Coach $300.00  10th  $725.00 

HS English $700.00  11th  $1,250.00 

HS Fine Arts $700.00  12th  $1,000.00 

HS Math $700.00    

HS Science $700.00  Department Chair  

HS Social Studies $700.00  MS $110.00 

   HS $110.00 



 

2 

 

 

Activity Rate 

 Boys Girls 

Basketball   

Varsity $7,000.00 $7,000.00 

JV $4,000.00 $4,000.00 

Frosh $2,200.00 $2,200.00 

8th $1,600.00 $1,600.00 

7th $1,300.00 $1,300.00 

6th  $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

   

Volleyball   

Varsity $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

JV $1,800.00 $1,800.00 

Frosh  $1,300.00 

8th $800.00 $1,150.00 

7th  $1,150.00 

6th   $900.00 

   

Football   

HS Head Coach $7,000.00  

HS Assistant $4,000.00  

MS Head Coach $1,300.00  

   

Cross Country   

Varsity $2,600.00 $2,600.00 

MS (combined) $1,200.00 

   

Baseball/Softball   

Varsity $5,000.00 $5,000.00 

JV $2,500.00 $2,500.00 

MS $1,250.00 $1,250.00 

   

Track   

Varsity $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

Varsity Assistant $600.00 $600.00 

MS $1,200.00 $1,200.00 

   

Golf   

Varsity $2,500.00 $2,500.00 

   

Soccer   

Varsity $3,500.00 $3,500.00 

JV $1,600.00  

  



 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Activity Rate 

 Boys Girls 

Wrestling   

Varsity $3,000.00 $3,000 

MS $1,000.00  

   

Tennis   

Varsity  $2,500.00 

   

Dance   

HS  $2,000.00 

MS  $1,000.00 

   

Cheerleading   

Varsity  $2,000.00 

JV  $1,200.00 

MS  $900.00 

   

Bowling    

HS (combined) $800.00 

  

Other  

 

Homebound Instruction Bachelor’s - $19.88/hour 

Master’s - $22.58/hour 

  

  

Weight room Supervisor 

(available funds capped at 

$2,000/year) 

$14.20 / hour  (certified rate) 

 

  

Ticket taking (athletic or 

ECA events) 

$31.00 / game or contest 

  

Announcer $31.00 /  game or contest  

  

Scorebook $31.00 / game or contest  

  

Scoreboard $31.00 / game or contest  



















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

“EVERY STUDENT, EVERY DAY, TO THEIR FULLEST POTENTIAL” 

Contracts 

     

The board is asked to approve the following contracts at the Regular School Board Meeting on 

November 14, 2024 

     

     

Building Business Entity Fees/Services Contract Period  Amount  

PTSC Crowe, LLP Audit Services 
Audit Period: 

7/1/22-6/30/24 

will be billed 
by Indiana 

SBOA 

PTSC 
Indiana ESC Food Co-

op 
Food Service RFP's 

2025-2026 School 
Year 

Varies 

PLE 
Patriot Engineering & 

Environmental 

Soil borings, lab testing, 
field coordination, 

engineering evaluation, 
and reporting 

N/A $9,000.00 

BGMS/BGHS Sandy Hook Promise 
"Say Something" 

Anonymous Reporting 
System 

through 
6/30/2027 

$0.00 

 



 

 

 

Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global 
 
3815 River Crossing Parkway, Suite 300,  
Indianapolis, IN 46240-0977  
Tel   +1 317 569 8989 
Fax  +1 317 706 2660 
www.crowe.com 

 
 
October 14, 2024 
 
 
Management and Those Charged with Governance 
c/o Stacey Schmidt 
Porter Township School Corporation 
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam: 
 
This letter confirms the arrangements for Crowe LLP (“Crowe” or “us” or “we” or “our”) to provide the 
professional services discussed in this letter to Porter Township School Corporation (“you”, “your” or 
“Client”). The attached Crowe Engagement Terms, and any other attachments thereto, are integral parts 
of this letter, and such terms are incorporated herein. 

 
AUDIT SERVICES 

 
Our Responsibilities 
 
We will audit and report on the financial statements of the Client as of June 30, 2024, and for the period 
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2024.  
 
We will audit and report on the regulatory basis (prescribed by the Indiana State Board of Accounts in 
accordance with state statute IC 5-11-1-6) financial statements of the Client for the periods indicated in a 
single reporting package. The objective of the audit is the expression of an opinion on the regulatory 
basis financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS).  
 
In addition to our report on the financial statements, we plan to evaluate the presentation of the following 
supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole, and to report on whether this 
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as 
a whole. 
 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
The document will also include the following additional other information that will not be subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and for which our auditor’s report will 
disclaim an opinion: 
 

• Schedule of Officials 
• Combining Schedule of Receipts, Disbursements, Other Financing Sources (Uses), and Cash 

and Investment Balances – Regulatory Basis 
• Schedule of Payables and Receivables  
• Schedule of Leases and Debt  
• Schedule of Capital Assets  
• State Reporting Information 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 2 October 14, 2024 
 

 
The objective of the audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements.  We will plan and 
perform the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards require that we obtain reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement whether 
caused by error or fraud, and that we report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (as 
noted above), and on your compliance with laws and regulations and on its internal controls as required 
for a Single Audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about 
the entity's compliance with the requirements of the federal programs as a whole. Because of inherent 
limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an unavoidable risk that 
some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with applicable standards.  An audit is not designed to detect error or fraud that 
is immaterial to the financial statements. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including the 
assessment of the risks that the financial statements could be misstated by an amount that we believe 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of these financial statements. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. As required by the standards, we will maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. 
 
In making our risk assessments, we obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Client’s internal control. However, we will communicate 
in writing to those charged with governance and management concerning any significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have 
identified during the audit. We will communicate to management other deficiencies in internal control 
identified during the audit that have not been communicated to management by other parties and that, in 
our professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit management’s attention. We will also 
communicate certain matters related to the conduct of the audit to those charged with governance, 
including (1) fraud involving senior management, and fraud (whether caused by senior management or 
other employees) that causes a material misstatement of the financial statements, (2) illegal acts that 
come to our attention (unless they are clearly inconsequential) (3) disagreements with management and 
other significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit and (4) various matters related to the 
Client‘s accounting policies and financial statements. Our engagement is not designed to address legal or 
regulatory matters, which matters should be discussed by you with your legal counsel. 
 
As part of our audit, we will conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Client's ability to continue 
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 
We expect to issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Client’s financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to those charged with governance of the Client. Circumstances may arise in 
which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis of matter or other matter paragraph or 
a separate section in the auditor's report, or withdraw from the engagement. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 3 October 14, 2024 
 

 
In addition to our report on the financial statements and Other Information, we plan to issue the following 
reports: 
 

• Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards — The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Client’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
• Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on 

Internal Control Over Compliance -- The purpose of this report on internal control over 
compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and 
the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this 
report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
We will also perform tests of controls including testing underlying transactions, as required by the Uniform 
Guidance, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant 
to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of 
your major federal awards programs.  We will determine major programs in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance.  Our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls 
and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed.  We will inform you of any non-reportable conditions or 
other matters involving internal control, if any, as required by the Uniform Guidance. 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will also perform tests of your compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants. However, because of the concept of reasonable assurance and because we will not perform 
a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material errors, irregularities, or illegal acts, 
including fraud or defalcations, may exist and not be detected by us. However, the objective of our audit 
of compliance relative to the financial statements will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance 
with such provisions, and we will not express such an opinion. We will advise you, however, of any 
matters of that nature that come to our attention, unless they are clearly inconsequential. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether you have complied with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.  Our 
procedures will consist of the applicable procedures described in the United States Office of Management 
and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of your major programs.  The purpose of our audit will be to express an 
opinion on your compliance with requirements applicable to major Federal award programs.  Because an 
audit is designed to provide reasonable assurance, but not absolute assurance, the audit is not designed 
to detect immaterial violations or instances of noncompliance. 
 
Our audit and work product are intended for the benefit and use of the Client only. The audit will not be 
planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any other party or with respect to any specific 
transaction and is not intended to benefit or influence any other party. Therefore, items of possible 
interest to a third party may not be specifically addressed or matters may exist that could be assessed 
differently by a third party.  
 
The working papers for this engagement are the property of Crowe and constitute confidential 
information.  
 
However, we may be requested to make certain working papers available to your oversight agency or 
grantors pursuant to authority given to them by law, regulation, or contract. If requested, access to such 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 4 October 14, 2024 
 

working papers will be provided under the supervision of our personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we 
may provide photocopies of selected working papers to your oversight agency or grantors. The working 
papers for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of three years after the date our report is 
issued or for any additional period requested by the oversight agency or pass-through entity. If we are 
aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we 
will contact the party contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the working papers. 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent peer review 
report, which accompanies this letter.  
 
The Client’s Responsibilities 
 
The Client’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of the Indiana State Board of Accounts as allowed by 
state statute (IC 5-11-1-6). Management is also responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.  
 
The Client’s management is also responsible for complying with applicable laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants and such responsibility extends to identifying the requirements and designing internal control 
policies and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that compliance is achieved. Management has 
the responsibility to make Crowe aware of significant contractor relationships in which the contractor is 
responsible for program compliance. Client's management is responsible for taking timely and appropriate 
steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements that the auditor reports. Additionally, it is management’s responsibility to follow up and take 
corrective action on reported audit findings, to establish and maintain a process for tracking the status of 
findings and recommendations, and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings, which should 
be available for our review, and a corrective action plan.  
 
Management has the responsibility to adopt sound accounting policies, maintain an adequate and 
efficient accounting system, to safeguard assets, and to design and implement programs and controls to 
prevent and detect fraud. Management’s judgments are typically based on its knowledge and experience 
about past and current events and its expected courses of action. Management’s responsibility for 
financial reporting includes establishing a process to prepare the accounting estimates included in the 
financial statements and to devise policies to ensure that the Client complies with applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Client's ability to continue as a 
going concern for one year from the date the Financial Statements are available to be issued. 
 
Management is responsible for providing to us, on a timely basis, all information of which management is 
aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as 
records, documentation, and other matters. Management is also responsible for providing such other 
additional information we may request for the purpose of the audit, and unrestricted access to persons 
within the Client from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. Additionally, those 
charged with governance are responsible for informing us of their views about the risks of fraud within the 
Client, and their knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Client. 
 
Management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
related to accounts or disclosures. As part of our audit process, we will request from management written 
confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit, including that the effects 
of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the audit are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements, and to the Client’s compliance with the requirements of its 
Federal programs. Management acknowledges the importance of management’s representations and 
responses to our inquiries, and that they will be utilized as part of the evidential matter we will rely on in 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 5 October 14, 2024 
 

forming our opinion. Because of the importance of such information to our engagement, you agree to 
waive any claim against Crowe and its personnel for any liability and costs relating to or arising from any 
inaccuracy or incompleteness of information provided to us for purposes of this engagement. 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information identified above in 
accordance with the applicable criteria. As part of our audit process, we will request from management 
certain written representations regarding management’s responsibilities in relation to the supplementary 
information presented, including but not limited to its fair presentation in accordance with the applicable 
criteria, the method of measurement and presentation and any significant assumptions or interpretations 
underlying the supplementary information. In addition, it is management’s responsibility to include the 
auditor’s report on supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary 
information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information. It is also 
management’s responsibility to present the supplementary information with the audited financial 
statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with the audited financial 
statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by Client of the supplementary information 
and the auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the Other Information identified above in accordance 
with the applicable criteria. As part of our audit process, we will request from management certain written 
representations regarding management’s responsibilities in relation to the Other Information presented, 
including but not limited to its fair presentation in accordance with the applicable criteria, the method of 
measurement and presentation and any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the Other 
Information. In addition, it is management’s responsibility to include the auditor’s report on Other 
Information in any document that contains the Other Information and that indicates that we have reported 
on such Other Information. It is also management’s responsibility to present the Other Information with 
the audited financial statements or, if the Other Information will not be presented with the audited financial 
statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the Other 
Information no later than the date of issuance by Client of the Other Information and the auditor’s report 
thereon. 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the required supplementary information identified above 
in accordance with the applicable guidelines.  We will request from management certain written 
representations regarding management’s responsibilities in relation to the required supplementary 
information presented, including but not limited to whether it has been measured and presented in 
accordance with prescribed guidelines, the method of measurement and presentation and any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the supplementary information. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, it is management’s responsibility to submit the reporting package 
(including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior 
audit findings, auditor’s reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the 
designated federal clearinghouse and, if appropriate, to pass-through entities. The Data Collection Form 
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of thirty days after receipt of the auditor’s 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period. 
 
Management is responsible for report distribution responsibilities, including determining which officials or 
organizations will receive the report and making the report available to the public as applicable when the 
audit organization is responsible for report distribution. 
 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 6 October 14, 2024 
 

EXAMINATION SERVICES 
 
Our Responsibilities 
 
We will examine the Client’s compliance with the Indiana State Board of Accounts’ Accounting and 
Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual For Indiana Public School Corporations during the period July 1, 
2022 through June 30, 2024.  Our examination will be conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  Accordingly, it will include tests of 
your records and other procedures we consider necessary to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about whether, and to express an opinion as to whether, the Client complied, in all material 
respects, with the specified requirements. 
 
During our engagement, we will make various risk assessments, including considering the Client’s 
internal control relevant to the objectives of our examination in order to design examination procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Client’s internal control. However, we will communicate in writing to the those 
charged with governance and management, and include in our examination report or a separate report, 
any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control that we have identified during the 
examination. We will communicate to those charged with governance and management other deficiencies 
in internal control identified during the examination that, in our professional judgment, are of sufficient 
importance to merit the attention of management and those charged with governance. 
 
We will plan and perform our examination to meet the objectives of the engagement. Our engagement will 
not include a detailed inspection of every transaction and cannot be relied on to disclose the existence of: 
material errors, known or suspected fraud, internal control deficiencies or non-compliance with laws or 
regulations. Because of the inherent limitations of an examination engagement, together with the inherent 
limitations of internal control, an unavoidable risk exists that some material misstatements (whether 
caused by errors, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or 
governmental regulations) may not be detected by us, even though our examination is properly planned 
and performed in accordance with applicable standards. We will inform you, however, if our examination 
identifies any material uncorrected misstatements, known or suspected fraud, internal control 
deficiencies, or non-compliance with laws or regulations. We will also inform you of any other illegal acts 
that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. 
 
Our engagement is not designed to address legal or regulatory matters, which matters should be 
discussed by you with your legal counsel. The working papers for this engagement are the property of 
Crowe and constitute confidential information. 
 
The Client’s Responsibilities 
 
We understand that you will provide us with the basic information required for our examination and that 
you are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Although we may advise you 
about the appropriate criteria, you acknowledge and agree that the responsibility for the specified 
compliance requirements remains with you.   You are responsible for compliance with the specified 
requirements.  You are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control to 
provide reasonable assurance that the Client complies with those requirements and evaluating and 
monitoring the Client’s compliance.  You further acknowledge and understand that management is 
responsible for providing us with access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the 
measurement, evaluation, or disclosure of the subject matter and for the accuracy and completeness of 
the information that is provided to us. This responsibility also includes providing us with any additional 
information that we may request from management for the purpose of the examination; as well as 
allowing us unrestricted access to individuals within the organization from whom we may determine it 
necessary to obtain evidence. As this examination engagement is not designed to be a fraud audit, 
management understands and accepts the inherent limitations of the examination services described in 
this agreement. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 7 October 14, 2024 
 

At the conclusion of our examination, we will request certain written representations from management.   
 

OTHER SERVICES 
 
Data Collection Form input services 
 
We will provide assistance in completing sections of the Data Collection Form (DCF) relative to its federal 
award programs pursuant to the requirements of Section §200.512 of the Uniform Guidance that are 
promulgated to be completed by the Client.  While we may provide this data entry service and assist you 
in satisfying your electronic data communication requirements to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse, the 
completeness and accuracy of this information remains the responsibility of your management. 
 
With respect to the above other services, we will perform the services in accordance with applicable 
professional standards. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to do any 
procedure or take any action that could be construed as making management decisions or assuming 
management responsibilities. In connection with performing the above other services, you agree to: 
assume all management responsibilities including making all management decisions; oversee the service 
by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, 
knowledge, and/or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept 
responsibility for the results of the services.  
 
In delivering services to Client, Crowe may use subsidiaries owned and controlled by Crowe within and 
outside the United States. Crowe subsidiaries are subject to the same information security policies and 
requirements as Crowe LLP and will meet the requirements set forth in the confidentiality and data 
protection provisions of this Agreement. 
 

BOND OFFERINGS 
 
With respect to any official statements issued by the Client with which Crowe is not involved, the official 
statement should indicate that the auditor is not involved with the contents of such official statement. The 
disclosure should read as: “Crowe, our independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has 
not performed, since the date of its report included herein any procedures on the financial statements 
addressed in that report. Crowe also has not performed any procedures relating to this official statement.” 
 

FEES 
 
All fees for the services will be billed to the Client by the Indiana State Board of Accounts. 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 8 October 14, 2024 
 

STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTS 
 

The engagement and performance of the audit are subject to the following guidance for auditee and auditor: 
 
UNIFORM COMPLIANCE GUIDELINES FOR AUDIT OF STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS BY 
AUTHORIZED INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS   
 
In addition to Other Information included in the guidelines, the following is the Auditor Responsibilities 
section: 

1. The audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; Government Auditing Standards (if applicable); Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards or Uniform Guidance (if applicable). 

2. The audit will address items of noncompliance as they pertain to the auditee.  
3. Any fraud, abuse, malfeasance, nonfeasance or illegal acts identified, suspected, or brought to 

the attention of the private examiner shall be reported by the private examiner, immediately upon 
discovery, to the State Board of Accounts via email. Materiality is not a factor to consider in that 
all such items are to be reported to the State Board of Accounts.  

4. The State Examiner will be notified immediately via email if the books and records are not in a 
sufficiently satisfactory condition for performing the audit.  

5. The State Examiner will be notified immediately if it is anticipated the independent auditor’s report 
will be qualified, adverse, or a disclaimer in accordance with the Codification of Statements on 
Auditing Standards contacted in AICPA Professional Standards AU-C Section 705.  

6. The State Board of Accounts will be provided a draft copy of the report and any separate 
communication to the Client’s management in an unlocked pdf, Microsoft Word, or Microsoft 
Excel file using the appropriate email address. Upon review and return to the independent public 
accountant with no or minimal changes recommended, the date of the exit conference can be 
established.  

7. The State Board of Accounts will be notified by date, time, and location the results of the audit will 
be discussed with Client officials (exit conference) at least 5 business days prior to the meeting 
by email.   

8. The State Board of Accounts will receive a copy of the final report, as well as any separate 
communication to the Client’s governance and/or management in an unlocked pdf, Microsoft 
Word, or Microsoft Excel file. These files will be emailed using the appropriate email address 
within 10 business days of the report being issued by the private examiner.   

9. The State Board of Accounts will be provided the names, postal addresses, and email addresses 
of the Client’s chief executive officer, chief financial officer, if any, and governing board president. 

10. All documentation used to support the financial audit report as well as any separate 
communication to the Client’s governance and/or management will be available for review by the 
State Board of Accounts at the State Examiner’s discretion. 

 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 9 October 14, 2024 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

For purposes of this Miscellaneous section, the Acceptance section below, and all of the Crowe 
Engagement Terms, “Client” will mean the entity(ies) defined in the first paragraph of this letter and will 
also include all related parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates of Client who may receive or claim reliance 
upon any Crowe deliverable. 
 
Crowe will provide the services to Client under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as 
Client’s partner, agent, employee, or joint venturer under this Agreement.  Neither Crowe nor Client will 
have any right, power or authority to bind the other party. 
 
This engagement letter agreement (the “Agreement”) reflects the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the services (or any reports, deliverables or other work product) covered by this Agreement. 
The engagement letter and any attachments (including without limitation the attached Crowe Engagement 
Terms) are to be construed as a single document, with the provisions of each section applicable 
throughout. This Agreement may not be amended or varied except by a written document signed by each 
party. No provision of this Agreement will be deemed waived, unless such waiver will be in writing and 
signed by the party against which the waiver is sought to be enforced. It replaces and supersedes any 
other proposals, correspondence, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to the 
services covered by this letter, and each party agrees that in entering this Agreement, it has not relied on 
any oral or written representations, statements or other information not contained in or incorporated into 
this Agreement. Any non-disclosure or other confidentiality agreement is replaced and superseded by this 
Agreement. Each party shall remain obligated to the other party under all provisions of this Agreement 
that expressly or by their nature extend beyond and survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. If any provision (in whole or in part) of this Agreement is found unenforceable or invalid, this 
will not affect the remainder of the provision or any other provisions in this Agreement, all of which will 
continue in effect as if the stricken portion had not been included. This Agreement may be executed in 
two or more actual, scanned, emailed, or electronically copied counterparts, each and all of which 
together are one and the same instrument. Accurate transmitted copies (transmitted copies are 
reproduced documents that are sent via mail, delivery, scanning, email, photocopy, facsimile or other 
process) of the executed Agreement or signature pages only (whether handwritten or electronic 
signature), will be considered and accepted by each party as documents equivalent to original documents 
and will be deemed valid, binding and enforceable by and against all parties. This Agreement, including 
any dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement and the parties’ relationship generally, will be 
governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana applicable to agreements 
made and wholly performed in that state, without giving effect to its conflict of laws rules to the extent 
those rules would require applying another jurisdiction’s laws. 
 

* * * * * 
 
We are pleased to have this opportunity to serve you, and we look forward to a continuing relationship.  If 
the terms of this Agreement and the attached Crowe Engagement Terms are acceptable to you, please 
sign below and return one copy of this letter at your earliest convenience.  Please contact us with any 
questions or concerns. 
 

(Signature Page Follows) 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 10 October 14, 2024 
 

ACCEPTANCE 
 
I have reviewed the arrangements outlined above and in the attached “Crowe Engagement Terms,” and I 
accept on behalf of the Client the terms and conditions as stated. By signing below, I represent and 
warrant that I am authorized by Client to accept the terms and conditions as stated. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Client and Crowe have duly executed this Agreement effective the date first 
written above. 
 
 
 Porter Township School Corporation 
 
 
 

Crowe LLP 
 
 
 

ICLM_ExtSignature:01 
 

Signature 

ICLM_IntSignature:01 
 

Signature 

 
Ext1Text47176|Client Signatory Name|ICM-NO-ATTRIBUTE|1|0|0 

 
Printed Name 

 
Kevin Kerswick 

 
Printed Name 

Ext1Text12890|Client Signatory Title|ICM-NO-ATTRIBUTE|1|0|0 

 
Title 

 
Partner 

 
Title 

 
ExtDate1 

 
Date 

 
IntDate1 

 
Date 

 
 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED

October 15, 2024

Superintendent

Stacey Schmidt

October 16, 2024



Porter Township School Corporation 11 October 14, 2024 
 

Crowe Engagement Terms 
 
Crowe wants Client to understand the terms under which Crowe provides its services to Client and the 
basis under which Crowe determines its fees. These terms are part of the Agreement and apply to all 
services described in the Agreement as well as all other services provided to Client (collectively, the 
“Services”), unless and until a separate written agreement is executed by the parties for separate 
services. Any advice provided by Crowe is not intended to be, and is not, investment advice.  
 
CLIENT’S ASSISTANCE – For Crowe to provide Services effectively and efficiently, Client agrees to 
provide Crowe timely with information requested and to make available to Crowe any personnel, systems, 
premises, records, or other information as reasonably requested by Crowe to perform the Services. 
Access to such personnel and information are key elements for Crowe’s successful completion of 
Services and determination of fees. If for any reason this does not occur, a revised fee to reflect 
additional time or resources required by Crowe will be mutually agreed. Client agrees Crowe will have no 
responsibility for any delays related to a delay in providing such information to Crowe. Such information 
will be accurate and complete, and Client will inform Crowe of all significant tax, accounting and financial 
reporting matters of which Client is aware.  
 
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS – As a regulated professional services firm, Crowe must follow 
professional standards when applicable, including the Code of Professional Conduct of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”). Thus, if circumstances arise that, in Crowe’s 
professional judgment, prevent it from completing the engagement, Crowe retains the right to take any 
course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue 
other work product or terminating the engagement. 
 
REPORTS – Any information, advice, recommendations or other content of any memoranda, reports, 
deliverables, work product, presentations, or other communications Crowe provides under this Agreement 
(“Reports”), other than Client’s original information, are for Client’s internal use only, consistent with the 
purpose of the Services. Client will not rely on any draft Report. Unless required by an audit or other 
attestation professional standard, Crowe will not be required to update any final Report for circumstances 
of which we become aware or events occurring after delivery.  
 
CONFIDENTIALITY – Except as otherwise permitted by this Agreement or as agreed in writing, neither 
Crowe nor Client may disclose to third parties the contents of this Agreement or any information provided 
by or on behalf of the other that ought reasonably to be treated as confidential and/or proprietary. Client 
use of any Crowe work product will be limited to its stated purpose and to Client business use only. 
However, Client and Crowe each agree that either party may disclose such information to the extent that 
it: (i) is or becomes public other than through a breach of this Agreement, (ii) is subsequently received by 
the recipient from a third party who, to the recipient's knowledge, owes no obligation of confidentiality to 
the disclosing party with respect to that information, (iii) was known to the recipient at the time of 
disclosure or is thereafter created independently, (iv) is disclosed as necessary to enforce the recipient's 
rights under this Agreement, or (v) must be disclosed under applicable law, regulations, legal process or 
professional standards.  
 
CLIENT-REQUIRED CLOUD USAGE – If Client requests that Crowe access files, documents or other 
information in a cloud-based or web-accessed hosting service or other third-party system accessed via 
the internet, including, without limitation iCloud, Dropbox, Google Docs, Google Drive, a data room 
hosted by a third party, or a similar service or website (collectively, “Cloud Storage”), Client will confirm 
with any third parties assisting with or hosting the Cloud Storage that either such third party or Client (and 
not Crowe) is responsible for complying with all applicable laws relating to the Cloud Storage and any 
information contained in the Cloud Storage, providing Crowe access to the information in the Cloud 
Storage, and protecting the information in the Cloud Storage from any unauthorized access, including 
without limitation unauthorized access to the information when in transit to or from the Cloud Storage. 
Client represents that it has authority to provide Crowe access to information in the Cloud Storage and 
that providing Crowe with such access complies with all applicable laws, regulations, and duties owed to 
third parties. 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 12 October 14, 2024 
 

 
DATA PROTECTION – If Crowe holds or uses Client information that can be linked to specific individuals 
who are Client’s customers ("Personal Data"), Crowe will treat it as confidential as described above and 
comply with applicable US state and federal law and professional regulations (including, for financial 
institution clients, the objectives of the Interagency Guidelines Establishing Information Security 
Standards) in disclosing or using such information to carry out the Services. The parties acknowledge and 
understand that while Crowe is a service provider as defined by the California Consumer Privacy Act of 
2018 and processes information on behalf of Client and pursuant to this Agreement, Crowe retains its 
independence as required by applicable law and professional standards for purposes of providing attest 
services and other related professional services. Crowe will not (1) sell Personal Data to a third party, or 
(2) retain, use or disclose Personal Data for any purpose other than for (a) performing the Services and 
its obligations on this Agreement, (b) as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, (c) to detect security 
incidents and protect against fraud or illegal activity, (d) to enhance and develop our products and 
services, including through machine learning and other similar methods and (e) as necessary to comply 
with applicable law or professional standards. Crowe has implemented and will maintain physical, 
electronic and procedural safeguards reasonably designed to (i) protect the security, confidentiality and 
integrity of the Personal Data, (ii) prevent unauthorized access to or use of the Personal Data, and (iii) 
provide proper disposal of the Personal Data (collectively, the “Safeguards”). Client warrants (i) that it has 
the authority to provide the Personal Data to Crowe in connection with the Services, (ii) that Client has 
processed and provided the Personal Data to Crowe in accordance with applicable law, and (iii) will limit 
the Personal Data provided to Crowe to Personal Data necessary to perform the Services. To provide the 
Services, Client may also need to provide Crowe with access to Personal Data consisting of protected 
health information, financial account numbers, Social Security or other government-issued identification 
numbers, or other data that, if disclosed without authorization, would trigger notification requirements 
under applicable law ("Restricted Personal Data"). In the event Client provides Crowe access to 
Restricted Personal Data, Client will consult with Crowe on appropriate measures (consistent with legal 
requirements and professional standards applicable to Crowe) to protect the Restricted Personal Data, 
such as: deleting or masking unnecessary information before making it available to Crowe, using 
encryption when transferring it to Crowe, or providing it to Crowe only during on-site review on Client’s 
site. Client will provide Crowe with Restricted Personal Data only in accordance with mutually agreed 
protective measures. Crowe and Client will each allow opportunistic TLS encryption to provide for secure 
email communication, and each party will notify the other in writing if it deactivates opportunistic TLS 
encryption. If Client fails to allow opportunistic TLS encryption, Client agrees that each party may use 
unencrypted electronic media to correspond or transmit information, and Client further agrees that such 
use of unencrypted media will not in itself constitute a breach of any confidentiality or other obligation 
relating to this Agreement. Otherwise, Client and Crowe agree each may use unencrypted electronic 
media to correspond or transmit information and such use will not in itself constitute a breach of any 
confidentiality obligations under this Agreement. Crowe will reasonably cooperate with Client in 
responding to or addressing any request from a consumer or data subject, a data privacy authority with 
jurisdiction, or the Client, as necessary to enable Client to comply with its obligations under applicable 
data protection laws and to the extent related to Personal Data processed by Crowe. Client will promptly 
reimburse Crowe for any out-of-pocket expenses and professional time (at Crowe’s then-current hourly 
rates) incurred in connection with providing such cooperation. Client will provide prompt written notice to 
Crowe (with sufficient detailed instructions) of any request or other act that is required to be performed by 
Crowe. As appropriate, Crowe shall promptly delete or procure the deletion of the Personal Data, after the 
cessation of any Services involving the processing of Client’s Personal Data, or otherwise aggregate or 
de-identify the Personal Data in such a way as to reasonably prevent reidentification. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Crowe may retain a copy of the Personal Data as permitted by applicable law or professional 
standards, provided that such Personal Data remain subject to the terms of this Agreement. If Crowe 
uses a third-party provider, Crowe will include terms substantially similar to those set forth in this Data 
Protection Paragraph into an agreement with the provider. 
 
GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION COMPLIANCE – If and to the extent that Client provides 
personal data to Crowe subject to the European Union General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”), 
then in addition to the requirements of the above Data Protection section, this section will apply to such 
personal data (“EU Personal Data”). The parties agree that for purposes of processing the EU Personal 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 13 October 14, 2024 
 

Data, (a) Client will be the “Data Controller” as defined by the GDPR, meaning the organization that 
determines the purposes and means of processing the EU Personal Data; (b) Crowe will be the “Data 
Processor” as defined by GDPR, meaning the organization that processes the EU Personal Data on 
behalf of and under the instructions of the Data Controller; or (c) the parties will be classified as otherwise 
designated by a supervisory authority with jurisdiction. Client and Crowe each agree to comply with the 
GDPR requirements applicable to its respective role. Crowe has implemented and will maintain technical 
and organizational security safeguards reasonably designed to protect the security, confidentiality and 
integrity of the EU Personal Data. Client represents it has secured all required rights and authority, 
including consents and notices, to provide such EU Personal Data to Crowe, including without limitation 
authority to transfer such EU Personal Data to the U.S. or other applicable Country or otherwise make the 
EU Personal Data available to Crowe, for the duration of and purpose of Crowe providing the Services. 
The types of EU Personal Data to be processed include name, contact information, title, and other EU 
Personal Data that is transferred to Crowe in connection with the Services. The EU Personal Data relates 
to the data subject categories of individuals connected to Client, Client customers, Client vendors, and 
Client affiliates or subsidiaries (“Data Subjects”). Crowe will process the EU Personal Data for the 
following purpose: (x) to provide the Services in accordance with this Agreement, (y) to comply with other 
documented reasonable instructions provided by Client, and (z) to comply with applicable law. In the 
event of a Crowe breach incident in connection with EU Personal Data in the custody or control of Crowe, 
Crowe will promptly notify Client upon knowledge that a breach incident has occurred. Client has 
instructed Crowe not to contact any Data Subjects directly, unless required by applicable law. In the event 
that a supervisory authority with jurisdiction makes the determination that Crowe is a data controller, 
Client will reasonably cooperate with Crowe to enable Crowe to comply with its obligations under GDPR.  
 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY – Any deliverables, works, inventions, working papers, or other work product 
conceived, made or created by Crowe in rendering the Services under this Agreement (“Work Product”), 
and all intellectual property rights in such Work Product will be owned exclusively by Crowe. Upon full 
payment by Client, Crowe grants to Client a license to use for its business purposes any deliverables, 
including any other Work Product incorporated in such deliverables. Crowe will retain exclusive ownership 
or control of all intellectual property rights in any ideas, concepts, methodologies, data, software, designs, 
utilities, tools, models, techniques, systems, Reports, or other know-how that it develops, owns or 
licenses in connection with this Agreement as well as any enhancements to any of the above 
("Materials"). The foregoing ownership will be without any duty of accounting. 
 
CLIENT DATA USAGE – Client shall retain full ownership of all data provided to Crowe by or on behalf of 
Client in connection with this Agreement, and Crowe will maintain the confidentiality and protection of 
Client data as set forth in this Agreement. Client agrees that Crowe may, in its discretion, use any Client 
information or data provided to Crowe for the purpose of (a) performing the Services and its obligations 
under this Agreement; (b) as otherwise agreed upon in writing; (c) to further improve or develop our 
products and services; or (d) as necessary to comply with applicable law or professional standards. 
 
DATA AGGREGATION & BENCHMARKING – Client agrees that Crowe may, in its discretion, aggregate 
Client content and data with content and data from other clients, other sources, or third parties (“Data 
Aggregations”) for purposes including, without limitation, product and service development, 
commercialization, industry benchmarking, or quality improvement initiatives. Prior to, and as a 
precondition for, disclosing Data Aggregations to other Crowe customers or prospects, Crowe will 
anonymize any Client data or information in a manner sufficient to prevent such other customer or 
prospect from identifying Client or individuals who are Client customers. All Data Aggregations will be the 
sole and exclusive property of Crowe. 
 
USE OF THIRD PARTIES IN CROWE OPERATIONS – Crowe uses third-party providers and third-party 
solutions in the ordinary course of Crowe business operations. Third-party providers and solutions used in 
the ordinary course of Crowe business operations include without limitation email providers, cyber-
security providers, data hosting centers, operating systems, tools with machine learning or artificial 
intelligence components (including generative artificial intelligence products or services), and other third-
party products and solutions used to perform the Services or generate Work Product, or components 
thereof. Crowe also uses its subsidiaries (owned and controlled by Crowe) within and outside the United 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 14 October 14, 2024 
 

States for various administrative and support roles. Crowe subsidiaries and any third-party providers used 
in the ordinary course of Crowe business operations will meet the confidentiality and data protection 
requirements in this Agreement. The limitations in this Agreement on Client’s remedies will also apply to 
any such third-party providers and Crowe subsidiaries. 
 
USE OF SUBCONTRACTORS FOR SERVICE DELIVERY – Crowe may engage third-party 
subcontractors in delivering Services to Client. Third-party subcontractors are not owned or controlled by 
Crowe (including without limitation Crowe Global member firms). If Crowe engages such a subcontractor 
to deliver Services to Client, Crowe will execute an agreement for the protection of Client’s confidential 
information consistent with the provisions of this Agreement. Crowe will be solely responsible for the 
provision of Services (including those provided by subcontractors) and for the protection of Client’s 
confidential information. The limitations in this Agreement on Client’s remedies will also apply to any 
subcontractors. 
 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY CHANGE – Crowe may periodically communicate to Client changes in laws, 
rules or regulations. However, Client has not engaged Crowe, and Crowe does not undertake an 
obligation, to advise Client of changes in (a) laws, rules, regulations, industry or market conditions, or (b) 
Client’s own business practices or other circumstances (except to the extent required by professional 
standards). The scope of Services and the fees for Services are based on current laws and regulations. If 
changes in laws or regulations change Client’s requirements or the scope of the Services, Crowe’s fees 
will be modified to a mutually agreed amount to reflect the changed level of Crowe’s effort.  
 
PUBLICATION – Client agrees to obtain Crowe’s specific permission before using any Report or Crowe 
work product or Crowe’s firm’s name in a published document, and Client agrees to submit to Crowe 
copies of such documents to obtain Crowe’s permission before they are filed or published.  
 
CLIENT REFERENCE – From time to time Crowe is requested by prospective clients to provide 
references for Crowe service offerings. Client agrees that Crowe may use Client’s name and generally 
describe the nature of Crowe’s engagement(s) with Client in marketing to prospects, and Crowe may also 
provide prospects with contact information for Client personnel familiar with Crowe’s Services. 
 
NO PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES – Any liability of Crowe will not include any 
consequential, special, incidental, indirect, punitive, or exemplary damages or loss, nor any lost profits, 
goodwill, savings, or business opportunity, even if Crowe had reason to know of the possibility of such 
damages. 
 
LIMIT OF LIABILITY – Except where it is judicially determined that Crowe performed its Services with 
recklessness or willful misconduct, Crowe’s liability will not exceed fees paid by Client to Crowe for the 
portion of the work giving rise to liability. A claim for a return of fees paid is the exclusive remedy for any 
damages. This limit of liability will apply to the full extent allowed by law, regardless of the grounds or 
nature of any claim asserted, including, without limitation, to claims based on principles of contract, 
negligence or other tort, fiduciary duty, warranty, indemnity, statute or common law. This limit of liability 
will also apply after this Agreement. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION FOR THIRD‑PARTY CLAIMS – In the event of a legal proceeding or other claim 
brought against Crowe by a third party, except where it is judicially determined that Crowe performed 
Services with recklessness or willful misconduct, Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Crowe 
and its personnel against all costs, fees, expenses, damages and liabilities, including attorney fees and 
any other fees or defense costs, associated with such third‑party claim, relating to or arising from any 
Services performed or work product provided by Crowe that Client uses or discloses to others or this 
engagement generally. This indemnification is intended to apply to the full extent allowed by law, 
regardless of the grounds or nature of any claim, liability, or damages asserted, including, without 
limitation, to claims, liability or damages based on principles of contract, negligence or other tort, fiduciary 
duty, warranty, indemnity, statute or common law. This indemnification will also apply after termination of 
this Agreement. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 15 October 14, 2024 
 

NO TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS – No claim against Crowe, or any recovery from or 
against Crowe, may be sold, assigned or otherwise transferred, in whole or in part. 
 
TIME LIMIT ON CLAIMS – In no event will any action against Crowe, arising from or relating to this 
Agreement or the Services provided by Crowe relating to this engagement, be brought after the earlier of 
1) one (1) year after the date on which occurred the act or omission alleged to have been the cause of the 
injury alleged; or 2) the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations or repose. 
 
RESPONSE TO LEGAL PROCESS – If Crowe is requested by subpoena, request for information, or 
through some other legal process to produce documents or testimony pertaining to Client or Crowe’s 
Services, and Crowe is not named as a party in the applicable proceeding, then Client will reimburse 
Crowe for its professional time, plus out-of-pocket expenses, as well as reasonable attorney fees, Crowe 
incurs in responding to such request.  
 
MEDIATION – If a dispute arises, in whole or in part, out of or related to this engagement, or after the 
date of this agreement, between Client or any of Client’s affiliates or principals and Crowe, and if the 
dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, Client and Crowe agree first to try, in good faith, to settle 
the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association, under its mediation rules 
for professional accounting and related services disputes, before resorting to litigation or any other 
dispute-resolution procedure. The results of mediation will be binding only upon agreement of each party 
to be bound. Costs of any mediation will be shared equally by both parties. Any mediation will be held in 
Indianapolis, Indiana.  
 
JURY TRIAL WAIVER – FOR ALL DISPUTES RELATING TO OR ARISING BETWEEN THE PARTIES, 
THE PARTIES AGREE TO WAIVE A TRIAL BY JURY TO FACILITATE JUDICIAL RESOLUTION AND 
TO SAVE TIME AND EXPENSE. EACH PARTY AGREES IT HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO HAVE 
ITS LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW THIS WAIVER. THIS WAIVER IS IRREVOCABLE, MAY NOT BE 
MODIFIED EITHER ORALLY OR IN WRITING, AND APPLIES TO ANY SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS, 
RENEWALS, OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT. IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS 
AGREEMENT MAY BE FILED AS WRITTEN CONSENT TO A BENCH TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY. 
HOWEVER, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, IF ANY COURT RULES OR FINDS THIS 
JURY TRIAL WAIVER TO BE UNENFORCEABLE AND INEFFECTIVE IN WAIVING A JURY, THEN 
ANY DISPUTE RELATING TO OR ARISING FROM THIS ENGAGEMENT OR THE PARTIES’ 
RELATIONSHIP GENERALLY WILL BE RESOLVED BY ARBITRATION AS SET FORTH IN THE 
PARAGRAPH BELOW REGARDING “ARBITRATION.”  
 
ARBITRATION – If any court rules or finds that the JURY TRIAL WAIVER section is not enforceable, then 
any dispute between the parties relating to or arising from this Agreement or the parties’ relationship 
generally will be settled by binding arbitration in Indianapolis, Indiana (or a location agreed in writing by 
the parties). Any issues concerning the extent to which any dispute is subject to arbitration, or concerning 
the applicability, interpretation, or enforceability of any of this Section, will be governed by the Federal 
Arbitration Act and resolved by the arbitrator(s). The arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration 
Act and resolved by the arbitrator(s). Regardless of the amount in controversy, the arbitration will be 
administered by JAMS, Inc. (“JAMS”), pursuant to its Streamlined Arbitration Rules & Procedures or such 
other rules or procedures as the parties may agree in writing. In the event of a conflict between those 
rules and this Agreement, this Agreement will control. The parties may alter each of these rules by written 
agreement. If a party has a basis for injunctive relief, this paragraph will not preclude a party seeking and 
obtaining injunctive relief in a court of proper jurisdiction. The parties will agree within a reasonable period 
of time after notice is made of initiating the arbitration process whether to use one or three arbitrators, and 
if the parties cannot agree within fifteen (15) business days, the parties will use a single arbitrator. In any 
event the arbitrator(s) must be retired federal judges or attorneys with at least 15 years commercial law 
experience and no arbitrator may be appointed unless he or she has agreed to these procedures. If the 
parties cannot agree upon arbitrator(s) within an additional fifteen (15) business days, the arbitrator(s) will 
be selected by JAMS. Discovery will be permitted only as authorized by the arbitrator(s), and as a rule, 
the arbitrator(s) will not permit discovery except upon a showing of substantial need by a party. To the 
extent the arbitrator(s) permit discovery as to liability, the arbitrator(s) will also permit discovery as to 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 16 October 14, 2024 
 

causation, reliance, and damages. The arbitrator(s) will not permit a party to take more than six 
depositions, and no depositions may exceed five hours. The arbitrator(s) will have no power to make an 
award inconsistent with this Agreement. The arbitrator(s) will rule on a summary basis where possible, 
including without limitation on a motion to dismiss basis or on a summary judgment basis. The 
arbitrator(s) may enter such prehearing orders as may be appropriate to ensure a fair hearing. The 
hearing will be held within one year of the initiation of arbitration, or less, and the hearing must be held on 
continuous business days until concluded. The hearing must be concluded within ten (10) business days 
absent written agreement by the parties to the contrary. The time limits in this section are not 
jurisdictional. The arbitrator(s) will apply substantive law and may award injunctive relief or any other 
remedy available from a judge. The arbitrator(s) may award attorney fees and costs to the prevailing 
party, and in the event of a split or partial award, the arbitrator(s) may award costs or attorney fees in an 
equitable manner. Any award by the arbitrator(s) will be accompanied by a reasoned opinion describing 
the basis of the award. Any prior agreement regarding arbitration entered by the parties is replaced and 
superseded by this agreement. The arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. 
§§ 1 et seq., and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered by any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. All aspects of the arbitration will be treated by the parties and the arbitrator(s) 
as confidential.  
 
NON‑SOLICITATION – Each party acknowledges that it has invested substantially in recruiting, training 
and developing the personnel who render services with respect to the material aspects of the 
engagement (“Key Personnel”). The parties acknowledge that Key Personnel have knowledge of trade 
secrets or confidential information of their employers that may be of substantial benefit to the other party. 
The parties acknowledge that each business would be materially harmed if the other party was able to 
directly employ Key Personnel. Therefore, the parties agree that during the period of this Agreement and 
for one (1) year after its expiration or termination, neither party will solicit Key Personnel of the other party 
for employment or hire the Key Personnel of the other party without that party’s written consent unless the 
hiring or engaging party pays to the other party a fee equal to the hired or engaged Key Personnel’s 
compensation for the prior twelve-month period with the other party. 
 
CROWE AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY – Crowe abides by the principles of equal employment 
opportunity, including without limitation the requirements of 41 CFR 60-741.5(a) and 41 CFR 60-300.5(a). 
These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected 
veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their 
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime 
contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or disability. Crowe 
also abides by 29 CFR Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A. The parties agree that the notice in this 
paragraph does not create any enforceable rights for any firm, organization, or individual.  
 
CROWE GLOBAL NETWORK – Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries are independent members of Crowe 
Global, a Swiss organization. “Crowe” is the brand used by the Crowe Global network and its member 
firms, but it is not a worldwide partnership. Crowe Global and each of its members are separate and 
independent legal entities and do not obligate each other. Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries are not 
responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other Crowe Global members, and 
Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries specifically disclaim any and all responsibility or liability for acts or 
omissions of Crowe Global or any other Crowe Global member. Crowe Global does not render any 
professional services and does not have an ownership or partnership interest in Crowe LLP or any other 
member. Crowe Global and its other members are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of 
Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries and specifically disclaim any and all responsibility or liability for acts or 
omissions of Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries. Visit www.crowe.com/disclosure for more information about 
Crowe LLP, its subsidiaries, and Crowe Global.  
 
 
 
  

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



Porter Township School Corporation 17 October 14, 2024 
 

 
 
Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control 
 
To the Partners of Crowe LLP 
and the National Peer Review Committee 
 
We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Crowe LLP (the “Firm”) 
applicable to engagements not subject to Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) permanent 
inspection in effect for the year ended March 31, 2022. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the 
Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“Standards”). 
 
A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a system review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an explanation 
of how engagements identified as not performed or reported on in conformity with applicable professional standards, 
if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 
 
Firm’s Responsibility 
The Firm is responsible for designing and complying with a system of quality control to provide the Firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with the requirements of applicable professional 
standards in all material respects. The Firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate 
engagements deemed as not performed or reported on in conformity with the requirements of applicable professional 
standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any. 
 
Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the Firm’s system of quality control 
based on our review. 
 
Required Selections and Considerations 
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, including 
compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; audits of employee benefit plans; audits performed under Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (FDICIA); and examinations of service organizations (SOC 
1® and SOC 2® engagements). 
 
As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the Firm, if applicable, 
in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Crowe LLP applicable to 
engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect for the year ended March 31, 2022, has been 
suitably designed and complied with to provide the Firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in 
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass 
with deficiency(ies), or fail. Crowe LLP has received a peer review rating of pass. 
 
Cherry Bekaert LLP September 29, 2022 
 
 

 
 
cbh.com 

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED

http://www.aicpa.org/prsummary


Porter Township School Corporation 18 October 14, 2024 
 

 
 
 
 
October 20, 2022 
 
Mark Baer 
Crowe LLP 
225 W Wacker DR Ste 2600 
Chicago, IL 60606-1228  
 
Dear Mark Baer: 
 
It is my pleasure to notify you that on October 13, 2022, the National Peer Review Committee accepted 
the report on the most recent System Review of your firm. The due date for your next review is 
September 30, 2025. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted 
to the administering entity. 
 
As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committee asked me to convey its 
congratulations to the firm. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Michael Wagner 
Chair, National PRC 
 
+1.919.402.4502 
 
cc: Jeffrey Sabetta, Jennifer Allen 
 
Firm Number: 900010014904     Review Number: 592839 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: DF808109-E3E2-4B1C-A1F4-B6BDE417CBED



































 
 

 1 
 

Say Something Anonymous Reporting System (Say Something ARS) Memorandum of Understanding between  
Sandy Hook Promise Foundation and Porter Township School Corporation 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into by Sandy Hook Promise Foundation (“SHPF”), a non-
profit IRC 501(c)(3) organization, located at 13 Church Hill Road, Newtown, Connecticut 06470, and Porter Township 
School Corporation (“PTSC”) which is organized and existing under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Indiana and with a primary business address at 248 S. 500 W. Valparaiso, IN 46385.  SHPF and PTSC may also 
each be referred to herein individually as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

1. PURPOSE. 
SHPF and PTSC agree to educate PTSC participating schools identified in EXHIBIT E about SHPF’s Say Something 
Anonymous Reporting System. The Say Something ARS teaches students how to recognize for warning signs especially 
in social media, from individuals who may want to hurt themselves or others and to “Say Something” to a trusted 
adult or use the Anonymous Reporting System (App, Website or 24/7/365 Crisis Telephone Line) to get them help.  
 

2. DUTIES.   
The Parties shall perform the duties described generally below, and in Exhibits attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. 
  

A. During the Program, SHPF will perform the following duties:  
i. Program coordination and onboarding: Provide guidance and support in the establishment of tip 

management teams and tip management infrastructure. Supply communication and outreach materials 
needed for the setup, announcement, and launch of the Program.  
 

ii. Trainings:  
a. Adult Training: Provide user training for district and school team members (Teams Training) on 

use of the P3 Tip Manager, on Crisis Center tip processing and protocols, on tip management best 
practices, on conducting and passing the Official Pre-Launch Tip Test, and on ways to ensure 
program longevity. Additional learning resources and guides for Say Something ARS Teams are 
provided digitally at no cost. This training is available via the SHPF Digital Learning Center and will 
be shared with PTSC .  

b. Student Training: Provide video-based student training and related lesson plans and activities 
(through the SHPF Learning Center, an online learning management system).  
 

iii. Program engagement and success: Provide ongoing account management support, including dedicated 
Account Manager available for 1:1 coaching in the areas of team management, tip management, and use 
of the P3 Tip Management platform. Supply monthly newsletter, professional development webinars, 
Awareness Materials (posters, window cling, etc.) to participating schools. Provide framework and 
materials needed for participating schools to establish SAVE Promise Clubs to reinforce the philosophy of 
the Say Something ARS program amongst students and help ensure proper and continued utilization of 
the anonymous reporting system.  
 

iv. Compliance: SHPF shall adhere to and comply with applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 
 
v. Background Checks: All SHPF employees, agents, and volunteers who will have contact with students will 



 
 

 2 
 

undergo and must pass a background check before interacting with students.   
 

vi. Indemnity: SHPF shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify PTSC , its affiliates, and/or PTSC employees 
and volunteers from claims, demands, damages, or litigation brought by third parties resulting from the 
acts or omissions of SHPF. 

 
vii. Exhibit A-1: The activities set forth on Exhibit A-1 attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
B. PTSC will perform the following duties: 

i. Communication: PTSC will communicate the benefits of Say Something ARS at PTSC , foster buy-in with 
program participants (team members) and supply regular and ongoing reminders of the program to the 
school community, including parents.  
 

ii. Program infrastructure and workflow: Support the establishment of tip management teams, including 
School Teams for each participating school, a District Team for tip management support and oversight, a 
Special Team for exceptional or highly sensitive tips, and a Flex Team, as needed, for activation during 
school breaks and holidays. Reinforce program requirements and Crisis Center protocol, including Tip 
Disposition requirements. Equip team members with the devices or equipment needed to carry out their 
tip management and tip follow-up responsibilities, with scheduling and outreach and, where needed, 
communication on presentations/training. 
 

iii. Meet all Say Something ARS Launch Readiness Standards and complete all Onboarding steps prior to 
program launch (i.e., initiation of student training), including the establishment of: 
a. A Program Lead: A district-level administrator who believes in the program, has the ability to mobilize 

school administrators, can communicate effectively amongst various disciplines (i.e., education, law 
enforcement, mental health), supports School Teams in providing timely and appropriate responses 
to concerns raised in tips, and provides clear and consistent feedback to SHPF on the program's needs, 
challenges, and successes. The Program Lead also provides clear parameters and timeframe for Flex 
Team activation (covered in more detail below). The Program Lead is the primary point of contact for 
the SHPF Team, including Account Management and Crisis Center teams. 

b. A District Team: A team of 3-5 year-round district-level administrators, including the Program Lead. 
District Teams support School Teams in tip management and providing follow-up resources, 
assessments, or care plans for students in need. 

c. School Teams: A team for each participating school that consists of 3-5 school-level administrators, 
including a School Team Lead (typically but not necessarily the principal), who serves as the Crisis 
Center's primary point of contact regarding tips submitted to their specific school or questions/ 
concerns about their specific School Team. Team Leads are responsible for identifying trusted and 
high-performing school administrators to perform the duties of the School Team; for keeping their 
Team roster up to date with staff turnover; for ensuring tips are closed-out and dispositioned 
thoughtfully, accurately, and regularly in the P3 Tip Manager; for communicating needs or challenges 
to the Program Lead; and for providing follow-up, assessments, or care plans to students in need. 

d. A Special Team: a team consisting of 1-2 members of the District Team who are notified of 
exceptional or particularly sensitive tips, including but not limited to tips concerning school-
related adults (e.g., school administrators, teachers, coaches, volunteers, etc.) or sexual assault of a 
minor. 



 
 

 3 
 

e. A Flex Team: an optional team consisting of a mix of 3-5 District Team members (typically, the Program 
Lead and each School Team's Lead). If the designated district and school teams are not able to take tips 
during these times, a Flex Team can be engaged during school breaks or holidays (or whenever deemed 
necessary by the Program Lead). The Flex Team flexes to fill gaps and serves as backup as needed. The 
Program Lead must clearly define, in advance and in writing, to the Crisis Center, periods of activation 
(start and end dates/ times) of the Flex Team. 

f.  Launch Readiness Standards: 
i. Approval on Say Something ARS related websites: Program Lead will work with district IT 

personnel to make sure Say Something ARS domains and IP address are approved to ensure 
Say Something ARS communications, including notifications of new and updated tips, 
reach team members' inboxes. 

ii. District Team establishment: Program Lead must identify 3-5 district-level admin to 
support the management of tips and follow-up. 

iii. School Team establishment: Participating Schools must establish a team of 3-5 school-
level administrators to receive and manage tips and provide follow-up and support to 
students. 

iv. School Team Lead Identification: School Teams must have a Team Lead identified. 
v. Special Team and optional Flex Team establishment: Special Team must have 1-2 district-

level team members, and the Flex Team must have 3-5 school or district-level team 
members. 

vi. Cell Phones in P3: All team members must have a cell phone on file in P3 for 
emergency contact purposes 

vii. District email addresses in P3: All team members must provide a district, not 
personal email address in P3. 

viii. Team Training: A Team is considered "trained" when at least 3 of its members 
have completed Say Something ARS Team Training; All Teams must be considered 
"trained." 

ix. The Official Pre-Launch Tip Test: Prior to program launch, Teams are tested by the Crisis 
Center to ensure team members are being notified properly, are able to access tips in the 
P3 Tip Manager, and can perform basic functions within the P3 platform, a Team receives 
a "Pass" on the Official Pre-Launch Tip Test when at least 3 of its members respond to the 
test properly. Program Leads will select their Tip Test date on the Onboarding Dashboard 
after submitting their Student Engagement Plans. Program Leads will select their dates 
through the Say Something ARS Portal using the Dates and Deadlines Tab.  

x. Student Engagement Plans Submission: The Program Lead must submit a plan of when 
they plan to train their students and how many students they'll train. Student 
Engagement Plans determine the program's "Go Live Date," as the program is considered 
officially "live" once the first group of students receive Say Something ARS student 
training. The Go-Live Date determines when the Official Pre-Launch Tip Test is conducted. 
Submission of Student Engagement Plans occur annually following the program's launch, 
prior to the start of the new school year. As such, student training/re--training occurs 
annually, at a minimum. 

Note: The following can result in delayed program launch, additional training, remediation 
measures, or termination. 



 
 

 4 
 

• Repeated failure of the Official Pre-Launch Tip Test 
• Unresponsive Teams/Team members who do not respond to Life Safety calls  
• Out-of-date Team rosters/contact information 
• Lack of student engagement/very low tip volume 
• Failure to observe or undermining of Crisis Center processes and protocol, including not 

responding to after-hours life-safety calls 
 

iv. Policies and Procedures: PTSC to inform SHPF on the relevant PTSC policies and procedures applicable to 
the services SHPF is providing. PTSC to coordinate visitor passes for Program Coordinator, Presenters 
and, as needed, SHPF support staff. 

 
v. SAVE Club Activity and Special Event Support: PTSC to support identified and agreed to special events at 

PTSC , within the region, and SHPF “Call to Action” Weeks.  
 
vi. Report Backs and Data Sharing: PTSC will report back to SHPF on the number of students to be trained per 

participating school or any related data within one week of training as well as provide access to data as 
described in APPENDIX F.  

 
vii. Close Out / Disposition tips in a timely manner: School and District Teams must close out and Disposition 

tips in a timely manner, or within 7 days of tip submission, providing information regarding Tip outcome, 
plan of action for student, and next steps.  
 

ix. Up-to-date information in the P3 team roster: All School / District Teams must maintain accurate contact 
information/details in the team roster, including cell phone numbers and district/school email address.  
 

x. Indemnity: PTSC shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify SHPF, its affiliates, and/or SHPF employees 
and volunteers from claims, demands, damages, or litigation brought by third parties resulting from the 
acts or omissions of PTSC . 

 
xi. Exhibit A-2: The activities set forth on Exhibit A-2 attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
   

3. EXHIBITS. The Exhibits to this MOU are an integral part of this MOU and are specifically incorporated into this MOU.  
They include the obligations and rights of both parties.   

4. FUNDING. SHPF generally funds its programs from a combination of public, private and governmental support. SHPF 
anticipates it will be able to secure adequate funding through these sources to pay for the program for the duration 
of this MOU. However, SHPF reserves the right to terminate the program per the Term and Termination clause in this 
MOU.  

5. TERM AND TERMINATION.  The Program will begin November 1, 2024 and end on June 30, 2027. This MOU shall be 
effective from the date the last Party signs. This MOU and the Program may be terminated, in whole or in part, by 
either Party hereto, upon thirty (30) calendar days’ advance written notice to the other Party. This MOU may be 
amended at any time by the mutual agreement of the Parties; provided, however, that before any amendment shall 
be operative or valid, it shall be reduced to writing and signed by the authorized representatives of the Parties, 
including any amendments to any and all Exhibits of this MOU. 



 
 

 5 
 

6. PRIVACY POLICY AND TERMS OF USE. Please refer to the SHP Privacy Policy and Terms of Use links below: Privacy 
Policy 
Terms of Use 
 
The Privacy Policy and Terms of Use can also be found at www.sandyhookpromise.org 
 
7.  CONTRACTOR. While engaged in performance of this MOU, SHPF is an independent contractor and is not an officer, 
agent, or employee of PTSC . SHPF employees, volunteers and agents are not entitled to benefits of any kind to which 
PTSC ’s employees are entitled, including but not limited to unemployment compensation, worker’ compensation, 
health insurance and retirement benefits. 
 
8. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. It is the policy of PTSC that, in connection with all work performed under 
PTSC MOUs, there shall be no discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability or medical 
condition and, therefore, the SHPF agrees to comply with applicable federal and state laws. In addition, the SHPF 
agrees to require similar compliance by its employees, agents, and all sub-contractors employed on the work. 
 
9. NON-DISCRIMINATION. PTSC is committed to providing a working and learning environment free from 
discrimination, harassment, intimidation and/or bullying. PTSC prohibits discrimination, harassment, intimidation 
and/or bullying and actual or perceived sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, race or 
ethnicity, ethnic group identification, ancestry, nationality, national origin, religion, color, mental or physical disability, 
age, or on the basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived 
characteristics, in any program or activity it conducts or to which it provides significant assistance.  The SHPF agrees 
to comply with applicable federal and state laws.  In addition, the SHPF agrees to require similar compliance by its 
employees, agents, and all sub-contractors employed on the work. 
 
10. GOVERNING LAW. All matters relating to this MOU and any dispute or claim arising therefrom or related thereto 
(in each case, including non-contractual disputes or claims), shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the internal laws of the State of [Indiana] without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule 
(whether of the State of [Indiana] or any other jurisdiction). 
 
11. FINGERPRINTING and BACKGROUND CHECKS. SHPF shall perform the following acts: 
 

A. As required by PTSC , SHPF shall have all current and subsequent employees, agents and volunteers of who 
may enter a school site during the time that students are present submit their fingerprints in a manner 
authorized and required by PTSC . 

B. Prohibit employees, agents and volunteers of SHPF from coming into contact with students until SHPF has 
conducted a background check and employment history check in accordance with all applicable state, local or 
federal statutes or requirements. 

C. As required, provide a list of the names of SHPF’s employees, agents and volunteers who may have contact 
with students to PTSC administrator for this MOU.   

 
12. INSURANCE: SHPF shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this MOU, 
the following insurance coverage from a licensed, admitted or authorized insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better 



 
 

 6 
 

rating from A.M. Best, sufficiently estimated to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including 
counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with SHPF's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this MOU:  
 

A. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as 
follows: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence 
$100,000 fire damage 
$5,000 med expenses 
$1,000,000 personal & adv. injury 
$3,000,000 general aggregate 
$3,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate 

 
B. Business Auto Liability Insurance for owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a combined 

single limit of no less than $1 million per occurrence. 
 

C. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and amount covering SHPF’s full liability 
under applicable state and federal laws, as follows: 

  Part A – Statutory Limits 
  Part B – Employers Liability: $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000  
 

D. Errors & Omissions (Professional Liability) coverage, as follows: $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $1,000,000 
aggregate 
 

E. Sexual Abuse and Molestation coverage, as follows: $1,000,000 per occurrence/$1,000,000 aggregate  
 

SHPF, upon execution of this MOU and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish PTSC with certificates of 
insurance evidencing such coverage.    
 
13. NOTICES.  All notices to be given, or documents, samples, or other materials to be delivered by either Party to the 
other pursuant to this MOU will be sent by prepaid first-class mail, electronic mail, or hand-delivered, to the addresses 
set forth below. Any such notices, documents, samples, or other materials will be deemed to have been given or 
delivered forty-eight (48) hours after posting, if sent by first class mail; when received, if sent by electronic mail; or 
when delivered, if delivered by hand. 
 
To SHPF:  

Title:    Chief Financial Officer 
Entity:   Sandy Hook Promise Foundation   
Address: PO Box 3489, Newtown, CT 06470 
Telephone:   (203)491-2059 
Email:  info@sandyhookpromise.org 

 
To PTSC :   

Name:  Stacey Schmidt   
Title:    Superintendent 
Entity:   Porter Township School Corporation    



 
 

 7 
 

Address: 248 S 500 W. Valparaiso, IN 46385 
Telephone:   219-477-4933 
Email:  stacey.schmidt@ptsc.k12.in.us 
 

14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  Should any problem or conflict arise during the course of the delivery of services under 
this MOU, it is understood that both parties will work with each other to accomplish an effective resolution through 
discussion.  If discussions are unsuccessful, Parties reserve their right to enforce the terms of this MOU in a state or 
federal court located in Porter County, Indiana, this being in addition to any other remedy to which the Parties are 
entitled at law or in equity.  
 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Each Party will comply at their own expense with all applicable laws and regulations, 
including without limitation those of other jurisdictions that may apply concerning the protection of personal data. 
PTSC agrees and acknowledges that PTSC is solely responsible for obtaining any consents required under the 
applicable data privacy and data protection laws for information and access to information provided by PTSC to 
SHPF under this MOU. PTSC acknowledges and agrees that SHPF’s collection and use of personal data from users 
of the Say Something ARS in connection with this MOU shall be governed by the SHPF Privacy Policy, as updated 
from time to time and posted at https://www.sandyhookpromise.org/say-something-tips/, which Privacy Policy is 
made a part of this MOU as if fully set forth herein.   
 
16.  ENTIRE MOU/AMENDMENT. This MOU, all Exhibits to this MOU, and documents incorporated by reference herein, 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties to the MOU and supersede any prior or contemporaneous 
written or oral understanding or agreement, and may be amended only by written amendment executed by both 
parties to this MOU, a described in Section 5, above.  PTSC acknowledges and agrees that a user’s access to and use 
of the Say Something ARS in connection with this MOU shall be governed by the SHPF Terms of Use, as updated 
from time to time and posted at https://www.sandyhookpromise.org/say-something-tips/, which Terms of Use is 
made a part of this MOU as if fully set forth herein.  
 

 
 

PTSC  

 

BY (SIGN): ___________________________ 

 

NAME (Print): _   Stacey Schmidt, PhD           _ 

 

POSITION: ________Superintendent______ 

DATE: _______________________________ 
 

- SHPF- 

 

BY (SIGN): ___________________________ 

 

NAME (Print): _______David Conrad______ 

 

POSITION: _____Chief Financial Officer____ 

 

DATE: _______________________________ 
 



 
 

 8 
 

[Signature page Say Something Anonymous Reporting System (SAY SOMETHING ARS) Memorandum of 
Understanding]



 
 

 1 
 

EXHIBIT A –1 – SAY SOMETHING ARS PROGRAM SPECIFICS 

SHPF and PTSC agree to this agreement as follows: 
 
SHPF will perform the following duties: 
 
1. SHPF shall provide training and support of Say Something ARS to PTSC students and team members. SHPF will 

manage and maintain the 24/7/365 Crisis Center App and website for students, educators, administrators, and 
parents of PTSC ’s students to use to submit anonymous tips.    

2. SHPF shall implement Say Something ARS by retaining qualified persons (Instructors), digital-download instruction 
and training video to provide training and technical assistance to PTSC . 

3. SHPF shall manage the 24/7/365 Crisis Center and provide them with PTSC developed and approved team member 
contact information, Reporting Process and Protocols (Exhibit C) and contact list. 

4. SHPF 24/7/365 Crisis Center will, per PTSC direction, triage all tip submissions prior to trafficking to PTSC .    

5. SHPF 24/7/365 Crisis Center will provide crisis management to any tip submission per PTSC developed and 
approved Life Safety and Non-Life Safety Tip Definitions (Exhibit B), Reporting Process and Protocols (Exhibit C), 
state and federal laws.   

6. SHPF shall share and/or provide immediate, direct access to PTSC all information gathered using Say Something 
ARS – including number of participants, schools, tip details and dispositions. 

7. SHPF will provide prompt support of Say Something ARS via phone, in-person and/or email and make available 
prompt and reasonable online training for all types of users who may interact with the system. 

8. SHPF shall not under any circumstances sell any Say Something ARS information or other data or information 
received or generated as a result of this agreement to any advertiser or third party.  Furthermore, and except as 
to PTSC , SHPF shall always maintain the anonymity of all data and other information received in connection with 
the Say Something ARS including the identity of anyone providing a tip and the specifics of any incident responded 
to or averted unless otherwise demanded under state or federal law. 

9. SHPF grants to PTSC a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, revocable subscription Say Something ARS license 
during the term of this MOU, solely for PTSC ’s purposes – including (a) to use, perform, and digitally display Say 
Something ARS to access, display, search, analyze, reformat, download, and print reports of any submissions 
and/or results generated by the authorized use of the Say Something ARS. 

10. SHPF will provide each user identified on PTSC ‘s contact list with a unique username and password to enable such 
users to access Say Something ARS pursuant to this agreement. SHPF may alternatively provide an assigned PTSC 
Administrator with a unique username and password, which such Administrator will use to create and issue 
additional unique usernames and passwords for PTSC ‘s additional users. SHPF may change or update these 
username and passwords, with notice to PTSC . Each username and password may only be used to access Say 
Something ARS one (1) concurrent login session. SHPF reserves the right to terminate any username and password 
which SHPF reasonably determines may have been used by an unauthorized third party or by any user or individual 
other than the user to whom such username and password was originally assigned. 

11. SHPF will make P3 and tip processing training available to local 911 dispatch, who are alerted 24/7/365 only in the 
case of events requiring law enforcement intervention as described in Exhibit B. In the event that local 911 does 
not agree to access tips via P3, then SHPF will call local 911 dispatch and provide a verbal intake. If 911 dispatch 



 
 

 2 
 

refuses to use P3, PTSC acknowledges compliances with Exhibit D that SHPF assumes no liability for adverse that 
result because of this refusal. 
 

12. Contact Us. Please contact us at the following address:  

Sandy Hook Promise Foundation 
PO Box 3489 
Newtown, CT 06470 
 
Or contact us by email at info@sandyhookpromise.org 
 

                                                                             

 



 
 

 1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A –2 – SAY SOMETHING ARS PROGRAM SPECIFICS  

PTSC will perform the following duties: 
  
1. PTSC to provide and update SHPF their district and school team contact list, identifying the order in which team 

individuals should be contacted.  

2. PTSC acknowledges and agrees that only users are entitled to receive a username and password and to access the 
Services. PTSC will provide SHPF information and other assistance as necessary to enable SHPF to establish 
usernames for users, and PTSC will verify all user requests for account passwords. PTSC will ensure that each 
username and password issued to a user will be used only by that user. PTSC is responsible for maintaining the 
confidentiality of all users' usernames and passwords and is solely responsible for all activities that occur under 
these usernames. PTSC agrees (a) not to allow a third party to use its account, usernames, or passwords at any 
time, and (b) to promptly notify SHPF in writing of any actual or suspected unauthorized use of its account, 
usernames or passwords, or any other breach or suspected breach of the obligations contained in this Section. In 
the event of a data breach, SHPF shall timely notify PTSC , take prompt and deliberate action in response to the 
breach, and provide all such notifications as required under law, as well as perform any other legally required 
functions in response to the data breach.   

3. PTSC acknowledges and agrees to act upon all known Say Something ARS submissions in accordance with PTSC 
policies and procedures.  

4. PTSC acknowledges and agrees that all trainings are SHPF’s intellectual property, and they will not be shared 
beyond the school and district (i.e., on social media, on school website, etc.), nor will they be modified in any way 
without express permission from SHPF. 

 

 

 



 
 

 1 
 

EXHIBIT B – SAY SOMETHING ARS Event Types 

Below is a list of event types that Tipsters can choose from the dropdown when submitting a tip. When a Crisis 
Counselor receives, vets, and triages a tip, it is categorized as Life Safety or Non-Life Safety based on the criteria 
below.  

For a tip to be designated by a Crisis Center Crisis Counselor as “Life Safety,” the tip must articulate a threat of 
substantial bodily harm or death, and it must have at least one of the following characteristics:  
 

• Actionability: enough information is available for a welfare check/intervention to immediately take place; 
• Timeliness: reported concern is imminent, in-progress, or just happened; 
• Credibility: information is clear, consistent, convincing, and supported by evidence; or 
• Probability: subject has the means, intent, and opportunity to carry out the threat. 

 
Based on their intuition and the totality of the circumstances, Crisis Counselors have the discretion to err on the side of 
caution and make a Life Safety designation.  
 

 



 
 

 1 
 

EXHIBIT C - REPORTING PROCESS AND PROTOCOLS 
 

 
 

 
All Non-Life Safety tips are sent to School Team contacts between the hours of 6:00am and 6:00pm on 
weekdays (local time) daily, and between the hours of 10:00am to 6:00pm on weekends.  
 

Contact Us. Please contact us at the following address:  

Sandy Hook Promise 
PO Box 3489 
Newtown, CT 06470 
 
Or contact us by email at info@sandyhookpromise.org 

 
                                                                          



 
 

 1 
 

EXHIBIT D - 911 Dispatch Training and P3 Use  

The Say Something ARS model is designed to contact and involve local 911 dispatch in life-threatening situations. 
However, local 911 is not required to attend training or use the P3 system. SHPF will, however, make Say Something 
ARS training available to all local 911 dispatch centers and will also make available the web-based tip management 
system, which allows team members to:  

• View real-time anonymous dialogue between tipsters and SHPF Crisis Counselors 
• View any pictures, videos or evidence attached to a tip 
• Dialogue with a tipster if necessary 
• Access real-time updates to an evolving situation, potentially providing officer safety information 

PTSC and SHPF agree and acknowledge that SHPF will not be held liable for any adverse outcome resulting from a local 
911 dispatch’s refusal to participate in training or use the Say Something-ARS model or web-based tip management 
system as intended.   

  

Contact Us. Please contact us at the following address:  

Sandy Hook Promise 
PO Box 3489 
Newtown, CT 06470 
 
Or contact us by email at info@sandyhookpromise.org 
 

  



 
 

 1 
 

EXHIBIT E - Participating Schools List  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 Any questions or concerns should be directed to:  
 

Company:  Sandy Hook Promise Foundation 
Address: PO Box 3489, Newtown, CT 06470 
Telephone:   203-304-9780 
Email:   info@sandyhookpromise.org 

  



 
 

 2 
 

EXHIBIT F - DATA SHARING AGREEMENT 

Memorandum of Agreement 
By and Between PTSC and Sandy Hook Promise Foundation  

The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation is a national nonprofit organization founded and led by several family 
members whose loved ones were killed at Sandy Hook Elementary School on December 14, 2012. Based in 
Newtown, Connecticut, our intent is to honor all victims of gun violence by turning our tragedy into a moment of 
transformation. By empowering youth to “know the signs” and uniting all people who value the protection of 
children, we can take meaningful actions in schools, homes, and communities to prevent gun violence and stop the 
tragic loss of life.  

Data Required  

The primary aim of ongoing evaluation is to extract, secure, and analyze data from the Say Something Anonymous 
Reporting System (Say Something ARS) for purposes of trend identification in connection with contracted research 
partner University of Michigan and continual program improvement. PTSC will make data available as needed to 
SHPF: all raw data pertaining to tips received during the contract period. Relevant fields include, but are not limited 
to, type of tip; source of tip; date recorded/last action/outstanding (i.e., time until resolution); disposition; time of 
tip; triage rates (school vs police); other variables as identified. These data will be treated confidentially and 
aggregated so that no identifying data of a single individual or single school will ever be externally reported, except 
as outlined in processes for tip escalation in the scope of Crisis Counselor tip coordination. The Say Something ARS 
raw data will be merged with Sandy Hook Promise training data and publicly available from PTSC school/district data 
to create an integrated data set that will enable analysis of training and school-related factors on tip submissions. 
Analysis of the [Say Something ARS] data will contribute to the evidence base of anonymous reporting systems and 
guide decision making related to the monitoring and responding to tips. Upon completion of the evaluation 
objectives, the project team will report data-driven documentation to SHPF and PTSC of common tip profiles, which 
can be shared with other participating districts to manage expectations and staffing in order to meet the needs of 
tip subjects.  

Agreement for Sharing of Data  

This Agreement is entered into by the PTSC and the Sandy Hook Promise Foundation for the purpose of sharing 
information between the parties in a manner consistent with the Family Education Records Privacy Act of 1974 
(“FERPA”). The information will be used by researchers at the SHPF to conduct studies designed to improve Say 
Something ARS tools and services for schools participating in SHP’s Say Something ARS program in the state of 
[State]. 

FERPA describes circumstances under which Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) and the PTSC are authorized to 
release confidential data regarding individual students, teachers, and schools without prior parental consent. 
Confidential information can be disclosed to organizations as stated in section II. 2. and is destroyed per section V.  



 
 

 3 
 

The following terms further specify the manner in which the PTSC agrees to share data with the Sandy Hook Promise 
Foundation, subject to FERPA regulations:  

I. PARTIES. The PTSC is a state educational authority authorized to receive information from local educational 
agencies (“LEAs”) subject to FERPA, as authorized by 34 CFR Section 99.31. Researcher desires to conduct 
studies on tip data for the purpose of improving Say Something ARS tools and resources in Indiana public 
schools. The parties wish to share data collected by the PTSC regarding education in Indiana, some of which 
may allow the identification of individual students.  

II. COMPLIANCE WITH FERPA. To effect the transfer of data subject to FERPA, the Sandy Hook Promise 
Foundation agrees to:  
1. In all respects comply with the provisions of FERPA. For purposes of this Agreement, “FERPA” includes 

any amendments or other relevant provisions of federal law, as well as all requirements of Chapter 99 of 
Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations and reauthorization when effective. Nothing in this 
Agreement may be construed to allow either party to maintain, use, disclose or share student 
information in a manner not allowed by federal law or regulation.  

2. Use the data shared under this Agreement for no purpose other than research and analysis authorized 
under Section 99.31(a)(6) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations which allow disclosure of 
personally identifiable information from students’ education records in connection with PTSC ’s 
conducting studies to develop, validate, or administer predictive tests, administer student aid programs, 
or improve instruction. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation further agrees not to share data received 
under this MOA with any entity other than contracted research partner University of Michigan without 
the PTSC approval. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation agrees to allow the Office of the State Auditor, 
subject to FERPA restrictions, access to data shared under this Agreement and any relevant records of 
the Sandy Hook Promise Foundation for purposes of completing authorized audits of the parties.  

3. Require all employees, contractors and agents of any kind to comply with all applicable provisions of 
FERPA and other federal laws with respect to the data shared under this Agreement. SHPF agrees to 
require and maintain an appropriate confidentiality agreement from each employee, contractor or 
agent with access to data pursuant to this Agreement. Nothing in this paragraph authorizes sharing data 
provided under this Agreement with any other entity for any purpose other than completing the Sandy 
Hook Promise Foundation’s work authorized under this Agreement.  

4. Maintain all data obtained pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with Indiana State Information 
Security Manual and not copy, reproduce or transmit data obtained pursuant to this Agreement except 
as necessary to fulfill the purpose of the original request. All copies of data of any type, including any 
modifications or additions to data from any source that contains information regarding individual 
students, are subject to the provisions of this Agreement in the same manner as the original data. The 
ability to access or maintain data under this Agreement shall not under any circumstances transfer from 
the Sandy Hook Promise Foundation to any other institution or entity or unauthorized individual or 
agent.  

5. Not to disclose any data obtained under this Agreement in a manner that could identify an individual 
student, except as authorized by FERPA, to any other entity. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation may 
publish results of studies authorized by this Agreement.  



 
 

 4 
 

6. Not to provide any data obtained under this Agreement to any party ineligible to receive data protected 
by FERPA or prohibited from receiving data from any entity by virtue of a finding under Sections 
99.67(c), (d), or (e) of Title 34, Code of Federal Regulations.  

7. Destroy all data and provided verification in writing of the destruction of all copies of the data obtained 
under this Agreement to PTSC 12 months following the date of publication of the final report of this 
project. All data no longer needed shall be destroyed or returned to the PTSC in compliance with 34 CFR 
Section 99.35(b)(2). The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation agrees to require all employees, contractors, 
or agents of any kind to comply with this provision. 

III. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE. The SHPF shall designate in writing (an) authorized representative(s) able to 
request data under this Agreement. The authorized representative shall be responsible for transmitting all 
data requests and maintaining a log or other record of all data requested and received pursuant to this 
Agreement, including confirmation of the completion of any projects and the return or destruction data as 
required by this Agreement. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation designates the [Research Institution] as 
the authorized representative of the Department’s data. PTSC or its agents may upon request review the 
records required to be kept under this section.  

IV. RELATED PARTIES. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation represents that it is authorized to bind to the terms 
of this agreement, including confidentiality and destruction or return of student data, all related or 
associated institutions, individuals, employees or contractors who may have access to the data or may own, 
lease or control equipment or facilities of any kind where the data is stored, maintained or used in any way. 
Data may be stored on a server with additional data but may not be merged with any other data without 
prior written permission from PTSC . This Agreement takes effect only upon acceptance by authorized 
representatives of the Sandy Hook Promise Foundation, by which that institution agrees to abide by its 
terms and return or destroy all student data covered by this MOA 12 months following the date of 
publication of the final report of this project.  

V. TERMS. This Agreement takes effect upon signature by the authorized representative of each party and will 
remain in effect until June 30, 2027. The parties further understand that the PTSC or the Sandy Hook 
Promise Foundation may cancel this Agreement at any time, upon reasonable notice. The PTSC specifically 
reserves the right to cancel this Agreement should the PTSC in its sole discretion, determine that 
confidential student information has been released in a manner inconsistent with this Agreement, has not 
been maintained in a secure manner, or that substantially similar data access has become generally 
available for research purposes through any other mechanism approved by the PTSC .  
1. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation understands that the Agreement does not convey ownership of 

data to the Sandy Hook Promise Foundation.  
2. PTSC agrees to make a good faith effort to provide the most accurate and complete data possible at the 

time of the request. This does not imply that PTSC guarantees the accuracy, completeness, or currency 
of the data that will be provided as a result of this Agreement.  

3. PTSC data shall not be removed from the United States. Remote access to PTSC data from outside the 
continental United States is prohibited, including access by employees, contractors, subcontractors, or 
agents of any kind. PTSC data is defined as any data provided by PTSC , any data provided by a third 
party at the direction of PTSC , any data to which access is provided by PTSC and/or the results of PTSC 
source data combined with any other data.  



 
 

 5 
 

4. Sandy Hook Promise Foundation will provide PTSC with an electronic copy of the final versions of all 
reports and other documents associated with the analysis of tip data PTSC , as the owner of the data, 
reserves the right to distribute and otherwise use the final report and associated documents in its 
discretion, in sum or in part. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation, or its agents working on this project, 
retain the right to publish findings in other publications, provided that prior notice of report is first 
shared with PTSC .  

5. Sandy Hook Promise Foundation has the right, consistent with scientific standards, to publish, present or 
use the study results gained in the course of the research under this Agreement. In order to protect the 
confidentiality of previously identified confidential information disclosed to SHPF the authorized 
representative agrees to provide to PTSC any proposed publications or presentations which are to make 
public any findings, data, or results of the research under this Agreement for the Department’s review at 
least thirty (30) days prior to submission of a manuscript or abstract for publication or the date of the 
presentation. The Sandy Hook Promise Foundation agrees to delete any of PTSC ’s previously identified 
confidential information therefrom.  

 
 



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

Code po1130

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised August 10, 2017

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
1130 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity, impartiality, and professional conduct by School
Corporation employees, officers, and agents is essential to ensure the proper performance of school business as well
as to earn and keep public confidence in the Corporation.
 
To accomplish this, the School Board has adopted the following guidelines which apply to all Corporation employees,
officers, and agents, including Trustees, and Board members to assure that conflicts of interest do not occur. These
guidelines are not intended to be all-inclusive; nor are they intended to substitute for good judgment on the part of
all Corporation employees, officers, agents, and Board members.

An employee, officer, or agent, or Board member of the Corporation making a recommendation to the Board on a
matter to be considered by the Board shall not accept a gift or gratuity from a person or entity having a substantial
personal or pecuniary interest in the Board's decision on the matter in accordance with the restrictions and
provisions of I.C. 35-44.1-1- 4.

 
1. No employee, officer, (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member shall engage in or have

a financial or other interest in, directly or indirectly, any activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question
of conflict with his/her the individual's Corporation responsibilities.
 

2. Employees, officers, (that is, any member of the Board), and agents, and Board members shall not engage in
business, private practice of their profession, the rendering of services, or the sale of goods of any type
where advantage is taken of any professional relationship they may have with any student, client, or parents
of such students or clients in the course of their employment or professional relationship with the
Corporation.
 
Included, by way of illustration rather than limitation are the following:
 

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee
 

b. the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged information about a student or client gained in
the course of the employee's employment or professional relationship with the Corporation through
his/her access to Corporation records their access to Corporation records
 

c. the referral of any student or client for lessons or services to any private business or professional
practitioner; if there is any expectation of reciprocal referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration
for such referrals
 

d. the requirement of students or clients to purchase any private goods or services provided by an
employee, officer, (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member, or any business or
professional practitioner with whom any employee, officer, (that is, any member of the Board), or



agent, or Board member has a financial relationship, as a condition of receiving any grades, credits,
promotions, approvals, or recommendations
 

3. Employees, officers, (that is, any member of the Board), and agents, and Board members shall not make use
of materials, equipment, or facilities of the Corporation in private practice.  Examples would be the use of
facilities before, during, or after regular business hours for service to private practice clients, or the checking
out of items from an instructional materials center for private practice.
 

4. Employees, officers (that is, any member of the Board), and agents shall not solicit gifts, travel packages,
and other incentives from prospective contractors.Employees, officers, agents, and Board members of the
Corporation may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors.
 

5. Employees, officers (that is, any member of the Board), and agents shall not participate in the selection,
award and administration of any contract to an entity in which they have a pecuniary interest or from which
they derive a profit or in which a dependent of the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or
agent has a pecuniary interest or from which the dependent derives a profit.  “Dependent” includes the
employee’s spouse; unemancipated child, stepchild or adopted child under the age of eighteen (18); or
individual for whom the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent provides more than
one‑half (1/2) of the individual’s support during a year.  A “pecuniary interest” means an interest in a
contract or purchase that will result or is intended to result in an ascertainable increase in the income or net
worth of the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent or the employee’s, officer’s (that
is, any member of the Board), or agent’s dependent who is under the direct or indirect administrative control
of the employee, officer, or agent or who receives a contract or purchase order that is reviewed, approved, or
directly or indirectly administered by the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent.No
employee, officer, agent, or Board member with a real or apparent conflict of interest may participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by the Federal award. A conflict of interest
includes when the employee, officer, agent, or Board member, or any member of their immediate family, their
partner, or an organization that employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a contract.
 

6. This includes contracts between the Corporation and an entity in which the individual has a
pecuniary interest, as defined in I.C. 35-44.1-4(a)(3), or from which the individual derives a profit,
or in which a dependent, as defined in I.C. 35-44.1-4(a)(1), of the individual has a pecuniary
interest or derives a profit.
 

B. No conflict of interest will be deemed to be present if the Corporation employee's, officer’s (that is, any member of
the Board), or agent’s individual's interest in the contract or purchase and all other contracts and purchases made
by the Corporation during the twelve (12) months before the date of the contract or purchase was less than $250 or
less.
 

C. Should exceptions to this policy be necessary in order to provide mandatory services through a private
relationship to students or clients of the Corporation, all such exceptions will be made known to the employee's
individual's supervisor, or to the School Board if there is no supervisor, and will be disclosed to the Superintendent
before entering into any private relationship.
 

D. To the extent that the Corporation has a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a State, local
government, or Indian tribe, the Corporation may not conduct a procurement action involving the parent, affiliate, or
subsidiary organization if the Corporation is unable, or appears to be unable, to be impartial.
 

E. Employees, officers, and agents, and Board members must disclose any potential conflict of interest which that may
lead to a violation of this policy to the Corporation.  Upon discovery or notification of any potential conflict of
interest, the Corporation will disclose, in writing, the potential conflict of interest to the appropriate Federal awarding
agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

The Corporation also will disclose, in a timely manner, all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or
gratuity that affect a Federal award to the appropriate Federal awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through
entity.The Corporation will promptly disclose whenever, in connection with the Federal award (including any activities
or subawards thereunder), it has credible evidence of the commission of a violation of Federal criminal law involving
fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or gratuity violations found in Title 18 of the United States Code or a violation of
the civil False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. 3729-3733). The disclosure must be made in writing to the Federal agency, the
agency's Office of Inspector General, and pass-through entity. The Corporation is also required to report matters
related to recipient integrity and performance in accordance with Appendix XII of 2 C.F.R. Part 200.
 



F. Employees, officers, and agents, and Board members found to be in violation of this conflict of interest policy will be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable Board policy.
 

 
I.C. 20-26-3-4
I.C. 20-26-5-4
I.C. 35-44.1-1-1, 35-44.1-1-2, 35-44.1-1-4, 35-44.1-1-5
2 C.F.R. Part IV
2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318
7 C.F.R. 3016.36(b)(3) and 3019.42
 
© Neola 2016 2024

Legal I.C. 20-26-3-4

I.C. 20-26-5-4

I.C. 35-44.1-1-1, 35-44.1-1-2, 35-44.1-1-4, 35-44.1-1-5

2 C.F.R. Part IV

2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318

7 C.F.R. 3016.36(b)(3) and 3019.42



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revision of EMPLOYMENT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

Code po1220

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised July 14, 2022

1220 - EMPLOYMENT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT
 
The School Board vests the primary responsibility for administration of the School Corporation in the Superintendent of
Schools. The appointment of the Superintendent is, therefore, one of the most important functions the Board can perform.
 
Whenever the position of Superintendent of Schools becomes vacant, the Board shall will appoint a Superintendent and fix
theirhis/her salary and term of employment, which shall will be for a term of at least one (1) year and not more than three
(3) years. However, a contract may be extended for not more than an additional five (5) years beyond the term of the
original contract.
 
Beginning with July 1, 2021, and thereafter, the The Board shall will not enter into a contract with a Superintendent on or
after the date of the election of one or more members of the governing body until January 1 of the year immediately
following the year of the election. This policy provision does not apply if the membership of the governing body does not
change by more than one member as a result of the particular election (I.C. 20-28-8-6).
 
If the contract contains a provision that establishes an amount the Board must pay to the Superintendent to buy out the
contract, the amount may not be more than an amount equal to the lesser of:
 

A. the Superintendent‘s salary for any one (1) year under the contract; or
 

B. $250,000.
 
A Superintendent’s salary under clause (A) does not include benefits or any other forms of compensation that the
Superintendent receives as payment under the contract other than the Superintendent’s salary.
 
The contract between the Board and the Superintendent shall may not provide for the awarding of a monetary bonus or
other incentive that is based on the approval of a public question under I.C. 6-1.1-20 or I.C. 20-46 (referendum).
 
The Board shall will actively seek the best qualified and most capable candidate for the position of Superintendent.
Recruitment procedures will be prepared in advance of the search and will include:

A. preparation of a written job specification for the position of Superintendent;
 

B. preparation of written specifications of qualification in addition to proper State certification;
 

C. preparation of informative material describing this Corporation and its educational goals;
 

D. where feasible, the opportunity for applicants to visit the schools of this Corporation;
 

E. the requirement that each selected candidate for the position be interviewed by Board members in a format that
encourages him/her to express his/her educational philosophy;
 

F. solicitation of applications from a wide geographical area;
 

G. consideration of all applicants fairly without discrimination on the basis of race, gender, age, religion, ethnic
background, disability, or other condition unrelated to the position of Superintendent.

 



No person may be employed as Superintendent of this Corporation unless they have s/he has signed an employment
contract with the Board.
 
At least seven (7) days before a contract for employment is entered into between the Board and the Superintendent, the
Board shall hold a public meeting on the proposed contract to hear objections to and support for and discuss, the proposed
contract.
 
The Board Secretary shall submit notice of the meeting on the proposed contract for publication in a newspaper serving the
Corporation in compliance with I.C. 5-3-1 and for posting on the newspaper's Internet website in compliance with I.C. 5-3-
1-1.5 at least once no less than ten (10) days before the date of the meeting. The Board Secretary also shall direct that the
published notice be posted on the Corporation's Internet website.
 
The notice shall:
 

A. state that on a given day, time, and place, the Board will meet to discuss and hear objections to and support for the
proposed contract; and
 

B. set forth the details of the proposed contract, including the actual monetary value of the contract, benefits, and any
additional forms of compensation for each year of the contract.

 
The name of the candidate for the position of Superintendent shall not be included in the notices or discussion of the
proposed contract.
 
Such contract shall will be in the basic form of the regular teacher's contract if the Superintendent holds a license under
I.C. 20-28-5 and will include:
 

A. the term for which employment is contracted, including beginning and ending dates;
 

B. the salary which the Superintendent will be paid and the intervals at which they s/he will be paid;
 

C. the benefits to which they are s/he is entitled;
 

D. such other matters as may be necessary to a full and complete understanding of the employment contract.
 
See also Policy 8311 - Public Access to Employee Contracts for further posting requirements following the approval of an
employment contract with the Superintendent.
 
Anti-Nepotism:
 
"Relatives" include: children, stepchildren, siblings, half-siblings, step-siblings, spouse, domestic partner, parents,
stepparents, in-laws, or bona fide dependents of a Board member or the Superintendent.
 
Relatives of Board members may be employed by the Corporation, provided the member  of the Board involved does not
participate in any way in the discussion or vote on the relative's employment. Should the Corporation choose to employ a
relative as herein defined, both the relative and the Board member must file a conflict of interest statement.
 
Relatives of the Superintendent may be employed by the Corporation, provided the staff member being employed is not
placed in a position in which the relative staff member would be supervised directly by the Superintendent.
 
The Superintendent so appointed shall will devote themselves himself/herself to the duties of their his/her office.
 
Any candidate's intentional misstatement of fact material to their his/her qualification for employment or the determination
of their his/her salary shall will be considered by this Board to constitute grounds for their his/her dismissal.
 
The contract may be altered or rescinded for a new one at any time by mutual consent of the governing body and the
superintendent. The consent of both parties must be in writing and must be expressed in a manner consistent with I.C. 20-
28-8-6 and 7. If the Superintendent holds a license under I.C. 20-28-5, the rights of a Superintendent as a teacher under
any other law are not affected by the contract unless those rights conflict with the terms of I.C. 20-28-8-6(b), in which case
the provisions of I.C. 20-28-8-6(b) govern.
 
Revised 1/16/03
Revised 2/15/07
Revised 3/18/18
Revised 3/11/21



 
© Neola 2021

Legal I.C. 5-14-1.5-6.1(b)(5) and (9)

I.C. 20-28-8-6

I.C. 20-28-8-7



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title *REVISION* RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

Code po1230

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

1230 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUPERINTENDENT
 
The Superintendent of Schools shall strive to achieve Corporation goals by providing educational direction and supervision
to the professional staff and supervision to the support staff and by acting as a proper model for staff and students both in
and outside the Corporation.
 
Duties and Responsibilities
 
The Superintendent shall be directly responsible to the School Board for the performance of the following assigned duties
and responsibilities:
 

D. ensure that all aspects of Corporation operation comply with State laws and rules/regulations as well as Board
contracts and policies
 

E. establish and maintain a written educational plan required by law and consistent with the educational goals adopted
by the Board
 

F. ensure proper implementation of the current Corporation-wide instructional plan as it applies to each building
 

G. strive to increase the efficient use of Corporation resources in the daily operations of the schools
 

H. enforce the school attendance laws
 

I. assign staff to achieve the maximum benefit toward the attainment of educational goals
 

J. evaluate the progress of the professional and support staff toward the attainment of educational goals
 

K. analyze the results of instructional program development as it applies to the Board's educational goals

A. promptly and fully inform the Board of any matter or related matters involving legal expenses reasonably expected
to exceed $5000 (I.C. 20-26-5-44)
 

B. form all Board members within five (5) business days, if the Superintendent:
 

1. becomes aware of possible criminal activity involving a current or former Corporation employee or
contract that:
 

a. may have occurred on school property or at a school approved activity or event not on school
property; and
 

b. may have involved a current or former student who was a student at the time of the possible
criminal activity; or
 

2. concludes an investigation of a personnel matter that results in or could result in the suspension or
termination of a Corporation employee (I.C. 20-26-5-42.3)

C. keep the Board informed of school operations operation by preparing monthly Board agendas, providing oral and
written communication, scheduling management team committee meetings, and requesting special Board meetings
that become necessary to keep the Board properly informed
 



 
L. recommend changes in instructional or staffing patterns based on an analysis of staff and program progress

 
M. work cooperatively with parents and community groups concerned with programs in the schools

 
N. develop personal capabilities in personnel strategies and facility management

 
O. work cooperatively with the Board and administrative staff

 
P. strive toward the highest standards of personal conduct

 
Q. perform such other duties as the Board may direct

 
R. prepare and maintain appropriate job descriptions for all personnel



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title *REVISION* of WEAPONS

Code po1617

Status

Adopted April 9, 2015

1617 - WEAPONS
 
The Except for a person who legally may possess a firearm and has been authorized by the School Board to carry a firearm
in or on School Corporation property, the Board prohibits administrators from possessing, storing, making, or using a
weapon in any setting that is under the control and supervision of the Corporation for the purpose of school activities
approved and authorized by the Corporation including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted for by the
Corporation, a school-sponsored event, or in a Corporation vehicle; provided, however, that an administrator is not
prohibited from possessing a firearm or ammunition that is locked in the trunk of the administrator's vehicle, kept in the
glove compartment of the administrator's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the administrator's locked vehicle.
 
Generally, the possession of a firearm in or on school property, in or on property that is being used by a school for a school
function, or on a school bus is a felony (I.C. 35-47-9-2) and is prohibited by Board policy. However, State law permits a
person who may legally may possess a firearm to maintain that firearm if it is locked in the person’s trunk, kept in the
glove compartment of the person’s locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the person’s locked vehicle. This exception
does not apply to students unless it is a high school student who is a member of a shooting sports team and the principal
has approved the student keeping a firearm concealed in the student’s motor vehicle on days the student is competing or
practicing as a member of a shooting sports team. This exception also does not apply to former students if the person is no
longer enrolled in school due to a disciplinary action within the previous twenty- four (24) months.
 
The term "weapon" means any object which, in the manner in which it is used, intended to be used, or represented, is
capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, or as well as endangering the health or safety of persons.
Weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms, tasers, handguns, stun guns, guns of any type, including air and gas-
powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, chemical weapons, metallic knuckles,
martial arts weapons, ammunition, and destructive devices (such as bombs, incendiary devices, grenades, Molotov
cocktails, rockets with a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, etc.). A "knife" is defined as "an instrument that:
1) consists of a sharp edged or sharp pointed blade capable of inflicting cutting, stabbing, or tearing wounds; and 2) is
intended to be used as a weapon." I.C. 35-47-5-2.5(a)
 
The Superintendent will report an administrator who violates this policy to law enforcement officials. The administrator also
will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, for violation of this policy.
 
This prohibition does not apply to weapons under the control of law enforcement personnel, as well as a School Resource
Officer or other school security personnel who is not a law enforcement officer, but who may legally may possess a firearm.
 
Exceptions to this policy include:
 

A. items approved by a principal as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, if used for the
purpose of and in the manner approved; (Working firearms and ammunition shall never be approved.)
 

B. theatrical props used in appropriate settings;
 

C. starter pistols used in appropriate school related sporting events.
 
Staff members must report knowledge of weapon's possession dangerous weapons and/or threats of violence by students,
staff members, or visitors to the principal. Failure to report such information may subject the staff member to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.
 
© Neola 202414



Legal I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.

I.C. 34-28-7-2

I.C. 35-47-5-2.5

I.C. 35-47-9



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Rescinded Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - CLASS SIZE

Code po2312

Status

Rescinded Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
2312 - CLASS SIZE
 
The School Board requires that class sizes be determined with reference to instructional quality and economy of operation.
[ ] and the terms of the negotiated agreement.
 
A desired range for the minimum number of students and an upper limit for that maximum number of students which
teachers shall have in their regular classes shall be established by the [ ] Board. [ ] Superintendent. [ ] ____________.
[END OF OPTION]
 
The Superintendent shall prepare guidelines for class size. Maximum limits shall take into account:
 

 
Teacher load shall be allowed to rise somewhat above the desired maximum in cases of a temporary enrollment bulge, but
the student/teacher ratio shall not average more than
 
[ ] 30/1.
 
[ ] 29/1.
 
[ ] 28/1.
 
[ ] 27/1.
 
© Neola 2009

A. ( ) subject matter;
 

B. ( ) type of instruction;
 

C. ( ) ability of students;
 

D. ( ) help of aides;
 

E. ( ) use of special facilities and equipment;
 

F. ( ) participation in the Prime Time Program.

Legal 511 IAC 6-2-1(b)(2)

511 IAC 1-8-1 et seq.



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - STUDENT ASSESSMENT

Code po2623

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised March 11, 2021

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
2623 - STUDENT ASSESSMENT
 
The School Board, in compliance with law and rules of the State Board of Education, shall implement the State Board-
approved statewide achievement test to assess student achievement and needs in English/language arts, mathematics,
social studies, science, and other designated subjects in order to determine the progress of students and to assist them in
attaining School Corporation and State Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) goals.
 
Student test scores on statewide assessments may be utilized in making placement decisions; provided, however, a
student's score on the state assessment may not be the primary factor or measure used to determine whether a student is
eligible for a particular course or program.
 
Additionally, the Board shall administer any end of course exams as may be required by the State Board in grades 9
through 12.
 
The Board shall comply with the requirements of the State Board of Education in administering the Indiana Reading
Evaluation and Determination (IREAD-3) Assessment to students enrolled in grade 2 and grade 3.
 
The parent of a student who has been retained in grade 3 pursuant to I.C. 20-32-8.5-2(a)(2)(A) because the student has
not achieved a passing score on the IREAD-3 and who would not have been retained for other reasons may appeal the
student's retention if the parent believes that one of the following exceptions applies:
 

 
The parent must submit the appeal in writing, along with supporting documentation, to the Principal prior to the beginning
of the school year in which the student is to be retained. Once received, the Principal will consider the documentation
submitted by the parent and issue a determination, in writing, within five (5) business days from receipt of the appeal
about whether the student meets one of the criteria in A-E above that excepts the student from retention, which will be
provided to the parent via electronic mail (if authorized by the parent), U.S. First Class mail, or hand delivery.

A. the student was subject to retention and has been retained in grade 3 for one (1) school year;
 

B. the student has an intellectual disability or the student's individualized education program specifies that retention is
not appropriate, and the student's case conference committee has determined that promotion to another grade is
appropriate;
 

C. the student is an English learner who has received services for fewer than two (2) years and a committee consisting
of the parent, a building level administrator or designee, a classroom teacher of service, an English learner teacher
of record (if one exists), and an English learner district administrator (if one exists) determines that promotion is
appropriate based on the implementation of research based instructional practices outlined in the student's
individual learning plan;
 

D. the student received a score of proficient or above proficient in grade 3 math on the statewide summative
assessment; or
 

E. the student has received intensive intervention as determined by the IDOE in reading for two (2) or more years and
was retained more than one (1) time throughout kindergarten, grade 1, or grade 2.



 
This determination is final, and the Board will not hear appeals from this determination. [end of option 1]
 
 
The Superintendent shall develop and implement a plan which complies with guidelines established by the Department of
Education IDOE.
 
© Neola 2020 2024

Legal I.C. 20-32-2

I.C. 20-32-8

I.C. 20-32-8.5

511 IAC 5

511 IAC 6.2-3.1



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

Code po3113

Status

Adopted April 14, 2016

Last Revised April 12, 2018

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
3113 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity, impartiality, and professional conduct by School
Corporation employees, officers (that is, all members of the School Board), and agents is essential to ensure the
proper performance of school business as well as to earn and keep public confidence in the Corporation.
 
To accomplish this, the School Board has adopted the following guidelines which apply to all Corporation employees,
officers, (that is, all members of the Board), and agents, and Board members, to assure that conflicts of interest do
not occur. These guidelines are not intended to be all-inclusive; nor are they intended to substitute for good
judgment on the part of all Corporation employees, officers, agents, and Board members.

An employee, officer, (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member of the Corporation making a
recommendation to the Board on a matter to be considered by the Board shall not accept a gift or gratuity from a
person or entity having a substantial personal or pecuniary interest in the Board's decision on the matter in
accordance with the restrictions and provisions of I.C. 35-44.1-1-4.
 

1. No employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member shall engage in or have
a financial or other interest in, directly or indirectly, any activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question
of conflict with his/her the individual's Corporation responsibilities.
 

2. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents, and Board members shall not engage in
business, private practice of their profession, the rendering of services, or the sale of goods of any type
where advantage is taken of any professional relationship they may have with any student, client, or parents
of such students or clients in the course of their employment or professional relationship with the
Corporation.

Included, by way of illustration rather than limitation are the following:
 

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee
 

b. the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged information about a student or client gained in
the course of the employee's employment or professional relationship with the Corporation through
his/her their access to Corporation records
 

c. the referral of any student or client for lessons or services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there is any expectation of reciprocal referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration
for such referrals
 

d. the requirement of students or clients to purchase any private goods or services provided by an
employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member, or any business or
professional practitioner with whom any employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or
agent, or Board member has a financial relationship, as a condition of receiving any grades, credits,



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - WEAPONS

Code po3217

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised April 9, 2015

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
3217 - WEAPONS
 
Except for a person who legally may possess a firearm and has been authorized by the School Board to carry a firearm in or
on School Corporation property, The the Board prohibits professional staff members from possessing, storing, making, or
using a weapon in any setting that is under the control and supervision of the Corporation for the purpose of school
activities approved and authorized by the Corporation including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted
for by the Corporation, a school-sponsored event, or in a Corporation vehicle; provided, however, that a professional staff
member is not prohibited from possessing a firearm or ammunition that is locked in the trunk of the professional staff
member's vehicle, kept in the glove compartment of the professional staff member's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain
sight in the professional staff member's locked vehicle.
 
Generally, the possession of a firearm in or on school property, in or on property that is being used by a school for a school
function, or on a school bus is a felony (I.C. 35-47-9-2) and is prohibited by Board policy. However, State law permits a
person who may legally may possess a firearm to maintain that firearm if it is locked in the person's trunk, kept in the
glove compartment of the person's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the person's locked vehicle. This exception
does not apply to students unless it is a high school student who is a member of a shooting sports team and the principal
has approved the student keeping a firearm concealed in the student's motor vehicle on days the student is competing or
practicing as a member of a shooting sports team. This exception also does not apply to former students if the person is no
longer enrolled in school due to a disciplinary action within the previous twenty-four (24) months.
 
The term "weapon" means any object which, in the manner in which it is used, intended to be used, or represented, is
capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, as well as damage or endangering the health or safety of
persons. Weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms, tasers, handguns, stun guns, guns of any type, including air and
gas-powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, chemical weapons, metallic
knuckles, martial arts weapons, ammunition, and destructive devices (such as bombs, incendiary devices,
grenadegrenades, Molotov cocktail cocktails, rocket rockets with a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, etc.). A
"knife" is defined as "an instrument that: 1) consists of a sharp edge edged or sharp pointed blade capable of inflicting
cutting, stabbing, or tearing wounds; and 2) is intended to be used as a weapon." (I.C. 35-47-5-2.5(a))
 
The Superintendent will report an employee who violates this policy to law enforcement officials. The staff member also will
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, for violation of this policy.
 
This prohibition does not apply to weapons under the control of law enforcement personnel, as well as a School Resource
Officer or other school security personnel who is not a law enforcement officer, but who may legally may possess a firearm.
 
Exceptions to this policy include:
 

A. items approved by a principal as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, if used for the
purpose of and in the manner approved; (Working working firearms and ammunition shall never be approved.);
 

B. theatrical props used in appropriate settings;
 

C. starter pistols used in appropriate school-related sporting events.
 



Staff members must report knowledge of dangerous weapons weapon's possession and/or threats of violence by students,
staff members, or visitors to the principal. Failure to report such information may subject the staff member to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.
 
I.C. 10-21-3
I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.
I.C. 34-28-7-2
I.C. 35-47-5-2.5
I.C. 35-47-9
 
© Neola 2014 2024

Legal I.C. 10-21-3

I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.

I.C. 34-28-7-2

I.C. 35-47-5-2.5

I.C. 35-47-9



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

Code po4113

Status

Adopted April 14, 2016

Last Revised August 10, 2017

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
4113 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST
 

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity, impartiality, and professional conduct by School
Corporation employees, officers (that is, all members of the School Board), and agents is essential to ensure the
proper performance of school business as well as to earn and keep public confidence in the Corporation.
 
To accomplish this, the School Board has adopted the following guidelines which apply to all Corporation employees,
officers, (that is, all members of the Board), and agents, and Board members, to assure that conflicts of interest do
not occur. These guidelines are not intended to be all-inclusive; nor are they intended to substitute for good
judgment on the part of all Corporation employees, officers, agents, and Board members.
 
An employee, officer, (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member of the Corporation making a
recommendation to the Board on a matter to be considered by the Board shall not accept a gift or gratuity from a
person or entity having a substantial personal or pecuniary interest in the Board's decision on the matter in
accordance with the restrictions and provisions of I.C. 35-44.1-1-4.
 

1. No employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member shall engage in or have
a financial or other interest in, directly or indirectly, any activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question
of conflict with his/her the individual's Corporation responsibilities.
 

2. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents, or Board members shall not engage in
business, private practice of their profession, the rendering of services, or the sale of goods of any type
where advantage is taken of any professional relationship they may have with any student, client, or parents
of such students or clients in the course of their employment or professional relationship with the
Corporation.
 
Included, by way of illustration rather than limitation are the following:
 

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee
 

b. the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged information about a student or client gained in
the course of the employee's employment or professional relationship with the Corporation through
his/her their access to Corporation records
 

c. the referral of any student or client for lessons or services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there is any expectation of reciprocal referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration
for such referrals
 

d. the requirement of students or clients to purchase any private goods or services provided by an
employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent, or Board member, or any business or
professional practitioner with whom any employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or
agent, or Board member has a financial relationship, as a condition of receiving any grades, credits,
promotions, approvals, or recommendations



 
3. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents, and Board members shall not make use

of materials, equipment, or facilities of the Corporation in private practice. Examples would be the use of
facilities before, during, or after regular business hours for service to private practice clients, or the checking
out of items from an instructional materials center for private practice.
 

4. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents shall not solicit gifts, travel packages,
and other incentives from prospective contractors.Employees, officers, agents, and Board members of the
Corporation may neither solict nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors.
 

5. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents shall not participate in the selection,
award and administration of any contract to an entity in which they have a pecuniary interest or from which
they derive a profit or in which a dependent of the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or
agent has a pecuniary interest or from which the dependent derives a profit. "Dependent" includes the
employee’s spouse; unemancipated child, stepchild or adopted child under the age of eighteen (18); or
individual for whom the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent provides more than
one-half (1/2) of the individual’s support during a year. A "pecuniary interest" means an interest in a contract
or purchase that will result or is intended to result in an ascertainable increase in the income or net worth of
the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent or the employee’s, officer’s (that is, any
member of the Board), or agent’s dependent who is under the direct or indirect administrative control of the
employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent or who receives a contract or purchase order
that is reviewed, approved, or directly or indirectly administered by the employee, officer (that is, any
member of the Board), or agent.No employee, officer, agent, or Board member with a real or apparent
conflict of interest may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported
by the Federal award. A conflict of interest includes when the employee, officer, agent, or Board
member, or any member of their immediate family, their partner, or an organization that employs or
is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a
tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a contract.

This includes contracts between the Corporation and an entity in which the individual has a
pecuniary interest, as defined in I.C. 35-44.1-4(a)(3), or from which the individual derives a profit,
or in which a dependent, as defined in I.C. 35-44.1-4(a)(1), of the individual has a pecuniary
interest or derives a profit.
 

B. No conflict of interest will be deemed to be present if the Corporation employee’s, officer’s (that is, any member of
the Board), or agent’s individual's interest in the contract or purchase and all other contracts and purchases made
by the Corporation during the twelve (12) months before the date of the contract or purchase was less than $250 or
less.
 

C. Should exceptions to this policy be necessary in order to provide mandatory services through a private relationship
to students or clients of the Corporation, all such exceptions will be made known to the employee's
individual's supervisor, or to the School Board if there is no supervisor, and will be disclosed to the Superintendent
before entering into any private relationship.
 

D. To the extent that the Corporation has a parent, affiliate affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a State, local
government government, or Indian tribe, the Corporation may not conduct a procurement action involving the
parent, affiliate affiliate, or subsidiary organization if the Corporation is unable, or appears to be unable, to be
impartial.
 

E. Employees, officers and agents officers, agents, and Board members must disclose any potential conflict of interest
which that may lead to a violation of this policy to the Corporation. Upon discovery or notification of any potential
conflict of interest, the Corporation will disclose, in writing, the potential conflict of interest to the appropriate
Federal awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.
 
The Corporation also will disclose, in a timely manner, all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or
gratuity that affect a Federal award to the appropriate Federal awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through
entity.The Corporation will promptly disclose whenever, in connection with the Federal award (including any
activities or subawards thereunder), it has credible evidence of the commission of a violation of Federal
criminal law involving fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or gratuity violations found in Title 18 of the
United States Code or a violation of the civil False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. 3729-3733). The disclosure must
be made in writing to the Federal agency, the agency's Office of Inspector General, and pass-through
entity. The Corporation is also required to report matters related to recipient integrity and performance in
accordance with Appendix XII of 2 C.F.R. Part 200.
 



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - WEAPONS

Code po4217

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised April 9, 2015

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
4217 - WEAPONS
 
The Except for a person who legally may possess a firearm and has been authorized by the School Board to carry a firearm
in or on School Corporation property, the Board prohibits support staff members from possessing, storing, making, or using
a weapon in any setting that is under the control and supervision of the Corporation for the purpose of school activities
approved and authorized by the Corporation including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted for by the
Corporation, a school-sponsored event, or in a Corporation vehicle; provided, however, that a support staff member is not
prohibited from possessing a firearm or ammunition that is locked in the trunk of the support staff member's vehicle, kept
in the glove compartment of the support staff member's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the support staff
member's locked vehicle.
 
Generally, the possession of a firearm in or on school property, in or on property that is being used by a school for a school
function, or on a school bus is a felony (I.C. 35-47-9-2) and is prohibited by Board policy. However, State law permits a
person who may legally may possess a firearm to maintain that firearm if it is locked in the person's trunk, kept in the
glove compartment of the person's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the person's locked vehicle. This exception
does not apply to students unless it is a high school student who is a member of a shooting sports team and the principal
has approved the student keeping a firearm concealed in the student's motor vehicle on days the student is competing or
practicing as a member of a shooting sports team. This exception also does not apply to former students if the person is no
longer enrolled in school due to a disciplinary action within the previous twenty-four (24) months.
 
The term "weapon" means any object which, in the manner in which it is used, intended to be used, or represented, is
capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, as well as  or endangering the health or safety of persons.
Weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms, tasers, handguns, stun guns, guns of any type, including air and gas-
powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, chemical weapons, metallic knuckles,
martial arts weapons, ammunition, and destructive devices (such as bombs, incendiary devices, grenadegrenades, Molotov
cocktailcocktails, rocket rockets with a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, etc.). A "knife" is defined as "an
instrument that: 1) consists of a sharp edge edged or sharp pointed blade capable of inflicting cutting, stabbing, or tearing
wounds; and 2) is intended to be used as a weapon." (I.C. 35-47-5-2.5(a))
 
The Superintendent will report an employee who violates this policy to law enforcement officials. The staff member also will
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination for violation of this policy.
 
This prohibition does not apply to weapons under the control of law enforcement personnel, as well as a School Resource
Officer or other school security personnel who is not a law enforcement officer, but who may legally may possess a firearm.
 
Exceptions to this policy include:
 

A. items approved by a principal as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, if used for the
purpose of and in the manner approved; (Working (working firearms and ammunition shall never be approved.);
 

B. theatrical props used in appropriate settings;
 

C. starter pistols used in appropriate school-related sporting events.
 



Staff members must report knowledge of dangerous weapons weapon's possession and/or threats of violence by students,
staff members, or visitors to the principal. Failure to report such information may subject the staff member to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.
 
I.C. 10-21-3
I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.
I.C. 34-28-7-2
I.C. 35-47-5-2.5
I.C. 35-47-9
 
© Neola 2014 2024

Legal I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.

I.C. 34-28-7-2

I.C. 35-47-5-2.5

I.C. 35-47-9



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - PROMOTION, PLACEMENT, AND
RETENTION

Code po5410

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised August 19, 2021

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
5410 - PROMOTION, PLACEMENT, AND RETENTION
 
The School Board recognizes that the personal, social, physical, and educational growth of children will vary and that they
should be placed in the educational setting most appropriate to their needs at the various stages of their growth.
 
It shall be the policy of the Board that each student be moved forward in a continuous pattern of achievement and growth
that is in harmony with his/her their own development.
 
Such pattern should coincide with the system of grade levels established by this Board and the instructional objectives
established for each.
 
A student will be promoted to the succeeding grade level when s/he has they have:
 

A. completed the course requirements at the presently assigned grade;
 

B. in the opinion of the professional staff, achieved the instructional objectives set for the present grade;
 

C. demonstrated sufficient proficiency to permit him/her them to move ahead in the educational program of the next
grade;
 

D. demonstrated the degree of social, emotional, and physical maturation necessary for a successful learning
experience in the next grade.

 
Any decision regarding retention of a student who is eligible for special education and related services shall be made in
accordance with the student's individualized education program (IEP) or service plan and in compliance with the statewide
assessment program's policies and Federal law.
 
A student who is eligible for special education and related services shall be promoted or retained based on the
recommendation of the case conference committee and the student's IEP. 
 
Following sound principles of child guidance, the Board discourages the skipping of grades.
 
It is the policy of the Board that a student shall not be retained or held back in a grade level for the sole purpose of
improving the student's ability to participate in extra-curricular athletic programs.
 
The Board will comply with the requirements of the Indiana Department of Education regarding the consequences for
students in grade three who fail to pass the Indiana Reading Evaluation and Determination Assessment (IREAD-3).
Accordingly, a student who does not pass the IREAD-3 assessment either during the assessment period in the school year
or during the summer assessment window, and is not eligible for a "good cause exemption" outlined below, shall be
considered for retention in third- grade based on the student's overall academic performance in all subject areas.
 
The school shall make one (1) of the following determinations:
 



A. Retention is necessary based on the overall academic performance of the student in all subject areas. The student
should be reported to the State as a third- grader in the subsequent school year, and the student should receive
 third-grade instruction in all subject areas.
 

B. Retention is not necessarily based on the overall academic performance of the student in all subject areas. The
student should move on to fourth- grade instruction in all subject areas. However, the student will continue to receive
third- grade reading instruction during the subsequent school year and must retake the IREAD-3 assessment until
the student passes the assessment or qualifies for a “good cause exemption”.

 
Good cause exemptions that may be considered are:
 

A. a the student who was subject to retention and previously has been previously retained two times prior to the fourth
in grade 3 for one (1) school year;
 

B. a the student with disabilities whose has an intellectual disability or the student's IEP specifies that retention is not
appropriate, and the student's case conference committee has determined that promotion to another grade is
appropriate;
 

C. an English learner student who has received services for fewer than two (2) years and whose Individual Learning
Plan (ILP) Committee including the parent, a building level administrator or designee, a classroom teacher of
service, an English learner teacher of record (if one exists), and an English learner corporation administrator (if one
exists) has determined that promotion is appropriate based on the implementation of research-based instructional
practices outlined in the student's ILP;
 

 
A parent whose child has been retained in grade 3 under the reading deficiency remediation plan and would not be subject
to retention for other reasons may appeal the student's retention if the parent believes that the student meets one of the
above exemptions. The Superintendent shall develop administrative guidelines that include the procedure for appeal.
 
The Superintendent also shall develop administrative guidelines for promotion, placement, and retention of students which:
 

A. require the recommendation of the professional staff for any promotion, placement, or retention;
 

B. require that parents are informed in advance of the possibility of retention of a student at a grade level;
 

C. assure that reasonable efforts be made to remediate the student's difficulties before s/he is they are retained;
 

D. assign to the principal the final responsibility for determining the promotion, placement, or retention of each
student.

 
Cross Reference
po2623 - STUDENT ASSESSMENT
 
© Neola 2021 2024

D. the student received a score of proficient or above proficient in grade 3 math on the statewide summative
assessment;
 

E. the student has received intensive intervention as determined by the Indiana Department of Education in reading for
two (2) or more years and was retained more than one (1) time throughout kindergarten, grade 1, or grade 2.

Legal I.C. 20-32-8.5

511 IAC 6.1-5-10 - Retaining student for athletic purposes prohibited

511 IAC 6.2-3.1-3

IDOE Memorandum April 7, 2017: IREAD-3 Guidance for 2017-18 School Year

Cross References po2623 - STUDENT ASSESSMENT



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - WEAPONS

Code po5772

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised April 9, 2015

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
5772 - WEAPONS
 
The Except for a person who legally may possess a firearm and has been authorized by the School Board to carry a firearm
in or on School Corporation property, the Board prohibits students from possessing, storing, making, or using a weapon in
any setting that is under the control and supervision of the Corporation for the purpose of school activities approved and
authorized by the Corporation including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted for by the Corporation, a
school-sponsored event, or in a Corporation vehicle.
 
Generally, the possession of a firearm in or on school property, in or on property that is being used by a school for a school
function, or on a school bus is a felony (I.C. 35-47-9-2) and is prohibited by Board policy. However, State law permits a
person who may legally may possess a firearm to maintain that firearm if it is locked in the person's trunk, kept in the
glove compartment of the person's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the person's locked vehicle. This exception
does not apply to students unless it is a high school student who is a member of a shooting sports team and the principal
has approved the student keeping a firearm concealed in the student's motor vehicle on days the student is competing or
practicing as a member of a shooting sports team. This exception also does not apply to former students if the person is no
longer enrolled in school due to a disciplinary action within the previous twenty-four (24) months.
 
The term "weapon" means any object which, in the manner in which it is used, intended to be used, or represented, is
capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, as well as  or endangering the health or safety of persons.
Weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms, tasers, handguns, stun guns, guns of any type whatsoever, including air
and gas-powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, chemical weapons, metallic
knuckles, martial arts weapons, ammunition, and destructive devices (such as bombs, incendiary devices,
grenadegrenades, Molotov cocktailcocktails, rocket rockets with a propellant charge of more than four (4) ounces, etc.). A
"knife" is defined as "an instrument that: 1) consists of a sharp edge edged or sharp-pointed sharp pointed blade capable of
inflicting cutting, stabbing, or tearing wounds; and 2) is intended to be used as a weapon." (I.C. 35-47-5-2.5(a))
 
This policy will also encompass such actions as prohibits possession of look-alike items that could be mistaken for weapons,
false fire alarms, false bomb threats, or intentional calls to falsely report a dangerous condition, and similar conduct.
 
The Superintendent is authorized to establish administrative guidelines on weapons which require students to immediately
report knowledge of weapons and threats of violence by students and staff immediately to the building principal. Failure to
report such knowledge may subject the student to immediate suspension and potential expulsion from school.
 
The Superintendent will shall report any student who violates this policy to the student’s parents or guardians and to the
law enforcement agency having jurisdiction over the property where the offense occurs. The student also may be subject to
disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion.
 
Exceptions to this policy include:
 

A. items approved by a principal as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, if used for the
purpose of and in the manner approved; approved (Working working firearms and ammunition shall never be
approved.);
 



B. theatrical props used in appropriate settings;
 

C. starter pistols used in appropriate school-related sporting events;
 

D. weapons possessed and/or used by students enrolled in the Corporation's Junior ROTC Program while under the
direct supervision of District staff members.

 
I.C. 10-21-3
I.C. 20-33-8-16
I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.
I.C. 35-47-5-2.5
I.C. 35-47-9
20 U.S.C. 7151
 
© Neola 2014 2024

Legal I.C. 10-21-3

I.C. 20-33-8-16

I.C. 20-33-9-1 et seq.

I.C. 35-47-5-2.5

I.C. 35-47-9

20 U.S.C. 7151



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - GRANT FUNDS

Code po6110

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised July 14, 2022

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
6110 - GRANT FUNDS
 
It is the objective of the School Board to provide equal educational opportunities for all School Corporation students.
Government agencies, as well as foundations, businesses, and individuals, periodically offer both human and material
resources to the Corporation that benefit students and the educational program. Therefore, it is the intent of the Board to
consider grant proposals and applications for their potential to enhance the educational opportunities, the educational
environment, and the physical and mental growth for each student.
 
The Superintendent shall review new Federal education legislation and prepare proposals for programs s/he the
Superintendent deems would be of aid to the students of this Corporation. The Superintendent shall approve each such
proposal prior to its submission, and the Board shall approve all grants resulting from such proposals.
 
The Board regards available Federal funds of aid to local school corporations and communities as a public trust. It forbids
the use of Federal monies for partisan political activities and for any use that would not be in accordance with Federal
regulations and guidelines.
 
No Federal funds received by the Corporation shall be used to:
 

A. for construction, renovation, or repair of any school facility, except as authorized under the Federal award;
 

D. to distribute or aid in the distribution by any organization of legally obscene materials to minors on school grounds
or at school-sponsored activities;
 

E. to provide sex education or HIV-prevention education in schools unless that instruction is age-appropriate and
includes the health benefits of abstinence; or
 

F. to operate a program of contraceptive distribution in schools.; or
 

 
The Superintendent shall review grant opportunities and authorize the development of proposals.
 
Grant Proposal Development
 

A. All grant proposals must support at least one (1) Corporation goal or priority.
 

B. for transportation, unless otherwise authorized under the Federal award;
 

C. to develop or distribute materials or operate programs or courses of instruction directed at youth that are designed
to promote or encourage sexual activity, whether homosexual or heterosexual;
 

G. for the provision of a dangerous weapon or training in the use of a dangerous weapon except with respect to
programs authorized under the Federal award that provide students with educational instruction or educational
enrichment activities.



B. For projects where grant funds will not cover the entire cost of project implementation, additional fund sources must
be identified, documented, and approved during the internal review process.

 
Grant Proposal Internal Review
 

A. Each grant proposal shall be reviewed and approved by the Superintendent prior to submission to the funding source
 
Grant Administration
 

A. The administration of grants will adhere to all applicable Federal, State, local, and grantor rules and regulations,
including the terms and conditions of the Federal awards, as well as Corporation policies and administrative
guidelines.
 

B. The Superintendent is responsible for the efficient and effective administration of grant awards through the
application of sound management practices.
 

C. The Superintendent is responsible for administering grant funds in a manner consistent with underlying agreements,
applicable statutes, regulations, and objectives, and the terms and conditions of the grant award.
 

D. The Corporation, in recognition of its unique combination of staff, facilities, and experience, shall employ internal
controls, including the organizational and management strategies necessary to assure proper and efficient
administration of grant awards.
 

E. All Federal funds received by the Corporation will be used in accordance with the applicable Federal law and
regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.  The Superintendent shall require that each draw of
Federal monies be aligned with the Corporation’s payment process (whether reimbursement, cash advance, or a
combination).  If funds are permitted to be drawn in advance, all draws will be as close as administratively feasible
to the related program expenditures and that, when restricted, such monies are used to supplement programs and
funding and not to supplant or replace existing programming or current funding.

Maintenance of Effort (MOE) and Maintenance of Equity (MOEquity) requirements of the Federal program will be met
in accordance with the requirements of the specific funded program. The Corporation shall maintain appropriate
documentation and records to substantiate compliance or to justify allowable exceptions, exemptions, or waivers.
 

F. The Superintendent is authorized to sign related documents for grant administration, including documents required
for submittal of grant proposals.

G. Employee positions established through the use of grant funding shall terminate if and when the related grant
funding ceases.

 
Financial Management
 
The financial management of grant funds shall be in compliance with all applicable Federal, State, local, and grantor rules,
regulations, and assurances as well as Corporation policies and administrative guidelines.The financial management of grant
funds shall be in compliance with all applicable Federal, State, local, and grantor statutes, rules, and regulations; the terms
and conditions of the Federal award; and Corporation policies and administrative guidelines.
 
The Corporation shall provide for the following:
 

A. Identification, in Corporation accounts, of all grant awards received and expended and the programs under which
they were received. For Federal programs and awards, identification shall include the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) title and number, Federal award identification number and year, name of the Federal agency and
name of the pass-through entity, as applicable. of all Federal awards received and expended and the Federal
programs under which they were received. Federal program and Federal award identification must include, as
applicable, the Assistance Listings title and number, Federal award identification number, year the Federal award was
issued, and name of the Federal agency or pass-through entity.
 

B. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each Federal award or program in accordance
with the reporting requirements of the grant.

Maintaining records that sufficiently identify the amount, source, and expenditure of Federal funds for Federal
awards. These records must contain information necessary to identify Federal awards, authorizations, financial
obligations, unobligated balances, as well as assets, expenditures, income, and interest. All records must be
supported by source documentation.
 



C. Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds provided for Federally-funded activities. These
records must contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances,
assets, expenditures, income and interest and be supported by source documentation.Effective control and
accountability for all funds, property, and assets. The Corporation must safeguard all assets and ensure they are
used solely for authorized purposes.
 

D. Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other assets. The Corporation must adequately
safeguard all assets and assure that they are used solely for authorized purposes.Comparison of expenditures with
budget amounts for each Federal award.
 

G. Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each Federal award.Actual expenditures or outlays must be
compared with budgeted amounts for each Federal award.
 

H. Recordkeeping and written procedures to the extent required by Federal, State, local, and grantor rules and
regulations pertaining to the grant award and accountability, including, but not limited to, the following areas:
 

1. cash management in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.305
 

2. allowability of costs in accordance with subpart E and the terms and conditions of the Federal award
 

3. conflict of interest
 

4. procurement
 

5. equipment management
 

6. conducting technical evaluations of proposals and selecting recipients
 

7. compensation and fringe benefits
 

8. travel
 

I. Disclosure of any potential conflict of interest and all mandatory violation disclosures potentially affecting the Federal
award/grant to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through agency in accordance with applicable Federal policy.
 

E. Written procedures to implement the requirements of 2 C.F.R. 200.305 regarding payment.
 

F. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with Federal regulations and the terms
and conditions of the Federal award.
 
Further, the Corporation must:
 

1. establish, document, and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides reasonable
assurance that the Corporation is managing the Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award;
 

2. comply with the U.S. Constitution, Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award;
 

3. evaluate and monitor the Corporation’s compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of the Federal award;
 

4. take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in
audit findings; and
 

5. take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other information
the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity designates as sensitive consistent with applicable
Federal, State, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.take reasonable
cybersecurity and other measures to safeguard information including protected personally identifiable
information (PII) and other types of information. This also includes information the Federal awarding agency
or pass-through entity designates as sensitive or other information the Corporation considers sensitive and is
consistent with applicable Federal, State, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of
confidentiality.
 



J. Insurance coverage for real property and equipment, if applicable, equivalent to such property owned by the
Corporation.

 
Audit Requirements
 
A single or program-specific audit (2 C.F.R. 200.514, 2 C.F.R. 200.507) is required for any year if the Corporation expends
$1,000,000 or more in Federal awards during the Corporation's fiscal year. When Federal awards expended are less than
$1,000,000 the Corporation may be exempt from Federal audit requirements (2 C.F.R. 200.501) for that year. However, in
all instances, the Corporation's records must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency,
pass-through entity, and the Government Accountability Office (GAO).
 
The Corporation shall:
 

 
Certifications and Records Retention
 
Financial reports must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally bind the Corporation. The
certification should state:
 

"I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information provided herein is true, complete, and
accurate. I am aware that the provision of false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material
fact, may subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative consequences including, but not limited to violations of U.S.
Code Title 18, Sections 2, 1001, 1343, and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812."

 
Each certification must be maintained pursuant to the requirements of 2 C.F.R. 200.334. The Corporation shall retain all
Federal award records for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financial report or longer if required by
the Board-adopted records retention schedule.
 
Program Income
 
Program income means gross income earned by a grant recipient that is directly generated by a supported activity or
earned as a result of the Federal award during the grant’s period of performance.
 
It includes but is not limited to income from fees for services performed, the use or rental of real or personal property
acquired under Federal awards, the sale of commodities or items fabricated under a Federal award, license fees and
royalties on patents and copyrights, and principal and interest on loans made with Federal award funds. Interest earned on
advances of Federal funds is not program income. Except as otherwise provided in Federal statutes, regulations, or the
terms and conditions of the Federal award, program income does not include rebates, credits, discounts and interest earned
on any of them. Additionally, taxes, special assessments, levies, fines, and other such similar revenues raised by a recipient
are not program income unless the revenues are specifically identified in the Federal award or Federal awarding agency
regulations as program income. Finally, proceeds Proceeds from the sale of real property, equipment or supplies are not
program income. Finally, license fees and royalties for copyrighted material, patents, patent applications, trademarks, and
inventions made under the Federal award subject to 57 C.F.R. Part 401 are not program income.
 
Unless it has received prior approval to use a different method or the terms and conditions of the grant authorize a different
method, the Corporation uses the deduction method of accounting for program income. Under the deduction method,
program income is deducted from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable costs. Program income will be used
only for current costs unless the Corporation is otherwise directed by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity.
 
Mandatory Disclosures
 

A. arrange for the audit required in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.509 and make sure that the audit is properly
performed and submitted in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.512;
 

B. prepare financial statements including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards in accordance with 2 C.F.R.
200.510;
 

C. promptly follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including preparing a summary schedule of prior
audit findings and a corrective action plan (2 C.F.R. 200.511); and
 

D. provide the auditor access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and any other
information needed for the auditor to perform the audit.



The Corporation must promptly disclose whenever they have credible evidence of a violation of Federal criminal law
potentially affecting the Federal award including any, but not limited to, fraud, embezzlement, bribery, gratuity violations,
identity theft, or sexual assault and exploitation, or a violation of the civil False Claims Act (2 C.F.R. 200.113) regarding the
obligation to report credible information related to conduct prohibited by the Trafficking Victims Protection Act, 22 U.S.C.
7104c.
 
Whistleblower Protections
 
An employee of the Corporation may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for
disclosing information to the appropriate agency or individual that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross
mismanagement of a Federal contract or grant, a gross waste of Federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a Federal
contract or grant, See Policies 1411 - Required Reports an nd Protection of Whistleblowers, 3211 - Required Reprots and
Protection of Whistleblowers, 4211 - Required Reports and Protection of Whistleblowers, and 8900 - Anti-Fraud.
 
I.C. 20-26-5-4
Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments
20 U.S.C. 7906
31 U.S.C. 3729-3733
Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR)
2 C.F.R. 200.113
34 C.F.R. 75.707, 76.563. 76.565, 76.707
2 C.F.R. 200.56, 200.71, 200.77, 200.80, 200.112, 200.302, 200.307
2 C.F.R. 200.309, 200.310, 200.313, 200.318-.320, 200.343(b)&(e)
2 C.F.R. 200.501-511
34 C.F.R. 75.707, 76.563. 76.565, 76.707
 
© Neola 2022 2024

Legal I.C. 20-26-5-4

Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments

20 U.S.C. 7906

31 U.S.C. 3729-3733

Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR)

2 C.F.R. 200.113

2 C.F.R. 200.56, 200.71, 200.77, 200.80, 200.112, 200.302, 200.307

2 C.F.R. 200.309, 200.310, 200.313, 200.318-.320, 200.343(b)&(e)

2 C.F.R. 200.501-511

34 C.F.R. 75.707, 76.563. 76.565, 76.707

Cross References po1411 - REQUIRED REPORTS AND PROTECTION OF WHISTLEBLOWERS

po3211 - REQUIRED REPORTS AND PROTECTION OF WHISTLEBLOWERS

po4211 - REQUIRED REPORTS AND PROTECTION OF WHISTLEBLOWERS

po8900 - ANTI-FRAUD



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - INTERNAL
CONTROL STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

Code po6111

Status

Adopted August 10, 2017

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
6111 - INTERNAL CONTROL STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES
 
The Superintendent shall establish, document, and maintain effective internal control standards and procedures for all
funds received by the School Corporation, including financial grants and awards from Federal or State sources, that provide
reasonable assurance that the Corporation is managing the program and funds are managed in compliance with applicable
Federal and State that U.S. Constitution, Federal, and State statutes, Federal and State regulations, and the terms and
conditions of grants and awards made to the Corporation.
 
The Corporation shall have a process that provides reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the following
objectives:
 

A. effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
 

B. reliability of reporting for internal and external use; and
 

C. compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
 
These internal controls should comply with the guidance in "Standards for Internal Control of the Federal Government"
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the "Internal Control-Integrated Framework" issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tready Commission (COSO).
 
The internal control standards and procedures must provide reasonable assurance that transactions are properly recorded
and accounted for in order to permit the preparation of reliable financial statements and Federal and State reports;
maintain accountability over for all funds, property, and assets; and demonstrate compliance with Federal and State
statutes, Federal and State regulations, and the terms and conditions of grants and awards.
 
The internal control standards and procedures also must provide reasonable assurance that these transactions are executed
in compliance with Federal and State statutes, Federal and State regulations, and the terms and conditions of grants and
awards that could have a direct and material effect on any grant or award, as well as any other Federal and State statutes
and regulations that are identified in the Federal Compliance Supplements and/or directives of the State Board of Accounts
(SBOA).
 
Additionally, the Corporation’s internal control standards and procedures must provide reasonable assurance that all Federal
and State funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against loss, from damage, theft, fraud, unauthorized use, or
unauthorized disposition.
 
Further, erroneous or irregular material variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of any amount of Corporation funds or
property whose source is a Federal grant or award are considered material and therefore are to be reported immediately to
the SBOA as required by Federal and State law.
 
Other than with respect to Corporation funds or property whose source is a Federal grant or award, any erroneous or
irregular material variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of Corporation funds or property in excess of:
 



Other than with respect to Corporation funds or property whose source is a Federal grant or award, any erroneous or
irregular variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of Corporation funds or property in excess of the following: with respect to
cash funds $500.00 in any fund; with respect to assets other than cash funds any asset valued in excess of $500.00 are
considered material and therefore are to be reported immediately to the SBOA as required by State law.

The Corporation shall:
 

A. comply with the U.S. Constitution, Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal grants
and awards;
 

B. comply with State statutes and regulations related to the management and control of all funds received by the
Corporation;
 

C. evaluate and monitor its compliance with the U.S. Constitution, statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of Federal grants and awards and State and local funds received;
 

D. investigate all variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of Corporation funds or property, document the investigation
and its results, and maintain a record of the investigation and its results;
 

E. take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in audit
findings;
 

F. report all misappropriations of Corporation funds or property to the SBOA and the county prosecuting attorney
whenever a Corporation employee has actual knowledge of or reasonable cause to believe that a misappropriation
has occurred;
 

G. provide, upon employment and periodically thereafter, training concerning the internal control standards and
procedures established for the Corporation for any personnel whose official duties include receiving, processing,
depositing, disbursing, or otherwise having access to funds that belong to the Federal government, State
government, the Corporation, or other governmental entities; and
 

H. take reasonable cybersecurity and other measures to safeguard protected "personally identifiable" information (PII)
and other information the State, awarding agency, or pass-through entity designates as sensitive or the Corporation
considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, State, local, and tribal laws and Corporation policies regarding
privacy and obligations of confidentiality. information including protected "personally identifiable information" (PII)
and other types of information. This also includes information the Federal agency or pass-through entity designates
as sensitive or other information the Corporation considers sensitive and is consistent with applicable Federal, State,
local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and responsibility over confidentiality.

PII is defined at 2 C.F.R. 200.79 2 C.F.R. 200.1 as "information that can be used to distinguish or trace an
individual’s identity, either alone or when combined with other personal or identifying information that is linked or
linkable to a specific individual. "

However, the The definition of PII is not anchored attached to any single category of information or technology.
Rather, it requires a case-by-case assessment of the specific risk that an individual can be identified.

 
Suggested resources:
 

A. Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
 

B. Internal Control Integrated Framework (commonly referred to as the Green Book) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission;
 

C. Circular A-110 Compliance Supplement issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget;
 

D. Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget; and
 

E. Internal control guidance issued by the U.S. Department of Education.
 
I.C. 5-11-1-27
2 C.F.R. 200.61-.62
2 C.F.R. 200.79
2 C.F.R. 200.1
2 C.F.R. 200.203



2 C.F.R. 200.303
State Examiner Directive 2015-6 (SBOA 11-18-15)
 
© Neola 2018 2024

Legal I.C. 5-11-1-27

2 C.F.R. 200.1

2 C.F.R. 200.203

2 C.F.R. 200.303

State Examiner Directive 2015-6 (SBOA 11-18-15)



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - CASH
MANAGEMENT OF GRANTS

Code po6112

Status

Adopted August 10, 2017

Revised Policy - Volume 36,  No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
6112 - CASH MANAGEMENT OF GRANTS
 
In order to provide reasonable assurance that all assets, including Federal, State, and local funds, are safeguarded against
waste, loss, unauthorized use, or misappropriation, the Superintendent shall implement internal controls in the area of cash
management.
 
The School Corporation’s payments payment methods shall minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from
the United States Treasury Federal agency or the Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) (pass-through entity) and
disbursement by the Corporation, regardless of whether the payment is made by electronic fund transfer, or issuance or
redemption of checks, warrants, or payment by other means.
 
The Corporation shall use forms and procedures required by the grantor agency or pass-through entity to request payment.
The Corporation shall request grant funds payments in accordance with the provisions of the grant. Additionally, the
Corporation’s financial management systems shall meet the standards for fund control and accountability as established by
the awarding agency.
 
The Superintendent is authorized to submit requests for advance payments and reimbursements at least monthly when
electronic fund transfers are not used, and as often as deemed appropriate when electronic fund transfers are used, in
accordance with the provisions of the  payment requests as often as necessary when electronic fund transfers are used or
at least monthly when electronic transfers are not used. See Electronic Fund Transfer Act (15 U.S.C. 1693-1693r).
 
When the Corporation uses a cash advance payment method, the following standards shall apply:
 

A. The timing and amount of the advance payment requested shall must be as close as is administratively feasible to
the actual disbursement by the Corporation for direct program or project costs and the proportionate share of any
allowable indirect costs.
 

B. The Corporation shall make timely payment payments to contractors in accordance with contract provisions.
 

D. To the extent If available, the Corporation shall disburse funds available from program income (including repayments
to a revolving fund), rebates, refunds, contract settlements, audit recoveries, and interest earned on such
Federal funds before requesting additional cash payments.
 

E. The Corporation shall account for the receipt, obligation, and expenditure of funds.
 

F. Advance payments shall be deposited and maintained in insured accounts whenever possible.
 

G. Advance payments shall be maintained in interest-bearing accounts unless the following apply:
 

1. The Corporation receives less than $120,000 $250,000 in Federal awards funding per year.
 

C. Whenever possible, advance payment requests by the Corporation must be consolidated to cover anticipated cash
needs for all Federal awards received by the recipient from the awarding Federal agency.
 



2. The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not reasonably be expected to earn interest in
excess of $500 per year on Federal cash balances.
 

3. The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it would not be feasible within the
expected Federal and non-Federal cash resources.
 

4. A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest-bearing accounts.
 

H. Pursuant to Federal law and regulations, the Corporation may retain interest earned in an amount up to $500 per
year for administrative costs. Any additional interest earned on Federal advance payments deposited in interest-
bearing accounts must be remitted funds must be returned annually to the Department of Health and Human
Services Payment Management System (PMS) through an electronic medium using either Automated Clearing House
(ACH) network or a Fedwire Funds Service payment. Remittances shall include pertinent information of the payee
and nature of payment in the memo area (often referred to as "addenda records" by Financial Institutions) as that
will assist in the timely posting of interest earned on Federal funds. Pertinent details include the Payee Account
Number (PAN) if the payment originated from PMS, or Agency information if the payment originated from
Automated Standard Application for Payment (ASAP), National Science Foundation (NSF) or another Federal agency
payment system.
 

 
© Neola 2016 2024

5. An interest-bearing account is not readily accessible (for example, due to public or political unrest in a
foreign country).
 

I. All interest in excess of $500 per year must be returned to PMS regardless of whether the Corporation was paid
through PMS. Instructions for returning interest can be found at https://pms.psc.gov/grant-recipients/returning-
funds-interest.html.
 

J. All other Federal funds must be returned to the payment system of the Federal agency. Returns should follow the
instructions provided by the Federal agency. All returns to PMS should follow the instructions provided at
https://pms.psc.gov/grant-recipients/returning-funds-interest.html.

Legal 2 C.F.R. 200.305



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - COST
PRINCIPLES - SPENDING FEDERAL FUNDS

Code po6114

Status

Adopted August 10, 2017

Last Revised July 14, 2022

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
6114 - COST PRINCIPLES - SPENDING FEDERAL FUNDS
 
The Superintendent is responsible for the efficient and effective administration of grant funds through the application of
sound management practices. Such funds shall be administered in a manner consistent with all applicable Federal, State,
and local laws, the associated agreements/assurances, program objectives, and the specific terms and conditions of the
grant award.
 
Cost Principles
 
A cost is reasonable if it does not exceed an amount that a prudent person would incur under the circumstances
prevailing when the decision was made to incur the cost. Except where otherwise authorized by statute, costs shall meet
the following general criteria in order to be allowable under Federal awards:
 

A. Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of the Federal award and be
allocable thereto under these principles.
 
To determine whether a cost is reasonable, consideration shall be given to:
 

1. whether a the cost is a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the Corporation's operation
of the School Corporation or the proper and efficient performance of the Federal award;
 

2. the restraints or requirements imposed by such factors as sound business practices,; arm’s length
bargaining,; Federal, State, local, tribal and other laws and regulations; and terms and conditions of the
Federal award;
 

3. market prices for comparable goods or services costs for the geographic area;
 

4. whether the individuals concerned acted with prudence in the circumstances considering their
responsibilities to the Corporation, its employees, its students or membership (if applicable), the public at
large, and the Federal Government; and
 

5. whether the cost represents any significant deviation from the established practices or School Board policy
which justifiably may increase the expense.whether the cost represents a deviation from the Corporation's
established written policies and procedures for incurring costs.

 
While Federal regulations do not provide specific descriptions of what satisfies the "necessary" element beyond its
inclusion in the reasonableness analysis above, whether a cost is necessary is determined based on the needs of the
program. Specifically, the expenditure must be necessary to achieve an important program objective. A key aspect
in determining whether a cost is necessary is whether the Corporation can demonstrate that the cost addresses an
existing need, and can prove it.

When determining whether a cost is necessary, consideration may be given to whether:
 



1. the cost is needed for the proper and efficient performance of the grant program Federal award;
 

2. the cost is identified in the approved budget or application;
 

3. there is an educational benefit associated with the cost;
 

4. the cost aligns with identified needs based on results and findings from a needs assessment; and
 

5. the cost addresses program goals and objectives and is based on program data.
 
A cost is allocable to the Federal award if the goods or services involved are chargeable or cost is assignable to the
that Federal award or other cost objective in accordance with the relative benefit benefits received. This standard is
met if the cost satisfies any of the following criteria: 1) is incurred specifically for the Federal award; 2) benefits
both the Federal award and other work of the Corporation and can be distributed in proportions that may be
approximated using reasonable methods; 3) and is necessary to the overall operation of the Corporation and is
assignable to the Federal award in accordance with cost principles mentioned here.
 

 
B. Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in the cost principles in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 or in the terms and

conditions of the Federal award, including prohibitions regarding costs incurred for telecommunications and video
surveillance services or equipment.
 

C. Be consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to both Federally-financed and other activities of the
Corporation.
 

D. Be accorded consistent treatment. A cost cannot be assigned to a Federal award as a direct cost if any other cost
incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances has been allocated to a Federal award as an indirect cost under
another award.
 

E. Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
 

F. Be representative of actual cost, net of all applicable credits or offsets.

The term "applicable credits" refers to those receipts or reductions of expenditures that operate to offset or reduce
expense items transactions that offset or reduce direct or indirect costs allocable to the Federal award. Typical
examples Examples of such transactions are: purchase discounts; rebates or allowances; recoveries or indemnities
on losses; insurance refunds or rebates, and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges. To the extent that
such credits accruing to or received by the State Corporation relate to the Federal award, they shall be credited to
the Federal award, either as a cost reduction or a cash refund, as appropriate.
 

G. Not be included as a match or cost-share requirements of any other Federally-financed program in either the current
or a prior period, unless the specific Federal program authorizes Federal costs to be treated as such.
 

H. Be adequately documented:
 

1. in the case of personal services, the Superintendent shall implement a system for Corporation personnel to
account for time and efforts expended on grant-funded programs to assure that only permissible personnel
expenses are allocated;
 

2. in the case of other costs, all receipts and other invoice materials shall be retained, along with any
documentation identifying the need and purpose for such expenditure if not otherwise clear.
 

I. Administrative closeout costs may be incurred until the due date of the final report(s). If incurred, these costs must
be liquidated prior to the due date of the final report(s) and charged to the final budget period of the award unless
otherwise specified by the Federal agency.

All other costs must be incurred during the approved budget period. At its discretion, the Federal agency is

1. is incurred specifically for the Federal award;
 

2. benefits both the Federal award and other work of the Corporation and can be distributed in
proportions that may be approximated using reasonable methods;
 

3. and is necessary to the overall operation of the Corporation and is assignable in part to the Federal
award in accordance with these cost principles.



authorized to waive prior written approvals to carry forward unobligated balances to subsequent budget periods.Be
incurred during the approved budget period.
 
The budget period means the time interval from the start date of a funded portion of an award to the end date of
that funded portion during which recipients are the Corporation authorized to carry out authorized work and expend
incur financial obligations of the funds awarded, including any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to
the law 2 C.F.R. 200.308. Prior written approval from the Federal awarding agency or State pass-through entity may
be required to carry forward unobligated balances to subsequent budget periods unless waived.

 
Selected Items of Cost
 
The Corporation shall follow the rules for selected items of cost at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E when charging these specific
expenditures to a Federal grant. When applicable, Corporation staff shall check costs against the selected items of cost
requirements to ensure the cost is allowable. In addition, State, Corporation and program-specific rules, including the terms
and conditions of the award, may deem a cost as unallowable, and Corporation personnel shall follow those rules as well.
 
The following rules of allowability must apply to equipment and other capital expenditures:
 

A. Capital expenditures for general purpose equipment, buildings, and land are unallowable allowable as direct
charges costs, except but only with the prior written approval of the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity.
 

B. Capital expenditures for special purpose equipment are allowable as direct costs, provided that items with a unit
cost of $5,000 $10,000 or more have the prior written approval of the Federal awarding agency or pass-through
entity.
 

C. Capital expenditures for improvements to land, buildings, or equipment which that materially increase their value or
useful life are unallowable allowable as a direct cost except but only with the prior written approval of the Federal
awarding agency, or pass-through entity.
 

D. All Federally-funded contracts in excess of $2,000 related to construction, alteration, repairs, painting, decorating,
etc. must comply with Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements.
 

E. Allowability of depreciation on buildings, capital improvements, and equipment shall be in accordance with 2 CFR
200.436 and allowability of real property and equipment rental costs shall be in accordance with 2 CFR 200.465.
 

F. When approved as a direct cost by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity under Sections A - C, capital
expenditures will must be charged in the period in which the expenditure is incurred, or as otherwise determined
appropriate and negotiated with the Federal awarding agency.
 

H. If the Corporation is instructed by the Federal awarding agency to otherwise dispose of or transfer the equipment,
the costs of such disposal or transfer are allowable.
 

 
Statutory requirements may limit the allowability of costs. Any costs that exceed the maximum amount allowed by statute
may not be charged to the Federal award. Only the amount allowable by statute may be charged to the Federal award.
 
Payments made for costs determined to be unallowable by the Federal agency, cognizant agency for indirect costs, or pass-
through entity must be refunded (with interest) to the Federal Government.
 
Prior Written Approval
 
To avoid subsequent disallowance or dispute based on unreasonableness or nonallocability, the Corporation may seek the
prior written approval of the Federal agency (or, for indirect costs, the cognizant agency for indirect costs) before incurring
the cost. The absence of prior written approval on any element of cost will not, in itself, affect the reasonableness or
allocability of that cost unless prior approval is specifically required for allowability.
 
Cost Compliance
 

G. The Corporation may claim the unamortized portion of any equipment written off as a result of a change in
capitalization levels by continuing to claim the otherwise allowable depreciation on the equipment, or by amortizing
the amount to be written off over a period of years negotiated with the cognizant agency or indirect.
 

I. Equipment and other capital expenditures are unallowable as indirect costs.



The Superintendent shall require that grant program funds are expended and are accounted for consistent with the
requirements of the specific program and as identified in the grant application. Compliance monitoring includes accounting
for direct or indirect costs and reporting them as permitted or required by each grant. Costs incurred for the same purpose
in like circumstances shall be treated consistently as either direct or indirect costs, but may not be double charged or
inconsistently charged as both.
 
Determining Whether a Cost is Direct or Indirect:
 
The association of costs with a Federal award determines whether costs are direct or indirect. Costs charged directly to a
Federal award are typically incurred specifically for that Federal award. Costs that otherwise would be treated as indirect
costs may be considered direct costs if they are directly related to a specific award. Costs incurred for the same purpose in
like circumstances must be treated consistently as direct or indirect.
 

A. Direct costs are those costs that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective, such as a Federal
award, or other internally or externally funded activity, or that can be directly assigned to such activities relatively
easily with a high degree of accuracy.
 
These costs may include: salaries and fringe benefits of employees working directly on a grant-funded project;
purchased services contracted for performance under the grant; travel of employees working directly on a grant-
funded project; materials, supplies, and equipment purchased for use on a specific grant; program evaluation costs
or other institutional service operations; and infrastructure costs directly attributable to the program (such as long-
distance telephone calls specific to the program, etc.). Direct costs may also include capital expenditures if approved
by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity, as well as capital expenditures for special purpose
equipment with a unit cost of less than $5,000 $10,000.

If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that can be determined without undue effort or
cost, the cost must be allocated to the projects based on the proportional benefit.
 

B. Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than one cost
objective and are not readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefited without effort disproportionate
to the results achieved. Costs incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances shall be treated consistently as
either direct or indirect costs.
 
These costs may include: general data processing, human resources, utility costs, maintenance, accounting, etc.
 
Federal education programs with supplement not supplant provisions must use a restricted indirect cost rate. In a
restricted rate, indirect costs are limited to general management costs. General management costs do not include
divisional administration that is limited to one component of the Corporation, the governing body of the Corporation,
compensation of the Superintendent, compensation of the chief executive officer of any component of the
Corporation, and operation of the immediate offices of these officers.
 
The salaries of administrative and clerical staff normally should be treated as indirect costs. Direct charging of these
costs may be appropriate only if all of the following conditions are met:
 

1. Administrative or clerical services are integral to a project or activity Federal award.
 

2. Individuals involved can be specifically identified with the project or activity a Federal award.
 

4. The costs are not also recovered as indirect costs.
 
Where a Federal program has a specific cap on the percentage of administrative costs that may be charged to a grant, that
cap shall include all direct administrative charges as well as any recovered indirect charges.
 
Effort should be given to identify costs as direct costs whenever practical, but allocation of indirect costs may be used
where not prohibited and where indirect cost allocation is approved ahead of time by the Indiana Department of Education
(IDOE) or the pass-through entity (Federal funds subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 200 pertaining to determining indirect cost
allocation).
 
Equipment and other capital expenditures are unallowable as indirect costs.
 
Timely Obligation of Funds

3. Such costs are explicitly included in the budget or have the prior written approval of the Federal awarding
agency.
 



 
Financial obligations  are orders placed for property and services, contracts and sub-awards made, and similar transactions
that require payment under a Federal award that will result in expenditures by a Corporation under a Federal award.
 
This term is used when referencing a recipient's or subrecipient's use of funds under a Federal award.
 
The following list illustrates when funds are determined to be obligated under the U.S. Department of Education
regulations at 34 C.F.R. 75.707.
 
If the obligation is for:
 

A. Acquisition of real or personal property - on the date which the Corporation makes a binding written commitment to
acquire the property.
 

B. Personal services by an employee of the Corporation - when the services are performed.
 

C. Personal services by a contractor who is not an employee of the Corporation - on the date which the Corporation
makes a binding written commitment to obtain the services.
 

D. Performance of work other than personal services - on the date when the Corporation makes a binding written
commitment to obtain the work.
 

E. Public utility services - when the Corporation receives the services.
 

F. Travel - when the travel is taken.
 

G. Rental of real or personal property - when the Corporation uses the property.
 

H. A pre-agreement cost that was properly approved by the Secretary under the cost principles in 2 C.F.R. Part 200,
Subpart E - Cost Principles - on the first day of the project period.

 
Period of Performance
 
All financial obligations must occur during the period of performance. Period of performance means the total estimated time
interval between the start of an initial Federal award when the Corporation is permitted to carry out the work authorized by
the grant and the planned end date. The period of performance may include one or more funded portions or budget
periods. Period of performance means the time interval between the start and end date of a Federal award, which may
include one or more budget periods. Identification of the period of performance in the Federal award consistent with 2
C.F.R. 200.211 does not commit the Federal agency to fund the award beyond the currently approved budget period. The
period of performance is dictated by statute and will be indicated in the grant award notification ("GAN"). As a general rule,
State-administered Federal funds are available for obligation within the year that Congress appropriates the funds for.
However, given the unique nature of educational institutions, for many Federal education grants, the period of performance
is twenty-seven (27) months. This maximum period includes a fifteen (15) month period of initial availability, plus a twelve
(12) month period for carryover. For direct grants, the period of performance is generally identified in the GAN. Note,
however, that certain Federal awards have specific requirements that restrict the use of funds beyond the initial period of
performance.
 
In the case of a State-administered grant, financial obligations under a grant may not be made until the application is
approved or is in substantially approvable form,  whichever is later. In the case of a direct grant, a grantee may use grant
funds only for obligations it makes during the grant period unless an agreement exists with the awarding agency or the
pass-through entity (e.g., Indiana Department of Education) to reimburse for pre-approval expenses.
 
If a Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity approves an extension, or if the Cooperative extends under C.F.R.
200.308(eg)(2), the Period of Performance will be amended to end at the completion of the extension. If a termination
occurs, the Period of Performance will be amended to end upon the effective date of termination. If a renewal is issued, a
distinct Period of Performance will begin.
 
For both State-administered and direct grants, regardless of the period of availability, the Corporation shall liquidate all
financial obligations incurred under the award not later than ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the funding period
unless an extension is authorized conclusion of the period of performance of the award (or an earlier date as agreed upon
by IDOE and the Corporation. For direct Federal grants, the Corporation shall liquidate financial obligations incurred under
the award not later than 120 calendar days after the conclusion of the period of performance of the award. Any funds not



obligated within the period of performance or liquidated within the appropriate timeframe are said to lapse and shall be
returned to the awarding agency. Consequently, the Corporation shall closely monitor grant spending throughout the grant
cycle.
 
2 C.F.R. 200.1
2 C.F.R. 200.403-407
2 C.F.R. 200.413(a)-(c)
2 C.F.R. 200.430(a)
2 C.F.R. 200.431(a)
2 C.F.R. 200.439(b)(2)
2 C.F.R. 200.458
2 C.F.R. 216, 309, and 471
2 C.F.R. 344(b)
34 C.F.R. 75.703
34 C.F.R. 75.707
34 C.F.R. 76.707
34 C.F.R 76.708(a)
 
© Neola 2022 2024

Legal 2 C.F.R. 200.1

2 C.F.R. 200.403-407

2 C.F.R. 200.413(a)-(c)

2 C.F.R. 200.430(a)

2 C.F.R. 200.431(a)

2 C.F.R. 200.439

2 C.F.R. 200.458

2 C.F.R. 216, 309, and 471

2 C.F.R. 344(b)

34 C.F.R. 75.703

34 C.F.R. 75.707

34 C.F.R. 76.707

34 C.F.R 76.708(a)



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - PROCUREMENT
��� FEDERAL GRANTS/FUNDS

Code po6325

Status

Adopted March 11, 2021

Last Revised July 14, 2023

Last Reviewed May 9, 2024

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024

6325 - PROCUREMENT – FEDERAL GRANTS/FUNDS
 
Procurement of all supplies, materials, equipment, and services paid from Federal funds or School Corporation matching
funds shall be made in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local statutes and/or regulations, the terms and
conditions of the Federal grant, and School Board policies and administrative procedures.
 
The Superintendent shall have  and use a procurement and contract administration system in accordance with the USDOE
U.S. Department of Education requirements (2 C.F.R. 200.317-.326200.327), including affirmative steps for consideration
of small and businesses, minority businesses, and women's business enterprises, veteran-owned businesses, and labor
surplus area firms for the administration and management of Federal grants and Federally-funded programs. The
Corporation shall maintain oversight that requires contractors to perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and
specifications of their contracts or purchase orders. Except as otherwise noted, procurement transactions shall conform to
the provisions of the Corporation’s documented general purchasing Policy 6320 and AG 6320A.
 
All Federally-funded contracts in excess of $2,000 related to construction, alteration, repairs, painting, or decorating, etc. of
public buildings or public works must comply with Davis-Bacon and Related Acts prevailing wage requirements.
 
All Corporation employees, officers (that is, Board members), and agents, and Board members who have purchasing
authority shall abide by the standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees,
officers, and agents, and Board members engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts as established in
Policy 1130, Policy 3113 and Policy 4113 – Conflict of Interest.
 
The Corporation shall avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Additionally, consideration shall Consideration
should be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. And, where
appropriate, an analysis shall be made of lease versus purchase alternatives and any other appropriate analysis to
determine the most economical approach. When appropriate, an analysis should be made between leasing and
purchasing property or equipment to determine the most economical approach. These considerations are given as part of
the process to determine the allowability of each purchase made with Federal funds.
 
To foster greater economy and efficiency, the Corporation may enter into State and local intergovernmental agreements,
where appropriate, for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.
 
Competition
 
All procurement transactions for the acquisition of property or services required under a under the Federal award paid for
from Federal funds or Corporation matching funds shall be conducted in a manner that encourages provides full and open
competition and is in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.319 and 200.320, good administrative practice and sound business
judgment. In order to promote To ensure objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, the
Corporation shall exclude any contractor that has developed or drafted specifications, requirements, statements of work, or
invitations for bids or requests for proposals from competition for such procurements.
 



Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include, but are not limited to, the following:Examples of
situations that may restrict competition include, but are not limited to:
 

A. unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business;
 

B. unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements;
 

C. noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies;
 

D. noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts;
 

E. organizational conflicts of interest;
 

F. specification of only a "brand name" product instead of allowing for an "or equal" product to be offered and
describing the performance or other relevant requirements of the procurement; and
 

G. any arbitrary action in the procurement process.
 
Further, the Corporation shall not use statutorily or administratively imposed State, local, or tribal geographical preferences
in the evaluation of bids or proposals unless 1) an applicable Federal statute expressly mandates or encourages a
geographic preference; or 2) the Corporation is contracting for architectural and engineering services, in which case
geographic location may be a selection criterion provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms,
given the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract.
 
To the extent that the Corporation uses a pre-qualified list of persons, firms or products to acquire goods and services that
are subject to this policy, the pre-qualified list includes enough qualified sources as to ensure maximum open and free
competition. The Corporation allows vendors individuals to apply for consideration to be placed on the list at any time.
 
The Corporation shall require that all ensure prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products which that are used in acquiring
goods and services are current and include enough qualified sources to provide maximum open and free
competition procurement transactions are current and include enough qualified sources to provide maximum open
competition. When establishing or amending prequalified lists, the Corporation (or subrecipient) must consider objective
factors that evaluate price and cost to maximize competition. The Corporation shall not preclude potential bidders from
qualifying during the solicitation period.
 
To the extent consistent with established practices and legal requirements applicable to the Corporation, the Corporation is
not prohibited from developing written procedures of procurement transactions that incorporate a scoring mechanism that
rewards bidders that commit to specific numbers and types of U.S. jobs, minimum compensation, benefits, on-the-job-
training for employees making work products or provided services on a contract, and other worker protections. The
Corporation may also make inquiries of bidders about these subjects and assess the responses. Scoring mechanisms must
be consistent with the U.S. Constitution, applicable Federal statutes and regulations, and the terms and conditions of the
Federal award.
 
Solicitation Language (Purchasing Procedures)
 
The Corporation shall have written procurement procedures for procurement transactions. that These procedures
must require that all solicitations made pursuant to this policy: incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical
requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements,
contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the
material, product or service to be procured and, when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics
and standards to which it shall conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided
if at all possible.
 

A. adhere to the competition requirements and restrictions listed above;
 

B. incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the property, equipment, or
service being procured;

The description may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the property, equipment, or service to
be procured. When necessary, the description must set forth those minimum essential characteristics and
standards to which the property, equipment, or service shall conform. Detailed product specifications
should be avoided if at all possible.

When it is impractical or uneconomical to clearly and accurately describe the technical requirements, a



 
When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a "brand
name or equivalent" description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient requirements of
procurement. The specific features of the named brand which shall be met by offers shall be clearly stated; and the
solicitation shall identify all requirements which the offerors shall fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or
proposals.
 
The Board will not approve any expenditure for an unauthorized purchase or contract.
 
Procurement Methods
 
The Corporation shall have and use documented procedures, consistent with the standards described above, for  the
following methods of procurement:
 

A. Informal Procurement Methods

When the value of the procurement for property or services under a Federal award does not exceed the simplified
acquisition threshold or a lower threshold established by the State, formal procurement methods are not required.
The Corporation may use informal procurement methods to expedite the completion of its transactions and minimize
the associated administrative burden and cost. The informal methods used for procurement of property or services
at or below the simplified acquisition threshold include:Informal procurement methods for small purchases expedite
the completion of transactions, minimize administrative burdens, and reduce costs. Information procurement
methods may be used when the value of the procurement transaction under a Federal award does not exceed the
simplified acquisition threshold or a lower threshold established by the State. The informal procurement methods
include:
 

1. Micro-purchases

Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies property or services, the aggregate dollar
amount of which does not exceed $50,000. To the maximum extent practicable, the Corporation should
distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-purchases may be made without
soliciting competitive price or rate quotations if the Purchasing Agent identified in Policy 6320 considers the
price to be reasonable based on research, experience, purchase history, or other relevant information and
documents are filed accordingly maintains documents to support the Purchasing Agent's conclusion. The
Corporation shall  maintain evidence of this reasonableness in the records of all purchases made by this
method.

Unless otherwise defined by State or local law, corporations are the Corporation is responsible for
determining and documenting an appropriate micro-purchase threshold in accordance with 2 C.F.R.
200.320(a)(1)(iv) based on internal controls, an evaluation of the risk, and its documented procurement
procedures. The micro-purchase threshold used by the Corporation shall be authorized or not prohibited
under State, local, or tribal laws or regulations. A corporation which is qualified as a low- risk auditee for the
most recent audit (C.F.R. 200.520) may increase the micro-purchase threshold up to $50,000. An eligible
corporation may self-certify the increased micro-purchase threshold on an annual basis after completing the
annual internal institutional risk assessment to identify, mitigate, and manage financial risks. The self-
certification, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.335, must include a justification, clear identification of the
threshold, and supporting documentation of the qualifications listed above. An eligible Corporation may self-
certify a threshold of up to $50,000 on an annual basis and must maintain documentation to be made
available to the Federal agency or pass-through entity and auditors in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.334. The
self-certification must include a justification, clear identification of the threshold, and supporting
documentation of any of the following:[DRAFTING NOTE: The Federal regulation allows for a $50,000
threshold. While this authority is allowed for an entity qualified as a low-risk auditee, Neola does
not suggest its use due to the complexity and subjectivity of the mechanism.] 
 

"brand name or equivalent" description of features to provide procurement requirements may be used. The
specific features of the named brand must be clearly stated; and
 

C. identify any additional requirements that the offerors must fulfill and all other factors that will be used in
evaluating bids or proposals.

1. a qualification as a low-risk auditee, in accordance with the criteria in 2 C.F.R. 200.520 for the most
recent audit;
 

2. an annual internal institutional risk assessment to identify, mitigate, and manage financial risks; or,
 



 
 

2. Small PurchasesSimplified Acquisitions

Small purchases Simplified acquisitions include the acquisition of property or services, the aggregate dollar
amount of which is higher than the micro-purchase threshold but does not exceed the simplified acquisition
threshold of $250,000. Small purchase Simplified acquisition procedures require price or rate quotations shall
be obtained from an adequate number of  qualified sources. 

Corporations are The Corporation is responsible for determining an appropriate simplified acquisition
threshold based on internal controls, an evaluation of risk, and its documented procurement procedures
which must not exceed the threshold established in the Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR). When
applicable, a lower simplified acquisition threshold used by the non-Federal entity Corporation must be
authorized or not prohibited under State, local, or tribal laws or regulations.

 
B. Formal Procurement Methods

When the value of the procurement for property or services under a Federal award exceeds the simplified acquisition
threshold, or a lower threshold established by the State, formal procurement methods are required. Formal
procurement methods require following documented procedures. Formal procurement methods also require public
advertising unless a non-competitive procurement method can be used in accordance with the standards on
competition in 200.319 or non-competitive procurement notice and must be competitive. The formal methods of
procurement are:
 

1. Sealed Bids

Sealed, competitive bids shall be obtained when the purchase of, and contract for, single items of supplies,
materials, or equipment amounts to more than $250,000 and when the Board determines to build, repair,
enlarge, improve, or demolish a school building/facility the cost of which will exceed the amount allowed by
Indiana statute.

In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions shall be present:
 

a. a complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;
 

b. two (2) or more responsible bidders are have been identified as willing and able to compete effectively
for the business; and
 

c. the procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the successful bidder
can be made principally on the basis of based on price.

When sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:
 

a. Bids shall be solicited in accordance with the provisions of State law and Policy 6320. Bids shall be
solicited from an adequate number of qualified suppliers, providing sufficient response time prior to
the date set for the opening of bids. The invitation to bid shall be publicly advertised.
 

b. The invitation for bids shall include product/contract specifications and pertinent attachments and
shall define the items and/or services required in order for the bidder to properly respond must define
the items or services with specific information, including any required specifications, for the bidder to
properly respond, and comply with the requirements of I.C. 5-22-7-2.
 

c. All bids shall be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; bids shall be
opened publicly.
 

d. A firm fixed price contract award shall be made is awarded in writing to the lowest responsive bid
and responsible bidder. Where specified in bidding documents When specified in the invitation for bids,
factors such as discounts, transportation cost, and life cycle costs shall be considered in determining
which bid is lowest. Payment discounts may must be used to determine the low bid only when the
Corporation determines they are a valid factor based on prior experience indicates that such discounts
are usually taken.
 

3. for public institutions, a higher threshold is consistent with State law.



e. The Board reserves the right to reject any or all bids, for sound documented reason but must
document and provide a justification for all bids it rejects.

 
2. Proposals

Procurement by proposals is a method in which either a fixed price or cost-reimbursement type contract is
awarded. Proposals are generally This method is used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of
sealed bids or in the case of a recognized exception to the sealed bid method. Indiana law stipulates a
threshold for which sealed bids are required. (See Policy 6320.) 

If this method is used, the following requirements apply:
 

a. Requests for proposals shall be publicized and require public notice, and must identify all evaluation
factors and their relative importance. Any response to the publicized requests for proposals shall be
considered to the maximum extent practical. To the maximum extent practicable, any proposals
submitted in response to the public notice must be considered.
 

b. Proposals shall be solicited from an adequate number of sources. 
 

c. The Corporation shall use its written method for conducting technical evaluations of the proposals
received and for selecting recipients.The Corporation must have written procedures for conducting
technical evaluations and for making selections.
 

d. Contracts shall must be awarded to the responsible firm offeror whose proposal is most advantageous
to the program, with price and other factors considered Corporation considering price and other
factors.

The Corporation may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based procurement of
architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby the competitors' qualifications are evaluated
and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation.
The method, where the price is not used as a selection factor, can be used only in procurement to procure of
A/E professional services. It The method cannot be used to purchase other types of services though provided
by A/E firms that are a potential source to perform the proposed effort.

 
3. Noncompetitive Procurement

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals allows for solicitation of a proposal from only one source and may
be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply:
 

1. micro-purchasesthe aggregate amount of the procurement transaction does not exceed the micro-
purpose threshold;
 

2. the item is available only from the procurement transaction can only be fulfilled by a single source;
 

3. the public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from
publicizing providing public  notice of a competitive solicitation;
 

4. the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in
response to a written request from the Corporationthe Corporation requests in writing to use a
noncompetitive procurement method, and the Federal agency or pass-through entity provides written
approval; or
 

5. after solicitation of a number of soliciting several sources, competition is determined to be
inadequate.

Domestic Preference for Procurement
 
As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Corporation shall, The Corporation should, to the extent
practicable under a Federal award, and consistent with law, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of
goods, products, or materials produced in the United States. Such requirements shall be included in all subawards,
including all contracts contracts, and purchase orders for work or products under the Federal award.
 
Procurement of Recovered Materials
 



The Corporation must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 6962. These requirements include:
 

 
Contract/Price Analysis
 
The Corporation shall perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement action in excess of $250,000,
including contract modifications. A cost analysis generally means evaluating the separate cost elements that make up the
total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price without looking at the individual cost elements.
 
The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation; however,
the Corporation shall come to an independent estimate prior to receiving bids or proposals.
 
When performing a cost analysis, the Corporation shall negotiate profit as a separate element of the price. To establish a
fair and reasonable profit, consideration is given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the
contractor, the contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and
industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.
The Corporation shall perform a cost or price analysis for every procurement transaction, including contract modifications,
in excess of the Simplified Acquisition threshold identified above. The method and degree of analysis conducted depend on
the facts surrounding the particular procurement transaction. A cost analysis generally means evaluating the separate cost
elements that make up the total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price without looking at the
individual cost elements. The Corporation must not use the "cost plus a percentage of cost" and "percentage of construction
costs" methods of contracting.
 
Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal award are allowable only to the extent that the
costs incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices would be allowable for the Corporation according to cost
principle requirements.
 
Time and Materials ContractsTime-and-Materials Contracts
 
The Corporation uses a time and materials may use a time-and-materials type contract only 1) after a determination that
no other contract is suitable, and 2) if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time
and materials type contract means a contract whose cost to the Corporation is the sum of the actual costs of materials and
direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general and administrative expenses, and profit.
 
Since Because this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-materials contract provides no positive
profit incentive to the contractor for cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, the Corporation sets a ceiling price for each
contract that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the Corporation shall assert a high degree of oversight in order
to obtain reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls.
 
Suspension and DebarmentDoing Business with Other Persons
 
The Corporation shall award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing that possess the ability to perform
successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed procurement. All purchasing decisions shall be made in the
best interests of the Corporation and shall seek to obtain the maximum value for each dollar expended. When making a

A. procuring only items designated in the guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40
C.F.R. part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with
maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or
the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000;
 

B. procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery;
and
 

C. establishing an affirmative procurement program for the procurement of recovered materials identified in
the EPA guidelines.

The Corporation should, to the greatest extent practicable and consistent with law, purchase acquire, or
use products and services that can be reused, refurbished, or recycled; contain recycled content, are
biobased, or are energy and water-efficient; and are sustainable.

This may include purchasing compostable items and other products and services that reduce the use of
single-use plastic products.



purchasing decision, the Corporation shall consider such factors as 1) contractor integrity; 2) compliance with public
policy compliance; 3) proper classification of employees; 4) record of past performance; and 45) financial and technical
resources. If the Purchasing Agent determines a contractor is not responsible, that determination must be made in writing.
 
The Superintendent shall have the authority to suspend or debar a person/corporation, for cause, from consideration or
award of further contracts. The Corporation is subject to and shall abide by the nonprocurement debarment and suspension
regulations implementing Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, 2 C.F.R. Part 180.
 
Suspension is an action taken by the Corporation that immediately prohibits a person from participating in covered
transactions and transactions covered under the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 C.F.R Chapter 1) for a temporary period,
pending completion of an agency investigation and any judicial or administrative proceedings that may ensue. A person so
excluded is suspended. (2 C.F.R. Part 180 Subpart G)
 
Debarment is an action taken by the Superintendent to exclude a person from participating in covered transactions and
transactions covered under the Federal Acquisition Regulation (48 C.F.R. Chapter 1). A person so excluded is debarred. (2
C.F.R. Part 180 Subpart H)
 
The Corporation shall not subcontract with or award subgrants to any person or company who is debarred or suspended.
For contracts over $25,000, the Corporation shall confirm that the vendor is not debarred or suspended by either checking
the Federal government’s System for Award Management, which maintains a list of such debarred or suspended vendors at
www.sam.gov; collecting a certification from the vendor; or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with
that vendor. (2 C.F.R. Part 180 Subpart C)The Corporation shall not subcontract with or award subgrants to any person or
company who is excluded or disqualified. For contracts over $25,000, the Corporation shall confirm that the person with
whom the Corporation intends to do business is not excluded or disqualified by checking the Federal Government's System
for Award Management Exclusions at www.sam.gov; collecting a certification from that person; or adding a clause or
condition to the covered transaction with that person.
 
Bid Protest
 
The Corporation maintains the following protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to procurements and, in
all instances, discloses information regarding the protest to the awarding Federal agency.
 
A bidder who wishes to file a bid protest shall file such notice and follow procedures prescribed by the Request For
Proposals (RFPs) or the individual bid specifications package for resolution. Bid protests shall be filed in writing with the
Superintendent within seventy- two (72) hours of the opening of the bids in protest.
 
Within five (5) days of receipt of a protest, the Superintendent shall review the protest as submitted and render a decision
regarding the merits of the protest and any impact on the acceptance and rejection of bids submitted. Notice of the filing of
a bid protest shall be communicated to the Board and shall be so noted in any subsequent recommendation for the
acceptance of bids and awarding of contracts.
 
Failure to file a notice of intent to protest or failure to file a formal written protest within the time prescribed shall constitute
a waiver of proceedings.
 
Maintenance of Procurement Records
 
The Corporation shall maintain records sufficient to detail the history of all procurements each procurement transaction.
These records shall include but are not necessarily limited to the following: rationale for the method of procurement,
selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price (including a cost or price
analysis).
 
Record Retention
 
The Corporation must retain all Federal award records for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financial
report, or as otherwise required pursuant to the Board-adopted records retention schedule, whichever is longer.  For awards
that are renewed quarterly or annually, the Corporation must retain records for three (3) years from the date of submission
of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, or as otherwise required pursuant to the Board-adopted records
retention schedule if longer.  Records to be retained include but are not limited to, financial records, supporting
documentation, and statistical records.  Other records retention requirements shall be in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.334
and the Board-adopted records retention schedule.
 
The Corporation must collect, transmit, and store Federal award information in a machine-readable format.  The
Corporation may substitute electronic versions of original paper records through duplication or other forms of electronic
conversion, provided that the procedures are subject to periodic quality control reviews.  Quality control reviews must

http://www.sam.gov/


ensure that electronic conversion procedures provide safeguards against the alteration of records and assurance that
records remain in a format that is readable by a computer system.
 
I.C. 5-22-2-21
I.C. 5-22-2-30
I.C. 5-22-2-38
I.C. 5-22-3-3
I.C. 5-22-6-1
I.C. 5-22-6-2
I.C. 5-22-7-1 et seq.
I.C. 5-22-8-2
I.C. 5-22-8-3
I.C. 5-22-10-1 et seq.
I.C. 5-22-16-1
I.C. 5-22-16-2
I.C. 20-26-4-6
I.C. 20-26-4-8
I.C. 20-26-5-4
2 C.F.R. 200.317 - .326 200.327
2 C.F.R. 180.300
2 C.F.R. 180.305
2 C.F.R. 200.334 - 200.337
2 C.F.R. 200.520
Appendix II to Part 2 C.F.R. 200
 
© Neola 2022 2024

Legal I.C. 5-22-2-21

I.C. 5-22-2-30

I.C. 5-22-2-38

I.C. 5-22-3-3

I.C. 5-22-6-1

I.C. 5-22-6-2

I.C. 5-22-7-1 et seq.

I.C. 5-22-8-2

I.C. 5-22-8-3

I.C. 5-22-10-1 et seq.

I.C. 5-22-16-1

I.C. 5-22-16-2

I.C. 20-26-4-6

I.C. 20-26-4-8

I.C. 20-26-5-4

2 C.F.R. 180.300

2 C.F.R. 180.305

2 C.F.R. 200.317 - .327

2 C.F.R. 200.334 - 200.337

2 C.F.R. 200.520

Appendix II to 2 C.F.R. Part 200



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - TRAVEL
PAYMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT/RELOCATION COSTS

Code po6550

Status

Adopted August 10, 2017

Last Revised July 14, 2023

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
 
6550 - TRAVEL PAYMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT/RELOCATION COSTS
 
Travel expenses incurred for official business travel on behalf of the School Corporation shall be limited to those expenses
necessarily incurred by the employee in the performance of a public purpose authorized, in advance, in accordance with
administrative guidelines. Travel costs may include the transportation, lodging, subsistence, and related items incurred by
employees who are in travel status on official business of the Corporation.
 
Payment and reimbursement rates for per diem, meals, lodging, and mileage shall be established by the Corporation and
approved by the School Board annually. All mileage reimbursements shall be made at the rate established by the Board and
documented by submitting a State Board of Accounts approved mileage form. Employees are expected to exercise the
same care incurring travel expenses that a prudent person would exercise if traveling on personal business and expending
personal funds. Unauthorized costs and additional expenses incurred for personal preference or convenience shall not be
reimbursed.
 
Unauthorized expenses include but are not limited to alcohol, movies, fines for traffic violations, and the
entertainment/meals/lodging of spouses or guests.
 
Commercial airfare costs in excess of the basic least expensive unrestricted accommodations class offered by commercial
airlines are unallowable except when such accommodations would 1) require circuitous routing; 2) require travel during
unreasonable hours; 3) excessively prolong travel; 4) result in additional costs that would offset the transportation savings;
or 5) offer accommodations not reasonably adequate for the traveler’s medical needs. Instances of commercial airfare cost
in excess of the basic least expensive unrestricted accommodations class must be justified and documented on a case-by-
case basis.
 
Temporary dependent care costs (as dependent is defined in 26 U.S.C. 152) above and beyond regular dependent care that
directly results from travel to conferences are allowable provided that 1) the costs are a direct result of the individual’s
travel for the Federal award; 2) the costs are consistent with the Corporation’s documented administrative guidelines for all
entity travel; and 3) are only temporary during the travel period. Travel costs for dependents are unallowable, except for
travel of a duration of six (6) months or more with prior approval of the Federal awarding agency.
 
Relocation Cost Reimbursement
 
The Board does not reimburse for relocation costs.

Travel payment and reimbursement provided from Federal funds must be authorized in advance and shall be reasonable
and consistent with the Corporation’s travel policy and administrative guidelines. For travel paid for with Federal funds, the
travel authorization shall include documentation that demonstrates that 1) the participation in the event by the individual
traveling is necessary to the Federal award; and 2) the costs are reasonable and consistent with the Corporation’s travel
policy.
 
All travel shall comply with the travel procedures and rates established in the administrative guidelines. All costs incurred
with Federal funds shall meet the cost allowability standards within Policy 6110 - Grant Funds.



 
To the extent that the Corporation’s policy does not establish the allowability of a particular type of travel cost, the rates
and amounts established under 5 U.S.C. 5701-11, ("Travel and Subsistence Expenses; Mileage Allowances"), or by the
Administrator of General Services, or by the President (or the President's designee), must apply to travel under Federal
awards.
 
2 C.F.R. 200.464
2 C.F.R. 200.474
2 C.F.R. 200.475
 
© Neola 2023 2024

Legal 2 C.F.R. 200.464

2 C.F.R. 200.474

2 C.F.R. 200.475



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - POSSESSION OF FIREARMS
AND WEAPONS BY VISITORS

Code po7217

Status

Adopted January 16, 2003

Last Revised April 9, 2015

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
7217 - POSSESSION OF FIREARMS AND WEAPONS BY VISITORS
 
Application of this Policy
 
This policy applies to "visitors" meaning persons who come onto property or a vehicle owned by the School Corporation or
used by the Corporation for school purposes. The term includes members of the general public, students enrolled in other
schools or school corporations, and employees of entities providing services to the Corporation, but does not include
Corporation employees covered by Policy 1617, Policy 3217, or Policy 4217 or currently enrolled students covered by Policy
5772.
 
Possession of a "Weapon" other than a "Firearm" by a Visitor
 
The School Board prohibits visitors from possessing, storing, making, or using a weapon other than a firearm in any setting
that is under the control and supervision of the Corporation for the purpose of school activities approved and authorized by
the Corporation including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted for by the Corporation, a school-
sponsored event, or in a Corporation vehicle. This prohibition does not apply to weapons under the control of a law
enforcement officer.
 
The term "weapon" means an object which, in the manner in which it is used, is intended to be used, or is represented, is
capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, as well as damage or endangering the health and safety of
persons. Weapons include, include but are not limited to, to firearms, tasers, handguns, stun guns, guns of any type,
including air and gas-powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, razors, clubs, electric weapons, chemical
weapons, metallic knuckles, martial arts weapons, ammunition, and destructive devices (such as bombbombs, incendiary
device devices, grenadegrenades, Molotov cocktailcocktails, or rocketrockets, with a propellant charge of more than four
(4) ounces, etc.). A "knife" is defined as "an instrument that: 1) consists of a sharp edge edged or sharp pointed blade
capable of inflicting cutting, stabbing, or tearing wounds; and 2) is intended to be used as a weapon." (I.C. 35-47-5-2.5(a))
 
Possession of a "Firearm" by a Visitor
 
Generally, the possession of a firearm in or on school property, in or on property that is being used by a school for a school
function, or on a school bus is a felony (I.C. 35-47-9-2) and is prohibited by Board policy, except for the possession of a
firearm by a person who legally may possess a firearm and has been authorized by the Board to carry a firearm in or on
Corporation property. As used in this policy and as defined by Indiana law, "firearm" means any weapon that is capable of
expelling, designed to expel, or that may readily may be converted to expel a projectile by means of an explosion.
However, State law permits a person who may legally may possess a firearm to maintain that firearm if it is locked in the
person's trunk, kept in the glove compartment of the person's locked vehicle, or stored out of plain sight in the person's
locked vehicle. This exception does not apply to students unless it is a high school student who is a member of a shooting
sports team and the principal has approved the student keeping a firearm concealed in the student's motor vehicle on days
the student is competing or practicing as a member of a shooting sports team. This exception also does not apply to former
students if the person is no longer enrolled in school due to a disciplinary action within the previous twenty-four (24)
months.
 
Reporting Violations of this Policy



 
The Superintendent will shall report a visitor who violates this policy to law enforcement officials and is authorized to take
any steps necessary to exclude the visitor from Corporation property and Corporation sponsored events.
 
If authorized by the Board, exceptions will shall be permitted for:
 

A. items approved by a principal as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, if used for the
purpose of and in the manner approved; approved (Working working firearms and ammunition shall never be
approved.approved);
 

B. theatrical props used in appropriate settings;
 

C. starter pistols used in appropriate school-related sporting events.
 
I.C. 10-21-3
I.C. 34-28-7-2
I.C. 35-47-1-5
I.C. 35-47-5-2.5
I.C. 35-47-9
20 U.S.C. 7151
 
© Neola 2014 2024

Legal I.C. 10-21-3

I.C. 34-28-7-2

I.C. 35-47-1-5

I.C. 35-47-5-2.5

I.C. 35-47-9

20 U.S.C. 7151



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - DISPOSITION
OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

Code po7310

Status

Adopted August 10, 2017

Last Revised April 14, 2022

Last Reviewed April 14, 2022

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
7310 - DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY
 
The School Board requires the Superintendent to review the property of the School Corporation periodically and to dispose
of that material and equipment which is no longer usable in accordance with the terms of this policy.
 

A. Instructional Material

The Corporation shall review instructional materials (i.e. textbooks, library books, manuals, support materials, etc.)
periodically to determine the relevance of such materials to the present world and current instructional programs.
The following criteria will be used to review instructional materials for redistribution and possible disposal:
 

1. concepts or content that do not support the current goals of the curriculum;
 

2. information that may not be current; and/or
 

3. worn beyond salvage.
 

B. Equipment

For purposes of this policy, equipment shall mean tangible personal property (including information technology
systems), a unit of furniture or furnishings, an instrument, a machine, an apparatus, or a set of articles that retains
its shape and appearance with use, is nonexpendable, having a useful life of more than one (1) year, and a per-unit
cost that equals or exceeds $10,000 to replace and does not lose its identity when incorporated into a more complex
unit. The Corporation shall inspect the equipment used in the instructional program periodically, to determine the
condition and usability of such equipment in the current educational program. Should the equipment be deemed no
longer serviceable or usable, the following criteria will be used to determine possible disposal:
 

1. repair parts for the equipment no longer readily available
 

2. repair records indicate equipment has no usable life remaining
 

3. obsolete and no longer contributing to the educational program
 

4. some potential for sale at a school auction
 

5. creates a safety or environmental hazard
 

C. Textbooks

The Corporation shall dispose of textbooks in accordance with the procedures prescribed by statute.



The Corporation shall dispose of textbooks determined by Corporation officials to no longer be of use in the
Corporation pursuant to Section D below.
 

D. Disposition

The Superintendent is authorized to dispose of obsolete instructional and other property by selling it to the highest
bidder, by donation to appropriate parties, or by proper waste disposal in compliance with 2 C.F.R. 200.313 and
200.314.

When there is a residual inventory of unused supplies exceeding $10,000 in aggregate value at the end of the period
of performance, and the supplies are not needed for any other Federal award, the Corporation may retain or sell the
unused supplies. Unused supplies means supplies that are in new condition, not having been used or opened before.
The aggregate value of unused supplies consists of all supply types, not just like-item supplies. The Federal agency
or pass-through entity may be entitled to compensation in an amount prescribed in 2 C.F.R. 200.314.

If the Board passes a resolution to close a high school, the Corporation shall develop a plan relating to the
preservation or transfer of memorabilia, trophies, or other property that may have historical significance as
determined by the Board. The plan shall be made available for public inspection and posted to the Corporation's
website.

When original or replacement equipment acquired under a Federal award is no longer needed for the original project
or program or for other activities currently or previously supported by a Federal awarding agency, the Corporation
shall request disposition instructions from the Federal awarding agency if required by the terms and conditions of
the Federal award. Disposition of the equipment will be made in accordance with disposition instructions of the
Federal awarding agency.

Items of equipment Equipment with a current per unit fair market value of $5,000 (per unit) or less may be
retained, sold, or otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the Federal awarding agency.

Except as provided in §200.312(b) - Federally-owned and exempt property, paragraph (b), or if the Federal
awarding agency fails to provide requested disposition instructions within 120 days, items of equipment with a
current per-unit fair market value in excess of $5,000 $10,000 (per unit) may be retained or sold by the non-Federal
entity or sold Corporation. The Federal awarding agency is entitled to an amount calculated by multiplying the
percentage of the Federal agency's contribution toward the original purchase by the current market value or
proceeds from the sale by the Federal awarding agency's percentage of participation in the cost of the original
purchase. If the equipment is sold, the Federal awarding agency may permit the non-Federal entity to deduct and
Corporation to retain from the Federal share $500 or ten percent (10%) $1,000 of the proceeds, whichever is less,
for its selling and handling expenses to cover expenses associated with the selling and handling of the equipment.

The Corporation may transfer title to the property to the Federal Government or to an eligible third party provided
that, in such cases, the Corporation shall be entitled to compensation for its attributable percentage of the current
fair market value of the property.

When included in the terms and conditions of the Federal award, the Federal agency may permit the Corporation to
retain equipment or authorize a pass-through entity to permit the Corporation to retain equipment, with no further
obligation to the Federal Government unless prohibited by Federal statute or regulation.

 
© Neola 2021 2024

Legal 2 C.F.R. 200.312, 200.313

I.C. 20-26-5-4

I.C. 36-1-11



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 - PROPERTY
INVENTORY

Code po7450

Status

Adopted June 21, 2001

Last Revised July 14, 2022

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024
 
7450 - PROPERTY INVENTORY
 
As steward of the School Corporation's property, the School Board recognizes that efficient management and full
replacement upon loss requires accurate inventory and properly maintained property records.
 
The Board shall conduct a complete inventory of all Corporation-owned equipment and the results reconciled with the
property records at least once every two (2) years at such intervals as will coincide with property insurance renewal and
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (G.A.A.P.) reporting requirements.
 
For purposes of this policy, "equipment" shall mean tangible personal property (including information technology
systems, a mobile or fixed unit of furniture or furnishings, an instrument, a machine, an apparatus, or a set of articles
which that retains its shape and appearance with use, is non-expendable, having a useful life of more than one (1) year,
and a per-unit cost that equals or exceeds costs at least $10,000 to replace represents an investment of money that makes
it feasible and advisable to capitalize the item, and does not lose its identity when incorporated into a more complex unit.
When defining supplies for inventory purposes, no items will be counted whose total value is less than $10,000. 
 
It shall be the duty of the Superintendent and CFO to ensure that inventories are recorded systematically and accurately
and property records of equipment are updated and adjusted annually by reference to purchase orders and withdrawal
reports.
 
Each principal/supervisor shall conduct an annual spot-check inventory of major items of equipment to determine loss,
mislocation, or depreciation; any major loss shall be reported to the Board.
 
Property records of consumable supplies shall be maintained on a continuous inventory basis.
 
The Superintendent and CFO shall maintain a system of property records which shall show, as appropriate to the item
recorded, ( ) description and identification (serial number or other identification number),manufacturer, year of purchase, (
) initial cost, ( ) location, ( ) condition and depreciation, evaluation in conformity with insurance requirements.
 
The Corporation is responsible for maintaining and updating property records when there is a change in the status of the
property.
 
Equipment Title to equipment acquired under a Federal award will vest upon acquisition to the Corporation, subject to the
following conditions:
 

A. The equipment shall be used for the authorized purposes of the award project during the period of performance or
until the equipment is no longer needed for the purposes of the project.
 

B. The equipment shall not be encumbered without the approval of the Federal awarding agency or the pass-through
entity.While the equipment is being used for the originally authorized purpose, the Corporation (or subrecipient)
must not dispose of or encumber its title or other interests without the approval of the Federal agency or pass-
through entity.
 



C. The equipment may be only used and disposed of in accordance with the provisions of the Federal awarding agency
or the pass-through entity and Policy 7300 - Disposition of Real Property, Policy 7310 - Disposition of Surplus
Property, and AG 7310 - Disposal of Corporation Property.
 

H. Property records shall be maintained that include a description of the equipment, a serial number or other
identification number, the source of funding for the equipment (including the Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)), title entity, acquisition date, cost of the equipment, percentage of Federal participation in the project costs
for the award under which the equipment was acquired, the location, use, and condition of the equipment, and
ultimate disposition data, including date of disposal and sale price of the equipment title holder, acquisition date,
cost of the property, percentage of Federal agency contribution towards the original purchase, the location, use, and
condition of the property, and ultimate disposition data, including date of disposal and sale price of the property.
 

I. A physical inventory of the property must be taken conducted and results reconciled with property records at least
once every two (2) years.
 

J. A control system shall be developed to provide adequate safeguards to prevent must be in place to ensure
safeguards for preventing loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any such loss, damage, or theft shall of the
property must be investigated. The Corporation must notify the Federal agency or pass-through entity of any loss,
damage, or theft of equipment that will have an impact on the program.
 

K. Adequate Regular maintenance procedures shall be implemented to keep the property in good proper
working condition.
 

L. Proper sales procedures shall be established to ensure the highest possible return, in the event the Corporation is
authorized or required to sell the equipment/property.
 

M. When original or replacement equipment acquired under a Federal award is no longer needed for the original
project/program or for activities currently or previously supported by a Federal awarding agency, and except as
otherwise provided by Federal statutes, regulations, or Federal awarding agency disposition instructions agency
disposition instructions, the Corporation shall request disposition instructions from the Federal awarding agency or
the pass-through entity if required by the terms and conditions of the Federal award. Disposition of the equipment
shall be made in accordance with the provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200.313.

 
2 C.F.R. 200.313
2 C.F.R. 200.439 (b)(2)
 
© Neola 2021 2024

D. The Corporation must use the equipment for the project or program for which it was acquired and for as long as
needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by the Federal award. The Corporation
must not encumber the equipment without prior approval of the Federal agency or pass-through agency.
 

E. When no longer needed for the original project or program, the equipment may be used in other activities in the
following order of priority.
 

1. activities under other Federal awards from the Federal agency that funded the original program or project;
then
 

2. activities under Federal awards from other Federal agencies. These activities include consolidated
equipment for information technology systems.
 

F. During the time that equipment is used on the project or program for which it was acquired, the
Corporation must also make the equipment available for use on other programs or projects supported by
the Federal Government, provided that such use will not interfere with the purpose for which it was
originally acquired. First preference for other use of the equipment must be given to other programs or
projects supported by the Federal agency that financed the equipment. Second preference must be given
to programs or projects under Federal awards from other Federal agencies. Use for non-federally funded
projects is also permissible, provided such use will not interfere with the purpose for which the equipment
was originally acquired. The Corporation should consider charging user fees as appropriate. If the
Corporation does not use equipment to earn program income, it must not charge a fee that is less than a
private company that would change for similar services unless specifically authorized by Federal statute.
 

G. When acquiring replacement equipment, the Corporation may either trade in or sell the equipment and use
the proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement equipment.
 



Legal 2 C.F.R. 200.313

2 C.F.R. 200.439 (b)(2)



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - STUDENT TECHNOLOGY
ACCEPTABLE USE AND SAFETY

Code po7540.03

Status

Adopted October 21, 2010

Last Revised April 14, 2022

Last Reviewed April 14, 2022

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
7540.03 - STUDENT TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE AND SAFETY
 
Technology has fundamentally altered the ways in which information is accessed, communicated, and transferred in society.
As a result, educators are continually adapting their means and methods of instruction, and the way they approach student
learning, to incorporate the vast, diverse, and unique resources available through the Internet. The School Board provides
Technology Resources (as defined in Bylaw 0100) to support the educational and professional needs of its students and
staff. With respect to students, School Corporation Technology Resources afford them the opportunity to acquire the skills
and knowledge to learn effectively and live productively in a digital world. The Board provides students with access to the
Internet for limited educational purposes only and utilizes online educational apps and services/apps to enhance the
instruction delivered to its students. The Corporation's computer network and Internet system do not serve as a public
access service or a public forum, and the Board imposes reasonable restrictions on its use consistent with its limited
educational purpose.
 
The Board regulates the use of Corporation Technology Resources by principles consistent with applicable local, State, and
Federal laws, the Corporation's educational mission, and articulated expectations of student conduct as delineated in the
Student Code of Conduct. This policy, its related administrative guidelines and the Student Code of Conduct govern
students’ use of Corporation Technology Resources and students' personal communication devices when they are connected
to the Corporation computer network, Internet connection, and/or online educational apps and services/apps, or when used
while the student is on Corporation-owned property or at a Corporation-sponsored activity (see Policy 5136).
 
Users are prohibited from engaging in actions that are illegal (such as libel, slander, vandalism, harassment, theft,
plagiarism, inappropriate access, and the like) or unkind (such as personal attacks, invasion of privacy, injurious comment,
and the like) when using Corporation Technology Resources. Because its Technology Resources are not unlimited, the Board
also has instituted restrictions aimed at preserving these resources, such as placing limits on use of bandwidth, storage
space, and printers.
 
Users have no right to or expectation to of privacy when using Corporation Technology Resources (including,including but
not limited to, privacy in the content of their personal files, e-mails, and records of their online activity when using the
Corporation’s computer network and/or Internet connection).
 
First, the Corporation may not be able to limit access technologically, through its Technology Resources Resources, to only
those services and resources that have been authorized for the purpose of instruction, study, and research related to the
curriculum. Unlike in the past, when educators and community members had the opportunity to review and screen
materials to assess their appropriateness for supporting and enriching the curriculum according to adopted guidelines and
reasonable selection criteria (taking into account the varied instructional needs, learning styles, abilities, and developmental
levels of the students who would be exposed to them), access to the Internet, because it serves as a gateway to any
publicly available file server in the world, opens classrooms and students to electronic information resources that may not
have been screened by educators for use by students of various ages.
 



The Board prohibits the sending, receiving, viewing, or downloading of materials that are harmful to minors on computers
and other technology related devices owned or leased by the Corporation or connected to the Corporation computer
network.
 
Pursuant to State and Federal law, the Board has implemented technology protection measures that protect against (e.g.,
filter or block) access to visual displays/depictions/materials that are obscene, constitute child pornography, and/or are
harmful to minors, as defined by the Children’s Internet Protection Act. At the discretion of the Board or the
Superintendent, the technology protection measures may be configured to protect against access to other material
considered inappropriate for students to access. The Board also utilizes software and/or hardware to monitor online activity
of students to restrict access to child pornography and other material that is obscene, objectionable, inappropriate and/or
harmful to minors. The technology protection measures may not be disabled at any time that students may be using the
Corporation Technology Resources if such disabling will cease to protect against access to materials that are prohibited
under the Children’s Internet Protection Act. Any student who attempts to disable the technology protection measures will
be subject to discipline.
 
The Superintendent or building principal may temporarily or permanently may unblock access to websites or online
education apps and services/apps containing appropriate material if access to such sites has been blocked inappropriately
by the technology protection measures. The determination of whether material is appropriate or inappropriate shall be
based on the content of the material and the intended use of the material, not on the protection actions of the technology
protection measures.
 
Parents/Guardians are advised that a determined user may be able to gain access to apps and services and/or resources on
the Internet that the Board has not authorized for educational purposes. In fact, it is impossible to guarantee students will
not gain access through the Internet to information and communications that they and/or their parents may find
inappropriate, offensive, objectionable or controversial. Parents of minors are responsible for setting and conveying the
standards that their children should follow when using the Internet.
 
Pursuant to Federal law, students shall receive education about the following:
 

A. safety and security while using e-mail, chat rooms, social media, and other forms of direct electronic
communications communication
 

B. the dangers inherent with the online disclosure of personally identifiable information
 

C. the consequences of unauthorized access (e.g., "hacking", "harvesting", "digital piracy", "data mining", "hacking,"
"harvesting," "digital piracy," "data mining," etc.), cyberbullying, and other unlawful or inappropriate activities by
students online
 

D. unauthorized disclosure, use, and dissemination of personally identifiable information regarding minors
 
Staff members shall provide instruction for their students regarding the appropriate use of technology and online safety and
security as specified above. Furthermore, staff members will monitor the online activities of students while at school.
 
[ ] Monitoring may include, but is not necessarily limited to, visual observations of online activities during class sessions or
use of specific monitoring tools to review browser history and network, server, and computer logs.
 
Building principals are responsible for providing training so that Ed-Tech users under their supervision are knowledgeable
about this policy and its accompanying guidelines. The Board expects that staff members will provide guidance and
instruction to students in the appropriate use of Corporation Technology Resources. Such training shall include, but not be
limited to, education concerning appropriate online behavior, including interacting with other individuals on social media and
in chat rooms and cyberbullying awareness and response. Users of Corporation Technology Resources (and their parents if
they are minors) are required to sign a written agreement to abide by the terms and conditions of this policy and its
accompanying guidelines.
 
Students will be assigned a school email account that they are required to utilize for all school-related electronic
communications, including those to staff members, peers, and individuals and/or organizations outside the Corporation with
whom they are communicating for school-related projects and assignments. Further, as directed and authorized by their
teachers, they shall use their school-assigned email account when signing up/registering for access to various online
educational services, including mobile applications/apps  and apps and services that will be utilized by the student for
educational purposes.
 
Students are responsible for good behavior when using Corporation Technology Resources - i.e., behavior comparable to
that expected of students when they are in classrooms, in school hallways, on other school premises and at school-
sponsored events. Communications on Education Technology are often public in nature. General school rules for behavior



and communication apply. The Corporation does not approve any use of its Technology Resources that is not authorized by
or conducted strictly in compliance with this policy and its accompanying guidelines.
 
Users who disregard this policy and its accompanying guidelines may have their use privileges suspended or revoked, and
disciplinary action taken against may be imposed on them. Users are personally responsible and liable both civilly and
criminally, for uses of Technology Resources that are not authorized by this Policy and its accompanying guidelines.
 
The Board designates the Superintendent and Principal as the administrator(s) responsible for initiating, implementing, and
enforcing this Policy and its accompanying guidelines as they apply to students' use of Corporation Technology Resources.
 
This policy shall be posted on the Corporation's website.
 
P.L. 106-554 (2000), Children's Internet Protection Act of 2000
47 U.S.C. 254(h)(1)(B) Communications Act of 1934, as amended (2003)
47 U.S.C. 2454(h)(1)(B)
18 U.S.C. 1460
18 U.S.C. 2246
18 U.S.C. 2256
20 U.S.C. 6301 et seq., Part F, Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as amended (2003)
20 U.S.C. 6777, 9134 (2003)
47 C.F.R. 54.500 - 54.523
I.C. 20-26-5-40.5���
I.C. 35-49-2-2
 
© Neola 2021 2024

Legal P.L. 106-554 (2000), Children's Internet Protection Act of 2000

47 U.S.C. 2454(h)(1)(B)

18 U.S.C. 1460

18 U.S.C. 2246

18 U.S.C. 2256

20 U.S.C. 6301 et seq., Part F, Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, as
amended (2003)

20 U.S.C. 6777, 9134 (2003)

47 C.F.R. 54.500 - 54.523

I.C. 20-26-5-40.5���

I.C. 35-49-2-2



Book Policy Manual

Section For Board Review

Title Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024 - SCHOOL SAFETY
INFORMATION

Code po8400

Status

Adopted December 22, 2005

Last Revised May 9, 2024

Revised Policy - Volume 36, No. 2 - September 2024
 
8400 - SCHOOL SAFETY INFORMATION
 
The School Board is committed to maintaining a safe environment in all of the School Corporation’s schools. To that end, in
accordance with State and Federal law, The Board believes that school crime and violence are multifaceted problems that
need to be addressed in a manner that utilizes the best resources and coordinated efforts of Corporation personnel, law
enforcement agencies, and families. The Board further believes that school administrators and local law enforcement
officials must work together to provide for the safety and welfare of students while they are at school or a school-sponsored
activity or while en route to or from school or a school-sponsored activity. The Board also believes that the first step in
addressing school crime and violence is to assess the extent and nature of the problem(s) or threat, and then plan and
implement strategies that promote school safety and minimize the likelihood of school crime and violence.
 
In furtherance of its commitment to a safe school environment, the Board has prohibited weapons on school property and
at school-sponsored events, except in very limited circumstances. See Board Policy 1617 - Weapons, Policy 3217 -
Weapons, Policy 4217 - Weapons, Policy 5772 - Weapons, and Policy 7215 - Possession of Firearms and Weapons by
Visitors. This prohibition is reasonably related to legitimate educational concerns, including the ability to provide a safe and
secure learning and social environment for the Corporation's students and controlling and minimizing disruptions to the
educational process. The presence of dangerous weapons on school property or at school-sponsored events, except under
very controlled circumstances, creates a potentially dangerous situation for students, staff, and visitors and may trigger
precautionary safety responses that disrupt the educational process and learning environment for students.
 
Federal law establishes a "Student Safety Zone" that extends 1,000 feet from the boundary of any school property in
relation to weapons and drugs. Individuals are prohibited from possessing or using weapons or drugs at any time on
Corporation property, within the Student Safety Zone, or at any school-related event.
 
In accordance with State and Federal law, each school within the Corporation shall establish a Safe School Committee, the
composition of which shall be in accordance with the Superintendent's guidelines.
 
The Corporation shall establish a Safe School Committee at each school building. (I.C. 10-21-1-14)
 
 
Each Safe School Committee may include at least one (1) member who is a member of the support staff of the school or
Corporation career and technical education school.
 
The Safe School Committee shall be responsible for developing a plan that addresses the following issues:
 

A. Unsafe conditions, crime prevention, school violence, bullying, criminal organization activity, child abuse and child
sexual abuse, and other issues that prevent the maintenance of safe schools.

Accordingly, the school safety plan developed by the school safety specialist and the Safe School Committee with the
assistance of the school resource officer shall be a part of the plan developed by the Safe School Committee.
 

B. Professional development needs for faculty and staff to implement methods that decrease problems identified above.
 



C. Methods to encourage involvement by the community and students, development of relationships between students
and school faculty and staff, and use of problem-solving teams.
 

D. Provide a copy of the floor plans for each building that clearly indicates each exit, the interior rooms and hallways,
and the location of any hazardous materials located in the building to the local law enforcement agency and the fire
departments that have jurisdiction over the school.

 
NOTE: The Corporation shall not disclose any record or part of any record if the its disclosure of which would have a
reasonable likelihood of threatening public safety by compromising the Corporation’s security.
 
In developing the plan, the Safe School Committee shall seek input from representatives of the following:
 

A. The the State Department of Education;
 

B. The the Corporation's school safety specialist;
 

C. School Resource Officer(s);
 

D. local law enforcement agencies;
E. the local Fire Marshal(s) or his/her designee(s);

 
F. local emergency medical services;
G. building administrators;

 
H. the local emergency management service agency.

 
I. employees as needed

 
The Superintendent shall recommend the approval and adoption of each school's plan.
 
Safe School Committee’s Duty To Implement the Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act
 
The Safe School Committee is responsible for implementing the Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act. To
ensure that the Corporation remains compliant with Federal law, the Safe School Committee shall:
 

A. develop a drug-free school plan that:
 

1. requires each school to collect and report drug-related activities in the school, including suspensions,
expulsions, exclusions, police actions, or any other type of drug-related behavior; and
 

2. addresses ways to eliminate illegal drugs and drug-related behavior in schools;
 

B. oversee the implementation of the school plan;
 

C. oversee the implementation of the curriculum under I.C. 20-30-5-11 concerning the effects that alcoholic beverages,
tobacco, prescription drugs, and controlled substances have on the human body and society at large.

 
To apply annually for matching grant funds from the Indiana secured school fund, the Corporation shall certify to the
Department of Homeland Security that it has:
 

A. conducted a threat assessment for each school building it uses; and
 

B. entered into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) in place with a community mental health center established
under State law or a provider certified or licensed by the State to provide mental or behavioral health services to
students. 

 
School Safety Specialist
 
The Corporation shall designate an individual to serve as the school safety specialist for the Corporation. The school safety
specialist shall be chosen by the Superintendent with the approval of the Board. The school safety specialist shall perform
the following duties:
 

A. Serve on the county school safety commission, if a county school safety commission is established under I.C. 5-2-
10.1-10. with jurisdiction over the Corporation established under I.C. 10-21-1-12.



 
B. Participate each year in a number of days of school safety training that the council determines Indiana Department

of Education determines necessary.
 

C. With the assistance of the county school safety commission with jurisdiction over the Corporation established under
I.C. 10-21-1-12, if a county school safety commission is established under I.C. 5-2-10.1-10, develop, implement,
and improve a school safety plan for each school in the Corporation.
 

D. Coordinate the school safety plans of each school in the Corporation as required by State law and under rules
adopted by the Indiana state board of education State Board of Education; and
 

E. Act as a resource for the Corporation's safe school committees and other individuals in the Corporation on issues
related to school discipline, safety, and security.; and
 

 
School Safety Plan
 
A school safety plan must be developed by the school safety specialist must and the school's safe school committee,
including a school resource officer if one is employed by the Corporation, in consultation with the law enforcement agency
and fire department that have jurisdiction over the school which:
 

A. include includes the requirements set forth in I.C. 20-26-18.2-2(b) 10-21-1-10(c), namely:
 

1. Protect against outside threats to the physical safety of students,protects against outside and internal threats
to the physical safety of students, faculty, staff, and the public, including unsafe conditions, crime prevention,
school violence, bullying and cyberbullying, criminal organization activity, child abuse and child sexual abuse,
mental health and behavioral health, suicide awareness and prevention, violence prevention and training,
situational awareness, and other issues that prevent the maintenance of a safe school;
 

2. Prevent unauthorized access to school property,prevents unauthorized access to school property and interior
areas or rooms, including the management of authorized visitors on school property, before during, and after
regulator school hours;
 

3. Secure schools against violence and natural disasters, andsecures schools against natural and manmade
disasters, including all emergency preparedness drill requirements set forth in I.C. 20-34-3-20;
 

8. Identify the location of includes bleeding control kits, including the location of bleeding control kits and the
presentation and use of bleeding control kits in all drills and emergencies, as required by I.C. 20-34-3-
24(c); and
 

B. must be provided to a member of the secured school safety board, as established by I.C. 10-21-1-3, if a member
requests the plan; and
 

F. Serve as a liaison for the Corporation regarding school safety matters with the secured school safety board, the
Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Education, the Indiana Criminal Justice Institute, and other
state agencies, as applicable.

4. establishes an armed intruder drill protocol that: a) provides accommodations for students who have mobility
restrictions, sensory needs, or auditory or visual limitations; b) emphasizes the practical nature of the drill;
c) provides access to mental health services on school grounds following the conclusion of a drill; d) provides
advance notice of a drill to parents or legal guardians of students who attend the school; and e) provides
alternative exercises for students who are unable to participate in a drill;
 

5. includes a site vulnerability assessment for each school building;
 

6. not later than July 1, 2025, includes the establishment of a multi-disciplinary threat assessment team;
 

7. includes measures to expedite notification of first responders and access to school property for first
responders;
 

9. includes any additional requirements required by the Indiana State Board of Education.
 

C. must be available for inspection by the Department of Education's Division of School Building Physical Security and
Safety, as established by I.C. 20-19-3-14;
 



F. must be filed with the county school safety commission under I.C. 5-2-10.1-10 if the county has established a
county school safety commission established under I.C. 10-21-1-12 which has jurisdiction over the Corporation.

 
Bleeding Control Kits
 
A 'bleeding control kit' means a first aid response kit that contains at least the following:
 

 
Each school year subject to either:
 

 
The Corporation shall develop and implement a Stop the Bleed program that meets the requirements set forth in I.C. 20-
34-3-24(c), namely:
 

D. must be provided to the law enforcement agency and the fire department that have jurisdiction over the
Corporation;
 

E. must include an attestation that: a) a copy of the floor plans for each building located on the school's property were
provided to the law enforcement agency and the fire department that have jurisdiction over the Corporation that
clearly indicates each entrance and exit, the interior rooms and hallways, and the location of hazardous materials
located in the building; or b) the Corporation has conducted critical incidence digital mapping for each school
building within the Corporation, including providing the critical incidence digital mapping information to the law
enforcement agency and fire department that have jurisdiction over the mapped school buildings and the statewide
911 system described in I.C. 36-8-16.7-22 through the public safety answer point, or "PSAP", described in I.C. 36-
8-16.7-20 that has jurisdiction over the mapped school buildings; and
 

A. One (1) tourniquet endorsed by the Committee on Tactical Combat Casualty Care.
 

B. A compression bandage.
 

C. A bleeding control bandage.
 

D. Protective gloves and a permanent marker.
 

E. Scissors.
 

F. Instructional documents developed by the Stop the Bleed national awareness campaign of the United States
Department of Homeland Security or the American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma, or both.
 

G. Other medical materials and equipment similar to those described in subdivisions (A) through (C), and any
additional items that:
 

1. are approved by local law enforcement or first responders;
 

2. can adequately treat a traumatic injury; and
 

3. can be stored in a readily available kit.

A. an appropriation by the general assembly; or
 

B. the Corporation receiving sufficient bleeding control kits for each school in the Corporation from:
 

1. donations from individuals or entities; or
 

2. gifts necessary to purchase the bleeding control kits.

A. requires bleeding control kits be assigned to designated rooms in easily accessible locations to be determined by
local first responders or the school safety specialist;
 

B. includes bleeding control kits in the emergency plans of the school corporation or charter school, including the
presentation and use of the bleeding control kits in all drills and emergencies;
 

C. provides that all Corporation schools have a minimum of five (5) individuals in each school building who obtain
appropriate training in the use of the bleeding control kit including:
 



 
The Corporation's Stop the Bleed program must include each school in the Corporation.
 
The Corporation ( ) may ( ) shall [END OF OPTION] request direction to resources that are available to provide bleeding
control kits to the Corporation from ( ) the Department of Homeland Security ( ) the State Department of Education
[CHOOSE ONE - END OF OPTION].
 
School Resource Officers
 
'School resource officer' means a law enforcement officer who:
 

A. has completed the training described below;
 

B. is assigned to one (1) or more school corporations or charter schools during school hours to:
 

1. assist the school safety specialist and safe school committeewith the development and implementation of the
school safety plan; and
 

2. carry out any additional responsibilities assigned to the school resource officer under the employment
engagement, contract, or memorandum of understanding and to provide law enforcement services to:
 

a. protect against outside threats to the physical safety of students;
 

b. prevent unauthorized access to school property; and
 

c. secure schools against violence and natural disasters; and
 

C. is:
 

1. employed by a law enforcement agency;
 

2. appointed as a police reserve officer (as described in I.C. 36-8-3-20) or as a special deputy (as described in
I.C. 36-8-10-10.6) if the police reserve officer or special deputy:
 

a. is subject to the direction of the sheriff or appointing law enforcement agency;
 

b. is required to obey the rules and orders of the sheriff's department or appointing law enforcement
agency;
 

c. is required to complete all training required of regular full-time law enforcement officers employed by
the sheriff's department or appointed appointing law enforcement agency; and
 

d. may be removed by the sheriff or appointed appointing law enforcement agency at any time, with or
without cause; or
 

3. a school corporation police officer appointed under I.C. 20-26-16-3.
 

1. the proper application of pressure to stop bleeding;
 

2. the application of dressings or bandages;
 

3. additional pressure techniques to control bleeding; and
 

4. the correct application of tourniquets;
 

D. requires bleeding control kits in school inventories to be inspected annually to ensure that the materials, supplies,
and equipment contained in the bleeding control kits are not expired and that any expired materials, supplies, and
equipment are replaced as necessary; and
 

E. requires a bleeding control kit to be restocked after each use and any materials, supplies, and equipment to be
replaced as necessary to ensure that the bleeding control kit contains all necessary materials, supplies, and
equipment.



The term does not include a law enforcement officer who is assigned to a school to provide security outside a school
building for protection from outside threats, traffic duty, or other duties not consistent with the duties of a school resource
officer.
 
Before being appointed as a school resource officer, an individual must have successfully completed the minimum training
requirements established for law enforcement officers under I.C. 5-2-1-9.
 
The law enforcement officer appointed as a school resource officer must receive at least forty (40) hours of school resource
officer training through:
 

A. the Indiana law enforcement training board Law Enforcement Training Board established by I.C. 5-2-1-3;
 

B. the National Association of School Resource Officers; or
 

C. another school resource officer training program approved by the Indiana law enforcement training board Law
Enforcement Training Board.

 
The school resource officer training must be completed within 180 days from the date the individual is initially assigned the
duties of a school resource officer. However, if the current ADM of the Corporation is less than 1,000 students, the individual
shall complete the school resource officer training within 365 days of the date the individual is initially assigned the duties
of a school resource officer.
 
The training described above must include instruction regarding skills, tactics, and strategies necessary to address the
special nature of:
 

A. school campuses; and
 

B. school building security needs and characteristics.
 
A school resource officer may be employed:
 

A. through a contract between a local law enforcement agency and (1) the Corporation or (2) the Corporation and
other school corporations or charter schools;
 

B. by the Corporation or the Corporation and other school corporations or charter schools;
 

C. by a local law enforcement agency that assigns the school resource officer to (1) the Corporation or (2) the
Corporation and other school corporations or charter schools through a memorandum of understanding between the
local law enforcement agency and the Corporation or the Corporation and other school corporations or charter
schools; or
 

D. through a contract between an Indiana business that employs persons who meet the qualifications of a school
resource officer and (1) the Corporation or (2) the Corporation and other school corporations or charter schools.

 
After June 30, 2023, if If the Corporation enters into a contract for a school resource officer, the Corporation must enter
into a memorandum of understanding with the law enforcement agency that employs or appointed the law enforcement
officer who will perform the duties of a school resource officer unless the Corporation only has full-time school resource
officers who are either employees of the Corporation's school police department or are employees of the Corporation who
have successfully completed the law enforcement basic training requirements described in I.C. 5-2-1-9(d).
 
The memorandum of understanding described above for the employment of a school resource officer must state the nature
and scope of a school resource officer's duties and responsibilities. A school resource officer's duties and responsibilities
include the duty to assist the Corporation's school safety specialist and Safe School Committee with the development and
implementation of a school safety plan plans.that does the following:
 

 

A. Protects against outside threats to the physical safety of students.
 

B. Prevents unauthorized access to school property.
 

C. Secures schools against violence and natural disasters.
 

D. On or before July 1, 2020, identifies the location of bleeding control kits (as defined in I.C. 20-34-3-24(a)).



A school resource officer shall consult with local law enforcement officials and first responders when assisting the
Corporation's school safety specialist and safe school committee in the development of the school safety plan.
 
A school resource officer shall participate in the development of programs designed to identify, assess, and provide
assistance to troubled youth who are at high risk of experiencing a mental health crisis or becoming juvenile offenders.
 
A school resource officer shall not be reassigned to other duties by the Corporation.
 
A school resource officer may:
 

A. make an arrest;
 

B. conduct a search or a seizure of a person or property using the reasonable suspicion standard;
 

C. carry a firearm on or off school property; and
 

D. exercise other police powers with respect to the enforcement of Indiana laws.
 
A school resource officer has jurisdiction in every county where the Corporation operates a school or where the
Corporation’s students reside. This does not restrict the jurisdiction that a school resource officer may possess due to the
officer's employment by a law enforcement agency.
 
The Corporation shall report all instances of of:
 

A. seclusion (as defined in I.C. 20-20-40-9);
 

B. chemical restraint (as defined in I.C. 20-20-40-2);
 

C. mechanical restraint (as defined in I.C. 20-20-40-4); and
 

D. physical restraint (as defined in I.C. 20-20-40-5)
 
involving a school resource officer in accordance with the restraint and seclusion plan adopted by the Corporation under I.C.
20-20-40-14.
 
Security Police Training
 
In the case of a regular or special police officer who is assigned as a security police officer for the Corporation, the Board
shall require that the police officer receives training and education, approved by the State Board of Education, that will
enable the police officer to appropriately deal with individuals with Autism and Asperger’s Syndrome.
 
Mental or Behavioral Health Services
 
The Corporation shall enter into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with a community mental health center
established under State law or a provider certified or licensed by the State to provide appropriate and necessary mental or
behavioral health services to students.
 
The Corporation may shall not refer a student to a mental health care provider or community mental health center for
services unless the Corporation has received the written consent of the student's parent or guardian. If a referral is made,
the Corporation may note the referral in the student's cumulative record but shall not include any possible diagnosis or
information concerning the student's mental health other than any medication that the student takes for his/her
their mental health. A student's record that contains medical information shall be kept confidential. A school counselor or
other Corporation employee may shall not diagnose a student as having a mental health condition unless his/her
their scope of practice includes diagnosing a mental health condition.
 
Prior to providing any referrals under a MOU, the Corporation must shall:
 

A. Develop a process for a teacher or Corporation employee to notify a school official to contact a student's parent if
the student demonstrates a repeated pattern of aberrant or abnormal behavior. The parental notification process
must shall include a conference with the school, student, and the student's parent;
 

B. Require that the aforementioned conference address the student's potential need for and benefit from:
 



1. mental or behavioral health services; or
 

2. mental or behavioral health services provided by the community mental health center or appropriate provider
that is contracted and paid for by the Corporation;
 

C. Establish a procedure for a parent who chooses to seek services for the student to follow that includes granting
written parental consent for the student to receive mental or behavioral health services by a community mental
health center or appropriate provider; and
 

D. Protect the confidentiality of any medical records that result from a student's participation in any treatment
described in subpart B above. and adopt a policy that prohibits the Corporation from:
 

 
The Corporation is prohibited from:
 

 
Threat Assessment 
 
The primary purpose of a threat assessment is to minimize the risk of targeted violence at school. This policy is designed to
be consistent with the process for identifying, assessing, and managing students who may pose a threat as set forth in the
joint U.S. Secret Service and Department of Homeland Security publication, Enhancing School Safety Using a Threat
Assessment Model: An Operational Guide for Preventing Targeted School Violence. The goal of the threat assessment
process is to take appropriate preventive or corrective measures to maintain a safe school environment, protect and
support potential victims, and provide assistance, as appropriate, to the student being assessed.
 
The threat assessment process is centered upon an analysis of the facts and evidence of behavior in a given situation. The
appraisal of risk in a threat assessment focuses on actions, communications, and specific circumstances that might suggest
that an individual intends to cause physical harm and is engaged in planning or preparing for that event.
 
The Board authorizes the Superintendent to create building-level, trained threat assessment teams. Each Team shall be
headed by the Principal and include: a school safety specialist, school counselor or guidance counselor, individual with
expertise in special education, and, where appropriate, the School Resource Officer. At the discretion of the Superintendent,
a threat assessment team may serve more than one (1) school when logistics and staff assignments require.
 
The Team will meet as needed and when the Principal learns a student has made a threat of violence or engages in
communications or behaviors that suggest the likelihood of a threatening situation.
 
The Team is empowered to gather information, evaluate facts, and make a determination as to whether a given student
poses a threat of violence to a target. If an inquiry indicates that there is a risk of violence in a specific situation, the Team
may collaborate with others to develop and implement a written plan to manage or reduce the threat posed by the student
in that situation.
 
Corporation employees, volunteers, and other school community members, including students and parents, shall
immediately report to the Superintendent or Principal any expression of intent to harm another person or other statement
or behaviors that suggest a student may intend to commit an act of violence.
 
Nothing in this policy overrides or replaces an individual's responsibility to contact 911 in an emergency.
 
Regardless of threat assessment activities or protocols, disciplinary action and referral to law enforcement shall occur as
required by State law and Board policy.
 

1. sharing any reports or notes resulting from the provision of mental or behavioral health services described in
subpart B.1  above with other school officials; and
 

2. maintaining any reports, notes, diagnosis, or appointments that result from a student's participation in any
treatment described in B.1 or B.2  above in the student's permanent educational file. (See Policy 8330 -
Student Records)

A. sharing any reports or notes resulting from the provision of mental or behavioral health services described in
subpart B.1 above with other school officials; and
 

B. maintaining any reports, notes, diagnosis, or appointments that result from a student's participation in any
treatment described in B.1 or B.2 above in the student's permanent educational file. (See Policy 8330 - Student
Records).



Threat assessment team members shall maintain student confidentiality at all times as required by Board Policy 8330 -
Student Records and State and Federal law.
 
Persistently Dangerous Schools
 
The Board recognizes that State and Federal law requires that the Corporation report annually incidents which that meet
the statutory definition of violent criminal offenses that occur in a school, on school grounds, on a school conveyance, or at
a school-sponsored activity. It is further understood that the State Department of Education will then use this data to
determine whether or not a school is considered 'persistently dangerous' as defined by State policy.
 
Pursuant to the Board’s stated intent to provide a safe school environment, the Corporation's school administrators are
expected to respond appropriately to any and all violations of the Student Code of Conduct, especially those of a serious,
violent nature. In any year where the number of reportable incidents of violent criminal offenses in any school exceeds the
threshold number established in State policy, the Superintendent shall refer this to the Safe School Committee for the
Corporation, or if none, to the Safe School Committee of the school with the largest number of violent criminal offenses so
that a plan of corrective action can be developed and implemented in an effort to reduce the number of these incidents in
the subsequent year.
 
When developed, the Superintendent shall make a report to the Board about this plan of corrective action and recommend
approval and adoption of it.
 
In the unexpected event that the number of reportable incidents in three (3) consecutive school years exceeds the
statutory threshold and the school is identified as persistently dangerous, students attending the school shall have the
choice option as provided in Policy 5113.02 - School Transfer Options and AG 5113.02 - School Transfer Options.
 
In addition, the Superintendent shall meet with the Safe School Committee of each school identified as persistently
dangerous to discuss the school’s designation as a persistently dangerous school, and develop a plan of corrective action
that can be implemented in an effort to reduce the number of these incidents in the subsequent year.
 
Victims of Violent Crime
 
The Board further recognizes that, despite the diligent efforts of school administrators and staff to provide a safe school
environment, an individual student may be a victim of a violent crime in a school, on school grounds, on a school
conveyance, or at a school-sponsored activity. In accordance with Federal and State law, the parents of the eligible student
shall have the choice options provided by Policy 5113.02 - School Transfer Options and AG 5113.02 - School Transfer
Options.
 
Bleeding Control Kits
 
A 'bleeding control kit' means a first aid response kit that contains at least the following:
 

 
Each school year subject to either:

A. One (1) tourniquet endorsed by the Committee on Tactical Combat Casualty Care.
 

B. A compression bandage.
 

C. A bleeding control bandage.
 

D. Protective gloves and a permanent marker.
 

E. Scissors.
 

F. Instructional documents developed by the Stop the Bleed national awareness campaign of the United States
Department of Homeland Security or the American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma, or both.
 

G. Other medical materials and equipment similar to those described in subdivisions (A) through (C), and any
additional items that:
 

1. are approved by local law enforcement or first responders;
 

2. can adequately treat a traumatic injury; and
 

3. can be stored in a readily available kit.



 

 
The Corporation shall develop and implement a Stop the Bleed program that meets the requirements set forth in I.C. 20-
34-3-24(c), namely:
 

 
The Corporation's Stop the Bleed program must include each school in the Corporation.
 
 
I.C. 5-2-1-3
I.C. 5-2-1-9
I.C. 5-2-1-9(d)
I.C. 10-21-1-3
I.C. 10-21-1-9 School Safety Specialist
I.C. 10-21-1-10 School Safety Plan
I.C. 10-21-1-11 Executive Sessions for School Safety
I.C. 10-21-1-12
I.C. 10-21-1-14 Safe School Committee
I.C. 20-21-1-9 School Safety Specialist
I.C. 10-21-1-10 School Safety Plan
I.C. 21-1-11 Executive Sessions for School Safety
I.C. 20-20-40 Restraining and Seclusion Commission
I.C. 20-26-5-31
I.C. 20-26-5-42.7
I.C. 20-26-16
I.C. 20-26-16-3
I.C. 20-26-18.2
I.C. 20-30-5-11
I.C. 20-34-3-20
I.C. 20-34-3-21
I.C. 20-34-3-24
I.C. 36-8-3-20

A. an appropriation by the general assembly; or
 

B. the Corporation receiving sufficient bleeding control kits for each school in the Corporation from:
 

1. donations from individuals or entities; or
 

2. gifts necessary to purchase the bleeding control kits.

A. requires bleeding control kits be assigned to designated rooms in easily accessible locations to be determined by
local first responders or the school safety specialist;
 

B. includes bleeding control kits in the emergency plans of the school corporation or charter school, including the
presentation and use of the bleeding control kits in all drills and emergencies;
 

C. provides that all Corporation schools have a minimum of five (5) individuals in each school building who obtain
appropriate training in the use of the bleeding control kit including:
 

1. the proper application of pressure to stop bleeding;
 

2. the application of dressings or bandages;
 

3. additional pressure techniques to control bleeding; and
 

4. the correct application of tourniquets;
 

D. requires bleeding control kits in school inventories to be inspected annually to ensure that the materials, supplies,
and equipment contained in the bleeding control kits are not expired and that any expired materials, supplies, and
equipment are replaced as necessary; and
 

E. requires a bleeding control kit to be restocked after each use and any materials, supplies, and equipment to be
replaced as necessary to ensure that the bleeding control kit contains all necessary materials, supplies, and
equipment.



I.C. 36-8-10-10.6
20 U.S.C. 7101 et seq., The Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act (Title IV, Part A of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act)
Title IX, Section 9532 of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001
511 IAC 4-1.5-7 Crisis intervention plans
511 IAC 6.1-2-2.5 Safe schools and emergency preparedness planning
513 IAC 1 Seclusion and Restraint in Schools
 
© Neola 2022 2024

Legal I.C. 5-2-1-3

I.C. 5-2-1-9

I.C. 5-2-1-9(d)

I.C. 10-21-1-3

I.C. 10-21-1-9 School Safety Specialist

I.C. 10-21-1-10 School Safety Plan

I.C. 10-21-1-11 Executive Sessions for School Safety

I.C. 10-21-1-12

I.C. 10-21-1-14 Safe School Committee

I.C. 20-20-40 Restraining and Seclusion Commission

I.C. 20-26-5-31

I.C. 20-26-5-42.7

I.C. 20-26-16

I.C. 20-26-16-3

I.C. 20-26-18.2

I.C. 20-30-5-11

I.C. 20-34-3-20

I.C. 20-34-3-21

I.C. 20-34-3-24

I.C. 36-8-3-20

I.C. 36-8-10-10.6

20 U.S.C. 7101 et seq., The Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act (Title
IV, Part A of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act)

Title IX, Section 9532 of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001

511 IAC 4-1.5-7 Crisis intervention plans

511 IAC 6.1-2-2.5 Safe schools and emergency preparedness planning

513 IAC 1 Seclusion and Restraint in Schools



promotions, approvals, or recommendations
 

3. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), or agents, and Board members shall not make use of
materials, equipment, or facilities of the Corporation in private practice. Examples would be the use of
facilities before, during, or after regular business hours for service to private practice clients, or the checking
out of items from an instructional materials center for private practice.
 

4. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents shall not solicit gifts, travel packages,
and other incentives from prospective contractors.Employees, officers, agents, and Board members of the
Corporation may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors.
 

5. Employees, officers (that is, all members of the Board), and agents shall not participate in the selection,
award and administration of any contract to an entity in which they have a pecuniary interest or from which
they derive a profit or in which a dependent of the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or
agent has a pecuniary interest or from which the dependent derives a profit. "Dependent" includes the
employee’s spouse; unemancipated child, stepchild or adopted child under the age of eighteen (18); or
individual for whom the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent provides more than
one-half (1/2) of the individual’s support during a year. A "pecuniary interest" means an interest in a contract
or purchase that will result or is intended to result in an ascertainable increase in the income or net worth of
the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent or the employee’s, officer’s (that is, any
member of the Board), or agent’s dependent who is under the direct or indirect administrative control of the
employee, officer, or agent or who receives a contract or purchase order that is reviewed, approved, or
directly or indirectly administered by the employee, officer (that is, any member of the Board), or agent.No
employee, officer, agent, or Board member with a real or apparent conflict of interest may participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by the Federal award. A conflict of interest
includes when the employee, officer, agent, or Board member, or any member of their immediate family, their
partner, or an organization that employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a contract.

This includes contracts between the Corporation and an entity in which the individual has a pecuniary
interest, as defined in I.C. 35-44.1-4(a)(3), or from which the individual derives a profit, or in which a
dependent, as defined in I.C. 35-44.1-4(a)(1), of the individual has a pecuniary interest or derives a profit.
 

B. No conflict of interest will be deemed to be present if the Corporation employee’s, officer’s (that is, any member of
the Board), or agent’s individual's interest in the contract or purchase and all other contracts and purchases made
by the Corporation during the twelve (12) months before the date of the contract or purchase was less than $250 or
less.
 

C. Should exceptions to this policy be necessary in order to provide mandatory services through a private
relationship to students or clients of the Corporation, all such exceptions will be made known to the employee's
individual's supervisor, or to the School Board if there is no supervisor, and will be disclosed to the Superintendent
before entering into any private relationship.
 

D. To the extent that the Corporation has a parent, affiliate affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a State, local
government government, or Indian tribe, the Corporation may not conduct a procurement action involving the
parent, affiliate affiliate, or subsidiary organization if the Corporation is unable, or appears to be unable, to be
impartial.
 

E. Employees, officers, and agents, and Board members must disclose any potential conflict of interest which that may
lead to a violation of this policy to the Corporation. Upon discovery or notification of any potential conflict of interest,
the Corporation will disclose, in writing, the potential conflict of interest to the appropriate Federal awarding agency
or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.
 
The Corporation also will disclose, in a timely manner, all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or
gratuity that affect a Federal award to the appropriate Federal awarding agency or, if applicable, the pass-through
entity.The Corporation will promptly disclose whenever, in connection with the Federal award (including any activities
or subawards thereunder), it has credible evidence of the commission of a violation of Federal criminal law involving
fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or gratuity violations found in Title 18 of the United States Code or a violation of
the civil False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. 3729-3733). The disclosure must be made in writing to the Federal agency, the
agency's Office of Inspector General, and pass-through entity. The Corporation is also required to report matters
related to recipient integrity and performance in accordance with Appendix XII of 2 C.F.R. Part 200.
 



F. Employees, officers, and agents, and Board members found to be in violation of this conflict of interest policy will be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable Board policy.
 

 
© Neola 2016 2024

Legal I.C. 20-26-3-4

I.C. 20-26-5-4

I.C. 35-44.1-1-1, 35-44.1-1-2, 35-44.1-1-4, 35-44.1-1-5

2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318

7 C.F.R. 3016.36(b)(3) and 3019.42



F. Employees, officers and officers, agents, and Board members found to be in violation of this conflict of interest
policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable Board policy.
 

 
© Neola 2016 2024

Legal I.C. 20-26-3-4

I.C. 20-26-5-4

I.C. 35-44.1-1-1, 35-44.1-1-2, 35-44.1-1-4, 35-44.1-1-5

2 C.F.R. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318

7 C.F.R. 3016.36(b)(3) and 3019.42


	1.1 - Board Cover Page November 2024
	2 - Agenda 11.14.24
	4E - Resolution 1124-309
	4F - Resolution 1124-310
	4G - Resolution 1124-311
	4H - Resolution 1124-312
	5A - Personnel Report
	5B - 10.10.24 Minutes
	5C1 - 10.18.24 Payroll
	5C2 - 11.5.24 Payroll
	5C3 - Payroll & Claim Docket
	6A - Financial Report
	6B - Fund Report
	6C1 - Monthly Fund Transfer Report
	6C2 - Ed to Ops Transfer
	7A - Tentative Agreement
	7B - Fundraisers
	7A - Fundraisers
	BGMS PTO Fundraiser
	Boys Basketball Fundraiser
	Cheerleading Fundraisers
	Class of 2027 Fundraiser
	Jr-Sr Fundraiser Bunny Bfast

	BGHS Cheer Fannie Mae

	7C - Contract Considerations
	Contract Considerations
	Crowe LLP Audit Services
	Crowe_LLP_2022_Peer_Review_Report
	Crowe_LLP_2022_Peer_Review_Report_Accept

	Food Svc Coop RFPS
	Patriot Engineering and Environmental

	7D1 - Revised Policy 1130
	7D10 - Revised Policy 4217
	7D11 - Revised Policy 5410
	7D12 - Revised Policy 5772
	7D13 - Revised Policy 6110
	7D14 - Revised Policy 6111
	7D15 - Revised Policy 6112
	7D16 - Revised Policy 6114
	7D17 - Revised Policy 6325
	7D18 - Revised Policy 6550
	7D19 - Revised Policy 7217
	7D2 - Revised Policy 1220
	7D20 - Revised Policy 7310
	7D21 - Revised Policy 7450
	7D22 - Revised Policy 7540.03
	7D23 - Revised Policy 8400
	7D3 - Revised Policy 1230
	7D4 - Revised Policy 1617
	7D5 - Rescinded Policy 2312
	7D6 - Revised Policy 2623
	7D7 - Revised Policy 3113
	7D8 - Revised Policy 3217
	7D9 - Revised Policy 4113

	Back to Agenda: 
	Back to Agenda 2: 


